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Our reputation is built on
engineering excellence and

a commitment to continual
innovation. Wherever Keller
operates and whatever the
circumstances, we have the
ability to gather together the
right people, skills, processes,
equipment and thinking to
deliver any project brilliantly.

By precisely blending these
elements at the right time,
we achieve local results that
set the global standard.

Operational highhights

Another year of good progress.

Group revenue down year on year by  Operating profit’ up to

-2.3% £1034m

Group operating margin’ up to Cash generated from operations®

6.6%

£142.3m
Earmings per share® increased to

864p 2/ 1p
per share

per share

Before excepuional items




Highlights

|
Key financial highlights

Revenue from continuing operations (Em}

£1,562.4m

10t5 1,562 4
2014 15997
2013 14382

2012 1,3175

2011 1,154 3

Operating profit {fm)"

£103.4m

2005 103 4
2014 920

2013 778

2012 483

2011 289

Earmings per share (pence)

6.4p

2015 86 4
2014 753

2003 730

2012 459

00 248

Return on capital employed (%)"

20.5%

2015
2014
2013
2012

05
183
167
e

2001 66

Before exceptional tems

Cautionary statement
This docurment contans certan forward looking statements with respect to Keller s finanoiz! condivon resuhs of operations
and busingss and certain of Keller’s plans and objectives wath respect to these items

Forward looking statements are somet.mes but not atways idenufied by their use of a date in tne future or such words as
antiopates aims due ‘will could may should expects beleves interds plans potential reasonably possible targets
gaal or esumates By ther very nature forward looking statements are inherently unpredictzble speculatve and involve sk
and uncertamnty because they relate 1o events and depend on crcumstances that walt accur i the future

There are a number of factors that could cause actual results and developments 1o d flar matenally from .hose expressed or
impted by these forward keoking statements

These factors include but are not imited to changes n the econamies and markets in which the Group operates changes nthe
regulatory and compettion frameworks n which the Group eperates, the impact of legal or other proceedings against or which
affect the Group and changes in interest and exchange rates

All wntten or verbal forward looking staternents made in this document or made subsequently which are attributable to Keller

or any ather member of the Group or persons acting on their behalf are expressly qualified n the r ent.rety by the factors
referred to above. Keller does net intend to update these forward looking statements

Nothingin this document should be regarded asa profits forecast.

Thes docur-ent s notan offer to sall, exchange or transfer any secuntes of Kaller Group pl or any of its subsdianies and s not soliating
an offer Lo purchase exchange or transfer sudh secunties i any unsdiction Securties may notbe offered sold or transfarred n the
Ukted States absent regrstration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the LIS Securites AcL
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About Keller

Market leaders We operate In over 40 countries we are

the clear market leader in North America,

North America

Australa and Sub-Saharan Africa, we have
prime positions In most established European
markets, and we have a strong profile in
many developing markets

EMEA

We are the market leader in
North America, where we have
had a market presence for over

30 years Today we operate from

locations spanning the US and
Canada Hayward Baker offers

Our EMEA dwiston has
operations across Europe, the
Middle East and Africa, together
with a developing business In
Latin America We operate as
Keller in most of these regions

Western Europe  50%

extensive ground engineering cther than Sub-5aharan Africa Alnca 18%
solutions across North America where we operate under the EasternBurope  17%
In the US, Case McKinney and H) us 9% Frank: brand Middle East 8%
are heavy foundation specialists Canada 9% Other 7%

and Suncoast provides post-
tension cable systems |n Canada,

Geo-Foundations specialises in Revenue (£m) 271X QD Revenue (£m) 2%
micro-piling ground anchors, and
specialty grouting services and £85 | -zm £44 | 5m
Keller Canada offers a broad
range of piling solutions Operating profit’ (Em)  +27 5% (A Operating profit” (Em) +65 1% [A]

£7/64m £21.3m

Before exteptional items Before exceptional tems
Asia Australia
In recent years we have built Keller offers a range of piling
up our presence In Asia where services under 1ts Keller
we started life as a ground Feundations brand Keller
improvement specialist, but now Ground Engineering { KGE')
offer a wide range of foundation offers specialist ground
services We are well established e— % improvement and geotechnical Kealler Foundators S0
in Singapore India and Mafaysia v o solutions Austral Construction YV %
with developing businesses in i ] (Awstral ) and Waterway i
other parts of the ASEAN Ind2 13% Constructions {"Waterway } Austral 12%
Region In Asia we generally Other 4% specialise in foundations for, and KGE 6%
operate as Keller, although the the maintenance of, wharves
Resource Piling name has been R £ 28%® Jetties and other marine
retained alongside the Keller 2;85‘5) structures Revenue (£ém} %G
brand in Singapore £ m
Although they specialise In £ | 6 | 5 m
different techniques, on very
Operating profit® (fm)  -45 8% & large or complex projects, the Operating profit* {m)  -54 1% &

2 KELLER GROUP PLC
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companies may join forces under
the Keller Australia brand

£/ 2m

Before exceptional tems
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Products We are the waorld's largest Approximate spht of products
independent ground engineering U1 Pring and earth retention 50%
specialist, renowned for providing 02 Graund improvement 20%
tech ly advanced and cost-effective 03 Anchors nails and minipiles 10%
echnically 04 Specalty grouting 10%
foundation solutions 05 Post-tension concrete 9%
8¢ Instrumentation and monitoring 1%
Our products are used across the
construction sector in infrastructure,
industrizl, commerciat residential and
environmental projects
Piling and Ground o Anchors, nails x
earth retention improvement 0 and minipiles ).

Piling involves the installation of structural
elements to transfer foundation loads
through weak soils to stronger underlying
ground Keller offers a wide range of piling
and earth retention systems including
diaphragm walls and marine piles

» | Read more onpage 14

Specialty
grouting s‘s

Ground improvement techniques are used
to prepare the ground for new construction
projects and to reduce the risk of
liquefaction in areas of seismic actvity

> | Read more on page 19

Post-tension

concrete ¢g°

Anchors nails and minipiles can provide
temperary or permanent solutions for a
wide range of stability or support problems
and are often used to underpin or stabilise
bulldings slopes and embankments

> | Read more on page 21

@ Instrumentation >>
and monitoring

Specialty greuting strengthens target areas
in the ground and controls ground water
flow through rocks and soils by reducing
their permeabiiity It 1s applicable both to
new construction projects and to repar and
maintenance work

» | Read more on page 22

Post-tension cable systems are used 10
reinforce concrete foundations and structural
spans, enhancing their load-bearing capaaty by
applying a compressive force to the concrete
once set Suncoast’s post-tension systems are
used in foundation slabs for single family homes

Keller specialises in providing instrurmentation
and monitoring solutiens for a wide range of
apphcations We provide and install a wide
range of instruments and then provide
relable and repeatable data

> | Read more on page 25

KELLER GROUP PLC 3

Annual Report & Accounts 2015

ADALVY1S |

FONVINYONI |

IDNYNYIAOD |

SINIWALYLS TVIDNYINIL ’



Chairman’s
statement

|
The 2015 results
demonstrate the

continued strength

of the Group’s

business.

Roy A Frankhn
Chairman
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Results'

| am pleased to report another year of good
orogress in 2015 Whilst Group revenue fell by
2% 1o £l 5624m (2014 £ 599 7m), primarily due
to the completion of the Groups largest ever
contract, Wheatstone in Australia, towards the
end of 2014, operating profit increased by 12%
to £103 4m (2014 £92 Om), and profit before tax
Increased to £95 7m, up 12% on the previous
years £85 Im Earnings per share were 86 4p
(2014 753p)

The Group's operating margin improved to 6 6%
(2014 5 8%}, achieving our through-the-cycle
target of & 5% Return on average capital
employed increased from 18 3% to 20 5% The
margin uphft reflects a combination of improving
condritions In certain markets most notably the
US from where Keller derives aimost 50% of

its revenue further success in our drive for
improvements in all aspects of the business

and some good final project settlements

Cash generated from operations? was £(42 3m,
which represents 92% of EBITDA The Group
remains focused on Improving working capital
ratios across the business and ensuring profits
turn Into cash

Year-end net debt was £183 Om (2014 £102 2m)
representing | 2x EBITDA This increase reflects
£52 5m spent on acquisitions during the year and
a £27 5m cash cutflow relating to the exceptional
contract provision recognised in 2014 In addiion
net caprtal expenditure of £639m was up on

last year's £61 Om and £178m in excess of
depreciation and amortisation This increase in
capital expenditure resutts from the Groups
ongoing investrnent n higher growth markets

The financial posrtion of the Graup remains
very streng There s comfortable headroom
1n the Groups main financng facilities and we
centinue to operate well within all of our
financial covenants

Exceptional items

The 2015 result Includes an exceptional non-cash
charge of £31 2m relating to an impairment of
the goodwill arsing on the 2013 acquisition of
Keller Canada After taking account of tax and
exceptional rtems, the Groups post-tax result
for the year was a profit of £26 3m (2014 loss
of £1 2m)

! Before pre tax exceptional items of £394m (2014 £56 9m)
£31 2m of this relates t a partial Impairment of the Keller
Canada goodwill balance The balance relates primarily to
the amortisation of acquired intangble assets

? Before €27 5m cash outflow in 2015 relating to the 2014
exceptional contract provision

Dividends

As a result of these improved results the Boards
confidence In the business going forward and its
commitment to a progressive dividend policy the
Board has decaded to recommend a final dvidend
of 18 3p per share (2014 16 8p per share) to be
paid on 10 June 2016 to shareholders on the
register at 20 May 2(H6 Together with the
interim dividend paid of 8 8p this brings the total
dividend per share for the year to 27 Ip (2014
252p) anincrease of 7 5% for the year Dividend
cover before exceptionzl tems for the full year
was 3 2x (2014 30x)

Board

On 26 September 2014 we announced that Justin
Atkinson had decided to retire as Chief Executive
Justin retired on 14 May 2015 and was succeeded
by Alain Michaels

With a new Chief Executive now in place

| have decided that 2016 15 the right tme for
me to retire as Chairman of the Board of
Keller Group plc

| 'was appeinted to the Board as a Non-executive
Director n July 2007 and appointed Chairman of
the Board in July 2009 | have led Keller through
some challenging times since my appointrment
and am pleased to be leaving at a time when the
Group 15 positioned for solid growth under a
new executive leadership team

Paul Withers Senior Independent Director

15 leading the selection process for the new
Chairman which is underway and making good
progress We will make an announcement on
miy successor in due course

Employees

Over 10 000 employees have contributed to the
strong performance of the Group during 2015
On behalf of the Directors | would like to thank
them for their hard work and efforts The Board
believes cur pecple are a key component of cur
success and rernains focused on providing

leadership and oversight to engender the strength

of the Keller culture, creating an environment i
which our employees can thrive

To find sut more please
visit our website wwwhkellercouk

Outlook

The 2015 results demonstrate the continued
strength of the Group's business | am confident
that the measures currently being impfemented
to improve operating performance together with
the organisational changes made under the new
ranagement team, will build on this strength

The Group has performed well In 2015 We have
been pleased to record another year ot profit
growth despite sales being lower as a result of
less revenue from large projects At the end of
January the Group order book of work to be
undertaken cver the next 12 months, including
that of acquistions was 15% higher than at the
same time last year with increases in all Divisions

Whilst condrtions in our markets are varied the
ongoing strength in the US, our largest market
continuing Improvemenits In underlying operating
performance, and our strong order book mean
that the Group Is set for ancther year of progress
in 2016

Roy A Frankhn .
Chawrman
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Chief Executive
Officer’s review

Alain Michaels
Chief Executive Officer
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Keller 1s best placed to

gain market share both
organically and through
further acquisitions




As Chief Executive for esght months of 2015

I m pleased to report a year of good progress for
Keller | also wish to thank my predecessor Justin
Atkinson, for his leadership in shaping much of
the resufts we are able to report

Financial performance in the year has been good,
but | have been similarly encouraged by progress
in other areas reflecting the improving health of
the Company on a number of fronts

We executed an impressive array of projects
around the world for our customers and can
point to improving customer focus and
operational discipline

We have continued to evolve the orgamisation
adding some significant talent o the Group and
strengtherning our leadership team

We have also taken some good sirategic steps
notably with two impeortant acquisitions, Bencor
in the US and Austral in Australia

With regard to safety we can report mixed news
— we have continued to improve our safety
performance around the world and our acadent
frequency rate has been cut by over two-thirds in
three years which is excellent However this was
sadly offset by two fatalives in Malaysia due to a
sinkhole acadent in February 2015

We remain in an attractive market and have
many industry-leading advantages We also have
avery healthy list of opportunities to enhance the
success of the Group We are taking a significant
step forward in connecting the Company more
delberately and instilling a stronger common
ethos and operating model | am confident this
will bring better knowledge shaning and higher
performance for our customers, employees

and shareholders

Our strategy

Growth

We will continue to grow We estimate the
global ground engineering market to be worth
US$50bn, so our global market share 1s 5% Even
If we consider our addressable market share this
figure only rises to 10% Thisis a fragmented
industry which we believe will continue to
consolidate As the leading independent player
and wrth a strong balance sheet Keller s best
placed 1o gain market share both organically

and through further acquisitions

Strong, customer-focused businesses

To ensure we build strong local relationships and
stay responsive and competitive in local markets
we are organised by business unit These are fully
capable Profit and Loss umits wath disunct market
strategies and full operational capabilities Clearly
the health of the Group as a whole relies on these
business units continuing to evolve and strengthen
‘We ensure this through a robust management
framework functional expertise and Group-wide
benchmarking Typical revenue for a business unit
15 £40m to £100m and we currently have 22
around the world

Leveraging scale and experuse

We also am to be stronger than the sum of the
individual business units by sensibly leveraging the
scale of our Group Keller s brand and reputation is
strong across the globe and customers are attracted
1o the depth of knowledge, professionalism and
financial security we offer Internally where we
find econormies of scale’ or economies of skill'
we leverage the opportunity across multiple
business units Good examples are shared back
office functions or a common legal team across

a Dwvision We also believe we have good
opportunities to purchase direct and indirect
materizl across muttiple business units

Engineering and Operations

Engineering and Cperations are the core of Keller
We are very active In design of solutions with

our customers (for 45% of our revenue) where
we are able to reduce content and cost of the
project Thisis a clear differentiator and we am
to nurture this capability

In areas of construct only operational efficiency
1s key and we have a number of business units
who perform at excellent levels Good market
share 1s important so that efficencies and
therefore higher margins can be mantaned
\We can share information and improve
productivity further Lean techniques from
other industries are applicable to Keller given
the repetitive nature of much of our operations

We have set up formal Global Praeduct Teams in
2015 to better share and leverage knowledge on
specific products, e g Grouting or Bored Piling
We are confident that these will be a strong
driver of improvement

We continLie 1o invest In new facities and
equipment In Renchen, where Keller in Germany
started 155 years ago, we have added a new
manufacturing hall to enable us to raise output
and buld the vibro and grouting machines of the
future We also made significant capital investrments
well above depreciation rates in 2015

People

| would like to echo the Chairman’s thanks to
the people of Keller | have been very impressed
by the level of loyafty and expertise around the
Group Although ali companies will say people
are their foundation this 1s doubly important
to Keller given the high level of speafic ground
engineering expertise required, coupled with

a very fragmented geographic and project
structure We rely on our project teams to
perfarm far from their base Therefore skills
and traning supported by practical procedures
and technological support, are vital and we will
continue to invest in this domain

We also made changes at the Executive
Committee level in 2015 We hired three new
executives Thorsten Holl — President EMEA,
Serge Zimmerln — Hurman Resources Director
and Joe Hubback — Strategy Director Thisis 2
significant influx of talent 1o the Group We alse
announced that Venu Raju would succeed
Wolfgang Sondermann, who 15 retinng after a
distinguished Keller career, as Engineering and
Operations Director in the fourth quarter of 2016

We combined two Divisions to form Asia Paafic
(APAC) under the leadership of Mark Kliner
This has a number of natural advantages — scale
effects sharing relative strengths on preducts
reducing costs and an increased ability to grow

n Asia The ntegration i1s progressing well

Keller i1s well placed and I am confident this
strategy will fulfil our goal of being the best
gectechnical solutions company i the world

Qperating review

Conditions in our major markets

In the US, expenditure on construction increased
significantly for the fourth consecutive year with
good growth in most segments of the market
Private non-residential construction grew by 12%
whilst In the residential market housing starts
were up 1% year on year, with strong growth

in both single-farmily and muiti-family homes
Growth in public expendrture on construction
continued, up 6% on 2014

In Canada, construction activity in the resources
markets remains very subdued although demand
in the commeraizl and infrastructure segments
fared somewhat better

Conditions in our European markets as a whole
remaim mixed, with Southern Europe In
particular remaining challenging There are some
positive signs In the central European markets of
Germany Poland and Austria, as well as in the UK

Elsewhere there are good opportunities in the
Middle East where our construction markets have
been relatively unaffected by the low oil price
The construction market in South Africa 15
slowing and whilst there are some excrting
oppoertunities elsewhere in Africa, a number are
in the oil and gas sector and ther tming 1s
therefore uncertain Globally, Keller s direct
exposure to oll and gas projects was 6% of
revenue in 2015

Construction expenditure in the Groups Asian
markets remains varied In India we are continuing
to see signs of increasing business confidence, but
the Singapore and Malaysian markets are
relatively quiet

In Australla construction expendsture across
most segments has been subdued for some
tme and 1s showing few signs of iImproving

An exception is the near-shore marine segment
where there remain a number of projects to
upgrade or expand perts and harbours

Alain Michaelis
Chief Executive Officer
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Our markets

Local

National

Global

Competition

Local competition is highly fragmented
comprising many small businesses often
family-owned with limited equipment
capacity and few (or single) product Iines

Types of project

Standard foundations for small to medium
structures, where ground conditions are
relatively straightforward

Keller’'s advantage in this segment
Our structure enables us to compete
with local players for smalt to medium-
sized contracts

Our scale allows us to compete with local
players by giving us access to more productive
equipment and techniques

To find out more please
visit our website wwwhellerco uk

8 KELLER GROUP PLC
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Competition

In Europe competition 1s often owned by
general contractors in the US and Austraha,
these services are usually cutsourced
Independent national competitors tend

to be privately owned

Types of project

As for Local, together with foundations for
larger structures and more complex solutions
for challenging ground conditions

Keller’s advantage in this segment
We have a2 wide network of subsidiary
companies and branch offices employing
local people with knowledge of

— national bullding codes,
— local language and business culture,
- local ground conditions

Our experience and rehability also
differentiates us frem national competitors

Competition

Only very few competitors can clam to
have a truly global capability strong financial
credentials and the ability to offer a full
product range

Types of project

Large-scale projects requiring capacity

or expertise which may not be available
in-country Often direct foreign investment,
where funders or clients prefer to contract
with international partners

Keller’s advantage in this segment
As the largest independent operator with
a global presence we can

= follow known customers into new
geographic markets

— pool our global resources and expertise,

— meet the stringent quality, safety and ethical
standards of our blue-chip customers




Where we operate

From our centres of excellence in more than Algera Ghara Namiba Spam
40 countries around the world we deliver Australia India Netherlands  Swaziland

combinations of industry-leading expertse to Austria indoresa Orman Sweden

the most challenging projects and locations Brazi Italy Panama Swatzerland
Canada hory Coast Peru Turkey
Chile Kazakhstan Poland United Kingdomn
Denmark Lesothc Qatar Urited States
Egypt Malaysia Saudi Arabia
Finland Mexco Singapore
france Morocco Stovek
Germany Mezambique South Afrca

MIIAYIAD
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For a precise understanding of how we
see the markets in which we operate
www kellerco uk

The best of being local

The best of being global

Market drivers

— our wide network of regional offices
allows Keller to be responsive and
competiirve in local markets

— we ¢an join forces across company
and country borders to tackle big
opportunities and challenging jobs

— this, in turn, means that our revenue Is
spread over some 6,000 contracts with
an average value of around £250000

— we share technologies and equipment

- our local people have knowledge of local
ground condrtions

— we exchange best practice and
information across the Group creating
economies of scale

- we can respond to the changing
dynamics of our business in a2 timely
and informed way

-~ an entrepreneurial cutture allows us
to compete 1n an indusiry dominated
by entrepreneurs

— we have common operating rules,
including our safety programme and
Code of Conduct which means that
customers see a consisient Keller
approach, wherever in the world
we operate

— our brand recognrtion 1s unrvalled by
localregional players

~ our finangal strength 1s unrivalled

Throughout the world, we expect the growth
in specialist ground engineering to exceed the

growth in general construction, driven over
the medium-to-long term by those trends set
out below

urbanisation and more large-scale
development projects,

increasing land shortage drving a need to
use more brownfield and marginal land,

infrastructure renewal and expanston,
e g road, ral power,

increasing demand from customers
for complete solutions rather than
just products, and

increasing technical complexity

KELLER GROUP PLC
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Our business model

|
Qur vision

To be the world leader In
geotechnical solutions.

Our business model i1s
evolving to realise our vision
and drive our new strategy.

Understanding the value chain

In providing geotechnical solunions, Keller
operates In the iminal stages of the construction
value chain Whilst the value chain and
construction process varies significantly from
project to project, Keller is typically the first
contractor on-site and the first off-site Ensuring
our work i1s done efficiently 15 criucal for our
customers In saving them money and providing
a sound platform for the remaining work on a
project Our projects are often for a short
duration and the majerity have an average value
of £250,000 We work across the construction
spectrum Very often we will joint venture with
a main contractor on a bid

Depending on the nature of a project, Keller

may provide insights into design and other phases
of the construction process but generally value

15 created and captured principally from our
groundwork activites Our products and services
are not just about foundations for construction
but are most commonly geotechnical solutions
to complex construction projects from solving
for terrain and water pressure in constructing

a dam to the foundations for a major stadium

We are unigue given our market-leading positions
derived from combinations of technology, scale
and customer relationship leadership

Keller was the first company to develop methods
and equipment for the successful deep compaction
of soil in the 1930s and has continued to develop
the equipment and widened its application
Common soil stabilisation technigues include a
combination of vibro-compaction with stene,
concrete or lime columns as well as sod mixing
and injection systems These techniques have
been used by Keller to improve many thousands
of sites around the world

Bullding Infermation Modeliing (BIM) is 2 process
involving the generation and management of
digital representations of phystcal and functionat
characteristics of places Current BIM software
15 used to plan, design construct, operate and
maintain diverse physical infrastructures

Our capabilities to monitor selutions and

our own equipment aperations are providing us
with a compeutive edge as BIM expands in the
construction market

KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Acceunts 2015
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Key inputs

Qur people

— High-quality engineers and operators
capable of delivering world-class solutions

— Strong local relationships with real trust from
aur customers giving us nsight Into market
developments and allowing us to drive for
high-value solutions

- Highly experienced (low staff turnover) means
we are more reliable than the competition

— Specialists, flexible to go to the toughest
problems, ensure the customer gets the
best of Keller

Qur technology

— Broad coverage for all geotechnical solutions
giving us resilience to market changes and
supporung us to lead on innovation

— Keller unique solutons giving improved
customer resulcs and Keller profitability
{see below)

- Bulding Information Modelling (BIM)
capabilities to support digiusanon of
ground engineering (see below)

Our market focus

— Targeting markets that value geotechnecal
solutions

— Selective iInvestment In profitable segments

Qur financial strength
— Strong balance sheet




Engineering

leadership
Extensive
products and
services
Global

How we create and
capture value

Knowledge and
czpability sharing to
build best solutions

Local

Cost-effective
approaches

Operational
excellence

Our business model i1s underpinned
by safety and sustainability

World-class
geotechnical
solutions

Who benefits from that
value creation

Customers
~ Local knowledge with global scale and resource
- Provision of complex geotechnical solutions

Shareholders
— Dividends
- Capital growth

People

- Employment

- Qualifications

- Global and local opportunities

Communiues
— Employment
— Construction of facilities

KELLER GROUP PLC | I
Annual Report & Accounts 2015

MIIAHIAC

ADILVHLS I

IDONVINOI 3 |

IDNVYNYIAOS |

SINIWILVLS TVIDNYNY I



Our strategy

Keller's goal 1s to be the world
leader in geotechnical solutions

In 2015, we continued to make
progress i delivering against our
strategy There are five elements

| 2 KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015

Element

N4

Growing

Growing our product range and
entering new markets, orgarically
and by acquisition

¢

Building
Bullding strong, customer-focused
local businesses

N4

Leveraging
Leveraging the scale and expertise
of the Group

Loig

Enhancing
Enhancing our engineering and
operational capabilities

$

Investing
Investing In cur pecple

Description

We have a set of target product segments based
on growth, profit and strategic considerations

We also have a set of target geographies to
either consalidate market posiuch or open up
new markets

We maintain a short-list of potential acquistions
to help us access target markets where required

Ground engineering is a local business that
demands local expertise and relatignships
‘We will continue to focus on and satisfy the
needs of our customers at local level

Qur businesses evaluate the gquality of ther
customer feedback (amongst other things)

Our businesses offer two routes to value
creation high operational effiaency and
utithsation and/or streng technical differentiation

Keller has globally leading expertise and a
corperate structure that allows us to bring the
best of Keller to every customer engagement
We will be investing in the tools and processes
to make this more effective and efficient

Synergies in operating model wilt be selectively
implemented so that we don't lose local
responsiveness

Keller's scale provides security for customers
and employees through resilience to risk

We are investing in connecting our global
network of engineers and project managers
to share best practices on project execution
eguipment management and maintenance
and technology innovatton

QOur global supply chain 1s optimised to balance
equipment utlisation with efficent transport

We aim to be a leader and investor in
new technologies

We are investing in developing the talent of
our employees to help deliver world-class
solutions 1o our customers as well as creating
opportunities for all to maximise their potential

We continue to strive for leadershp in HSEQ




Explanation

The acquisition of Bencor broadened our
product offering to include dizphragm
wall technology

The acquisrtion of Austral in Western Australia
coupled with our existing operation Waterway
in Eastern Australia, consolidated our market
posrtion in Australia in marine pikng

Business unrts n over 40 countries provide local
knowledge of both markets and ground
condrtions

Business unrts with robust divisional and Group
controls framework.

We have established a Business Development
function focused on capturing our customer
requirements and understanding our
competrtors

Inthe last year we undertook a strategic review
of the Group that resulted in the following
changes

— Merger of our Asia and Austraha Divisions
{APAC) leading to greater capability and
productivity in this Division

— Business unrts are now supported by Group
functions eg Engineering & Operations,
Quality Procurement and Legal, to offer our
greater support and provide more aversight
of our operations from the centre

Engineering & Operations function established
charged with bullding Group capability and
expertise, to deliver superior solutions and
preductivity

Global Product Teams developing minimim
operating standards for the Group and
sharing best practice

We continue to invest above deprecation rates
in our equipment fleet

Executive Committee reinforced

Talent development programme rolled out 1o
our senior management population

Global Leadership Team identified and
programme of commurications is In train

Continued strong emphasis on safety
improvement.

. ]
KPls

Performance
in 2015

-2 3%

Measure

Revenue growth year on year
year on year sales growth,
including acquisttions

Return on capital employed
operating profit before
exceptional tems as a net
return on caprtal employed

20 5%

Operating margins o
operating profit before 6'6A

exceptional tems expressed as
a percentage of revenue

Acadent frequency rate
acadent frequency per 100000 035

hours lost time injuries are
caleulated as any naident
aver one day

Staff curnover rate 5 67
. (+]

managerial professional and
technical staff leaving in the
period other than through
redundancy or normal
retirement, expressed as 2
percentage of staff in

this category
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Strategy in action

Products used

Piling and earth retention

Keller company
Bencor

Technologies used
Dhaphragm walling

Size of contract
US$135m

Customer
US Army Corps of Engineers

During 2015, Keller made two strategic
acquisitions one of which was Bencor in
North America

Bencor s based in Dallas and cperates
throughout the USA and Canada, speaalising
n diaphragm wall technology, a market
segment in which Keller was relatively weak
The acquisition, for US$40m, brought 150
employees and hydro-mulls and associated
equipment into the Group

KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015
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The acquisttion of Bencor supports Keller's
strategy of growing its product range thereby
baing able to offer customers the full spectrum
of geotechnical solutions The acquisition
provides Keller with a modern fleet of
equipment and more importantly the skills,
knowledge and experience to immediately be
a significant player in North America Being part
of the Group, Bencor can now maximise the
opportumty of growing outside of its domestic
market and to expand globally

Bencor has been appointed by the US Army
Corps of Engineers as the Pnncipal Contractor
to carry out repair and upgrade works to this
large earth fill darm

Our works include 715m of cut-off wall up

to 80m in depth that will be installed using
hydromills As thisis a turnkey type project
Keller is also responsible for the working
platform on the top of the dam, new reinforced
concrete welr structures and other associated
geotechnical engineering including exploratory
and verification drilling foundation drilling and
grouting, and the installation of inchned drains




4
I(:?I.I.ER

East Branch Dam,
Pennsylvania, USA
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Strategy in action

Products used

Piling and earth retenticn

Keller company
Austral Construction Pty, Limited

Technologies used
Marine piling

Size of contract
A%80m

Customer
Rio Tinto

The second significant acquisition in 2015 was
Austral Construction Pty, Limited {‘Austral)
Operated from Melbourne, Victoria, the
business has a particular emphasis on marine
piling work and has a significant customer base
in Wastern Australia, an area of potential
geographical growth for Keller

Acquired for an initial consideration of A$42m,
Austral brings |15 employees and material land
and manne-based equipment to Keller

The combination with Keller’s existing martne
business in Australia, Waterway Construction,
gives a truly national footprint and enhances
the Group's ability to compete for large
complex projects

| 6 KELLER GROUP P1LC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015

Both businesses carry out turnkey projects
undertaking other enabling works, 1n addition to
pure geotechnical solutions  Austral Construction’s
unique market position {contractor and
sub-contractor) together with Keller Australia s
business mix, will significantly enhance the
Australian profile in both new and existing
markets and act as a real differenuatorin an
increasingly competitive and mature

market place

Austral Construction was engaged by Rio Tinto
to complete refurbishment works of their
operating Ell ron ore production wharf and
access |etty

The works comprised the design, fabrication,
supply and installation of the new dolphin
structures including marine piling structural steel
installation, structural welding, grouting works,
major electrical and mechanical installations and
corrosion protection The redundant dolphins
also had to be demolished involving sub-sea pile
cutting and off-site disposal

The jetty itself required the fabrication supply
and installation of composite steel and pre-cast
concrete deck modules to replace the redundant
umber decking This included concrete and
groutng works, corresion protection,
deconstruction works and service installauons

These works have extended the life expectancy
of the wharf by at feast 50 years and have
resulted In major safety improvements for the
operaucn of the out-loading facility




4
I(:?I.I.ER

Dampier,
Western Australia
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Strategy in action
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Port of Safi,
Morocco




Products used

8

Ground improvement

Keller company
Keller Fondations Speciales SAS

Technologies used
Vibro-compaction

Size of contract
€75m

Customer
Ministry of Equipment, Transport and Logistics,
Kingdom of Morocco

Keller 1s able to leverage its scale to deliver
major infrastructure projects around the globe
Expertise exists across the Keller Group and by
connecting this knowledge, the best geotechnical
solution can be found for the customer This
engineering and operational capability has been
brought to bear to deliver an offshare ground
improvement project in North Africa

In 2014, Keller began installing off-shore stone
columns to depths of up 10 38m to provide
foundation support in a seismic region for the
new Port of Safi, Morocco The project s due
for completion in 2017

Using experts from its offices in France,
Germany, Spain and Morocco, Keller has
developed a scheme to treat the loose sands and
compressible sediments on the seabed, so that
the breakwater may be constructed without
excessive settlemnent and te eliminate the risk

of slope failure in the event of an earthquake

Speaahst equipment built in Keller's manufacturing
facility in Rechen Germany is being worked
over three shifts, seven days a week

Obviously, there are specific risks when working
off-shore, especially in wanter when waves can
exceed heaights of [0m Working patterns are
therefore carefully planned around the daily
weather forecasts and special contingency
measures have been designed in the event that
the weather turns unexpectedly

KELLER GROUP PLC
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Strategy in action

Q
I.I.ER

STAR Refinery,
Aliaga, Turkey
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Products used

3
X
Anchors, nails and minipiles

Keller company
Keller Grundbau Ges mbH

Technologies used
Ground anchors

Size of contract
€72m

Customer
Yenigun Insaat, Ankara

Whilst Keller has global strength, it is also a
local, customer-focused business By working
with our clients and forming partnerships with
the other project stakeholders we are able to
develop winning solutions

We are currently working on a large slope
stabilisation project in Turkey where by working
with the Principal Contractor we have been able
te set up a production hall to manufacture the
anchors directly on the site Similarly, we have
developed a precast concrete anchor head,
whitch again 15 made at the project {ocation

The Aegean Refinery Project (ARP) 1s one of
the biggest infrastructure projects in Turkey
Permanent anchors, with up to 14 strands and
lengths of 50m are being used 1o ensure that
the soll slopes are stable and can withstand
earthquakes, wath anchor forces of up to 3,000 kN

All the anchors are manufactured directly
on-site 1n a specially butlt anchor hall, allowing
for a fast response to 2ny changes on-site as the
project progresses Anchor heads are precast
concrete plinths developed by Keller especially
for this project They are produced in a field
factory on-site In order to meet the required
quality critera

A new technique for anchor tensioning 1s also
being used which enables the testing and
tensioning of ‘muluple anchors' with only one
tensioning jack LIsing this new stressing technique,
the time involved in the testing and commusstoning
has been dramatically decreased

KELLER GROUP PLC
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Strategy in action

Products used

Q
SR
L

Specialty grouting

Keller company
Keller Lirmted

Technologies used
Compensation grouting

Size of contract
£40m

Customer
BFK Joint Venture

Keller ts the largest geotechnical contractor

in the world, with a strong balance sheet This
makes It possible to be involved In some of the
largest contracts As one would expect, the
Company was heavily involved in the Crossrail
Project, working on many different sites for
different construction teams In all, Keller
secured over £80m of geotechnical work on
this one project alone

Crossrall is currently the largest construcuon
project in Europe Involving the boring of 42km
of twin underground railway tunnel and the
building of 10 new stations, the line commences
in Maidenhead and runs beneath London from
Paddington to Essex and Kent in the East

KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015

22

Due to the size of the tunnels and the large
excavations that were required for the stations,
something had to be done to avold damaging
several timportant and histonie buildings along
the route

Compensartion grouting was pioneered by Keller,
imitially in Germany, and has now been used on
underground projects on five conunents

Driling from deep shafts, only 4 5m in diameter,
Keller drilled and installed over 45km of greuting
pipes under the critical builldings in the heart of
the West End of London Keller subsequently
used these pipes to pump, under high pressure,
grout into the ground, to lift the ground after the
tunnelling machines had passed, compensating
for any settlement By using sophisticated
instrumentation and monitoring it was possible
to contro! movements at the ground surface

to within Imm, protecting London’s assets

and heritage




LLER

Crossrail,
London, UK
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Strategy in action

I.I.ER

Wrigley Field,
Chicago, USA
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Products used

Piling and earth Instrumentation
retention and monitoring

Keller compames
Hayward Baker, Case Foundations and Getec UK

Technologies used

Jet grouning, micropiles, secant piles sheet
pikng ground anchors, bracing, caissons
real-time structure momtoring

Size of contract
US$23m

Customer
Pepper Construcuon Company

Through sharing best pracuce and innovation
across the Group Keller is able to introduce
new products or solutions organcally into new
markets As an example, dry soil mixing, which
was traditonally performed by our Scandinavian
business has been successfully used in Poland,
the UK, the USA Malaysia and Australia, by
transferring the technology in-house

This sharing of new 1deas Is essenual to maintain
a competitive edge, but it also provides fantastic
opportunities for our people to travel to new
regtons and develop their skills One such
transfer of technology is in Instrumentation

and monitoring

Keller companies have utilised a wide range of
geotechnical seluttons for the redevelopment of
Wrigley Field, the iconic, | 00-year-old baseball
park in Chicago

Micropiles have been used to underpin existing
columns to allow for increased loading and jet
grouting was utibsed for both underpinning and as
earth retention to develop a cut and cover tunnel
extending beneath the concourse Keller has also
installed sheet piles that have been used with
internal bracing and anchors and to add to the
‘toolkit large diameter under-reamed or belled
piles have been installed to the underlying rock

It was evrdent from the tender stage that these
works could lead to movement of the structure
during the construction period and it was
therefore agreed to bring monitoning technology
from Getec UK to measure for sertlement and
rotation, using inclinometers, water level cells and
tilt meters The instruments were programmed
to send movement data at |5-minute intervals
and coupled with innovative visualisaton
software this would have alerted the site team
had there been any unexpected movement
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risks can materialise and impact on
both the achievernent of business
strategy and the successful running of
our business A key element in achieving
our strategy and mantamning services to
customers is the management of these
risks Qur risk management strategy s
therefore to support the successful
running of the business by identifying
and managing risks to an acceptable
level and delivering assurances on this

Movement in risk

@ Increased

& No change

& Reduced
KELLER GROUP PLC
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Risk

—

Market risk

A rapid downturn in
our markets

N4

Strategic risks

—

Failure to procure
new contracts

Risk description

Inabibity to mantain a sustainable level of financial
performance throughout the construction industry
market cycde which grows more than mary other
industries during periods of economic expansion and
falls harder than many other industries when the
economy contracts

A falure to continue 1o win and retain contracts on
satisfactory terms and conditions in our existing and
new target markets If competition increases customer
requirements change or demand reduces due t¢
general adverse economic condiions

Losing our market share

Inability to achieve sustainable growth whether through
acquisttion new products new geographies or industry
speciic soltions

Non-compliance with our
Code of Business Conduct

g

Financial risk

—

Inability to finance our business

¢ e

Operational risks
Product and/or solution fallure

Net mantaining high standards of ethics and compliance
in conducting our business ar faling to meet legal or
regulatory requirements

Losing access to the financing facilities necessary 1o fund
the business

Failure of our product andfor solution to achieve the
required standard

Ineffective management of
our contracts

Fallure to manage our contracts to ensure that they are
delvered on time and to budget

Causing a serious injury or
fatalty to an employee or
member of the public

Failure to maintain high standards of Safety and Qualrty

Not having the right skills
to deliver

Inabilty to attract and develop excellent people to create
a high-quality, vibrant, diverse and flexible workforce




Potenuial )impact

Failure 1o continue in operatton or to meet
our habilities

Fallure to achieve targets for revenue,
profit and earnings

Mitigation

Dwersification of our markets both in terms of geography and market segment
Strong balance sheet

Leveraging the global scale of our Group

Having strong local businesses to address geographic markets

Continually analysing our existing and target markets to ensure we understand the opportunities that
they offer

Structured bid review processes in cperation throughout the Group with well-defined selectivity critena that
are designed to ensure we take on contracts only where we understand and can manage the risks involved

Faillure to achieve targets for revenue,
profits and earnings

Continually seeking to differentiate our offering through service quality, value for money and innovation
A Business Development function focusing on our customers requiremnents and understanding our competitors

Minimising the risk of acquisitions, Indluding getting to know a target company In advance, often working in joint
venture, to understand the operatronal and cultural differences and potental synergies, as well as undertaking
these through thorough due diligence and structured and carefully managed integration plans

Implementing annual efficency and iImprovement programmes to help us remain competitive

Losing the trust of our custemers supplers
and other stakeholders with consequent
adverse effects on our ability to deliver
against our strategy and business objectves

Substantial damage to Keller's brand and/or
large financial penatties

Breach of banking covenants or fallure to
continue in business or meet our labilities

Financral loss and consequent damage 1o
our brand reputation

Having clear pahcies and procedures in respect of ethics, integrity, regulatory requirements and contract
management

Maintaining training programmes to ensure our people fully understand these policies and requirements

Operating and encouraging the use of a ‘whistleblowing facility

Procedures to monitor the effective management of cash and debt induding weekly cash reports and regular
cash forecasting

Continuing to enhance our technological and operational capabilities through investment in our product teams,
project managers and our engineering capabilities

Falure to achieve the margins profits and
cash flows we expect from contracts

Ensuring we understand all of our risks through the bid appraisal process and applying rigorous policies and
processes to manage and monitor contract performance

Ensuring we have high-quality people delrvering projects

Damage to employee morale leading to
an increase In employee turnover rates,
lass of customer supplier and partner
confidence and damage to our brand
reputation in an area that we regard as
a top prionty

A Board-led commitment to achieve zero acadents

Visible managerment commmtment wrth Safety Tours, Safety Audits and Safety Action Groups

Implementing management systems that conform to Occupational Health & Safety Assessment System 18001
Extensive mandatory employee traning programmes

Falure to maintain satisfactory
performance in respect of our current
contracts and falure to deliver our
strategy and business targets for growth

Continuing to develop and implement leadership, personal development and employee engagement
programmes that encourage and support all our people to achieve therr full potential

KELLER GROUP PLC 27
Annual Repert & Accounts 2015

MIIAYTAD |

AD3LvHlLs I

IDNYINEOMI |

IDNVNYIAOD |

SINIWILVIS TVIDNVNY



Principal risks and uncertainties contnued

Risk management

The Board 1s responsible for setting the Group's
risk appetite and ensuring that appropriate risk
management systems are in place The Board
reviews the Groups prinapal risks throughout
the year as part of its normal agenda, adopting
an integrated approach to risk management by
regularly discussing our prinaipal risks In addition
once a year the Board formally assesses the
Group’s principal risks taking the strength of
the Groups control systems and our appetiie
for nsk into account

The Board delegates respeonsibility for day-to-day
risk management to the Executive Committee,
ncluding the identification, evaluatron and
manitoring of key risks facing the Group and the
implementation of Group-wide risk management
processes and contrels

The Audrt Committee keeps the effectivenass

of the Groups risk management systems under
review and reports to the Board on the resuhs of
1ts review The occurrence of any materal control
1ssues serious acadents or major cermmercial
financial or reputational 1ssues, or the identification
of new significant risks, are reparted to the Board
andfor Audit Committee as appropriate

Following changes to the UK Corporate
Governance Code in 2014, and changes to our
strategy and organisation in 2015 we have carried
out a robust assessment of our principal risks and
uncertainties Cur revised principal risks are set
out in the table on pages 26 and 27

Culture

The Board 15 aware that the effectiveness of risk
management Is dependent on behaviours In 206
we will launch a refreshed Code of Business
Conduct to provide a common and consistent
framework for responsible business practices It will
reinforce the standards we expect our people to
follow In their day-to-day activities, no matter
where they work in the world, and tell others that
they can rely on our integrity It will be supported
by our Ethics and Complance programme,

which aims to ensure compliance wrth our

ethical standards
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How we identify risk

Our risk management process has been built 1o
dentify, evaluate, analyse and mitigate significant
risks to the achievement of cur strategy Qur risk
dentification processes seek to idenuiy risks from
both a top down strategic perspectve and a
bottom up local operating company perspective

The Board

The Board has overall responsibility for risk
management the setting of risk appetite and the
implementation of the risk management policy
The Board reviews and challenges the Group s
principal risks on an ongeing basis

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ensures adequate
assurance 1s obtained over the risks that are
identified as the Groups principal risks The
Audit Committee 15 also responsible for the
independent review and challenge of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
ranagement appreach

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee i1s responsible for

the identification, reporting and ongeing
management of risks and for the stewardship

of the risk management approach The Executive
Commrttee reviews and assesses the key
strategic risks 1o the Group and the outputs

of the assessment are sent to the Dhvisional
Presidents for inclusion in ther local risk
assessment exercises

Divisional Presidents

Dwisional Presidents are responsible for the
identification, reperting and ongoing management
of risks In their respective regions The outputs of
these assessment exercises are reviewed and
challenged by the Executive Committee as part
of thelr assessment of the key strategic nsks
facing the Group

Our risk appetite

We use an assessment of the level of risk and our
associated risk appetite to ensure the appropriate
focus 15 placed on the correct risks

Developing the viability statement
In developing the viability statement it was
determined that a three-year penod should
be used, consistent wrth the pericd of the
Group's business planning processes and
reflecting a reasonable approximation of the
maximurm time taken from procuring a
project to completion

Management reviewed the principal nisks and
considered which of these risks might threaten
the Group's viability it was determined that
none of the indmdual risks would in solation
compromuse the Groups viability, and so a
number of different severe but plausible
principal risk combinations were considered

A downside sensitivity analysis as well asa
consideration of any mitigating acuons available
to the Group were applied to the Groups
three-year cash flows forecasted as part of the
business planning process and presented to the
Board for discussion further to review by the
Audt Committee The Board discussed the
process undertaken by management and also
reviewed the results of stress testing
performed to provide an illustration of the
reduction 1n cash flows that would be required
to break the Group s covenants or exhaust alf
avalable cash to ensure that they did not
adversely impact on the Group's viability

The Directors viability statement 1s contained
inthe Directors report on page 67




Resources and relationships

The Boards role is to provide effeciive leadership,
establish overall policy for the Group and monitar
the performance of the operating companies in
relation to our principles The Chief Executive is
ulumately accountable for the Group operating

In a way that 15 socially responsible

Qur ine managers are charged with delvering
performance safely and with integrity supporting
Group policy and providing leadership within
their companies All employees are responsible
for following Group policy with the support,
directton and commitment of ine management

Qur Code of Business Conduct, introduced in
2012 and refreshed in 2016, sets out the Groups
policies and practices that support our principles
Qur programme of communications training and
assurance 15 being updated to support the refresh
and a new externally faciitated whistleblowing
hotline service for employees administered by
Safecall has been put in place

Safety

During the year two employees lost their lives
in a sinkhole acadent on-site In Malaysia The
acadent was investigated by the local authorities
We have put in place support measures for the
families of our deceased employees, have
conducted an internal review of the accident as
well as seelung out expert opinion on causation
Whilst the findings of our internal review suggest
that the inaident could nat have been foreseen
we have taken all possible steps to communicate
the arcumstances and lessons fearnt to our HSE
experts and colleagues working in similar
condrtions across the Group

Progress against our 2015 Group-wide objectives,
which cover a number of high-risk areas within
the business are described below

Reduction in incidents associated with heavy
plant and equipment

The Group continued 1ts focus in this area and
saw a continuing decline in the numbers of heavy
plant and equipment overturning

2015 6 recorded incidents (2014 8)

Figure 2

Reduction in injuries to hands and feet
Implementation of the 'Carry Glove' policy
across the Group saw a continuing reduction in
the number of hand injuries classified as erther
major or lost time

2015 €8 recorded incidents (2014 112)

Qccupatonal heafth and wellbewng

Further to a Group-wide review of our

practices we adopted minmmum standards across
our businesses

Implementation of OHSAS 1800! or an
equivaient standard

Each division continues to work towards
certification by 2018 The Group's Head Office
retained the certification it first gained in 2013

Reduction of our Acadent Frequency Rate (AFR})
We achieved a year on year reduction in our AFR
2015 0352014 03%)

AFR by year

AFR per 100,000 hours for 2012 to 2015 is set
out in figure | below and includes our acquistions
over the period We have seen significant
improvements in safety performance on a

year by year basis

Figure i

Keller Group AFR by year per 100 000 hours worked
12
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77% of cur AFR 1s due to lost time injuries, as
shown in figure 2 below

Keller Group 2015 AFR by Division per |00 000 hours worked
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There are a number of areas where our
business Impacts on society and where we have
responsibiliies which extend beyond our
financial performance The principles we work
by apply to all of us in any of Keller s businesses

Keeping everyone healthy and safe
We believe no one should be harmed as a
result of any work we do — so everyone stays
safe and well

Supporting employees’ rights

and diversity

We value, support and protect the nghts and
dignity of the Individual and the diversrty of our
people —so we are all treated with respect

Maintaining ethical and honest
behaviour

We are always honest, act with integrity and
comply with the law — so everyone trusts us

Staying free from bribery

and corruption

We always make sure we are free from bribery
and corruption and win projects fairly — so
people know our deastons are made for the
right reasons

Keeping our communications open
and responsible

We communicate openly honestly, cdearly and
responsibly — so we stay transparent

Dehlvering excellent customer service
and work with our suppliers to ensure
our standards are adhered to

We wark to meet our custormers needs and
exceed their expectations — so they work with
us again and again We ensure we build
constructive relationships with our suppliers
and they understand our principles and the
standards we operate by

Working within the community

We act responsibly and respectfully towards
the cornmuntties we work in — because we are
apart of them

Protecting our environment

We respect and protect the envircnment, and
minimise eur impact on it — so we safeguard
the future

Standing up for what’s right

We always speak up when we believe our
principles are being undermined — 50 we
uphold our principles together
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Resources and relationships corntnued

Keller can compare 1ts performance with

typical mega projects such as Crossrail and the
2012 Clympic Games, both of which are seen

as exemplars when compared against the UK
construction average Typically the UK
construction industry has an AFR of approximately
0 55/100 000 hours worked, Crossrall compares
slightly better wath 0 54/100 000 hours and the
2012 Olympic Games at 0 16/100 000 hours
Keller compares very favourably when comparing
the number of days after which an inaident
becomes recordable Keller uses over one day
whereas the above projects used the statutory
definiions of over three days

Divisional AFR
Arnual AFR over the past three years shows

sigruficant improvement across the Group
since 2013

AFR by year
Division 2015 2014 2013
Asta 058 064 078
Australia 026 035 087
EMEA 0.37 042 088
North America 0lz 020 027
Group 035 039 06l

Major Injury Rate

One area that has seen a significant iImprovernent
during 2015 is the rate of major inuries this 1
demonstrated by figure 3 to the right

Reporting of incidents

An area of key focus over the past two years has
been to improve the reporting of minar injuries,
road traffic accidents and near misses Reporting
such incidents is the first step to faclitation of
improved learning and safety management
Figure 4 to the right shows how the reporting
of all three areas has improved since 2013

Our people

Keller employs around 10 000 people worldwide
most of whom are working in front-ine roles
meeting with and delvering for cur customers
We are only as good as our employees which s
why we want to be known as a responsible
employer which people are proud to join

As a Group we believe In treating all employees
with fairness, encouragement and respect and
we do not tolerate any behaviour or attitude that
discriminates against anyone coerces inbimidates
bullies or harasses others or threatens them
with verbal or physical violence We support
every indimvdual s human rights and refuse the
use of child labour and forced labour under

any circumstances

We promote working together o create an
environment where everycne at Keller has equal
opportunities to achieve their full potential,
diversity can flourish everyone is respected

and talent 1s recognised and developed No
employee will be discrminated against due to
their age gender, race, religion, national origin
sexual preference or gender identity This is not
only about ‘being far', it also makes sound
business sense
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Figure 3
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In addition to safety technical and competency-
based traming management training programmes
operate at a Group and at a divisional level

One of the ways in which we measure how well
we are doing as an employer is to measure our
staff turnover, and this key performance indicator
for each Dmision 1s shown in the Operating review

Duversity

We believe that equal opportunrty means hiring
and retaining the best people developing all
employees to therr potential and using their
talents and resources to the full Diversity of
people skills and abilities 1s a strength which will
help us to achieve our best

At the end of the finanoial year, the breakdown
of male/ferale employees was as follows

Male  Female
Main Board Directors
{inc Non-executve Directors) 6 2
Directors/senior managers 168 t
Managers 1,174 128
All employees” 8165 842

Excludes contractors

Communities

Geotechnical community

Our companies take a leadership rele within their
industry by providing employees customers
suppliers and potential employees with technical
papers, serinars field trips and site visits Staff
from companies throughout the Group matntan
close contact wrth partner universities in order to
share best practice and provide examples of their
leading-edge engineering

Many of our senior managers play key roles in the
geotechnical construction industry’s professional
associations and activities around the world getting
irvolved in writing buillding codes, speafications,
guidelines and industry-wide safety inrtiatives

Wider community

In terms of engagement with the wider
community in which we work we are generally
working for a main contractor, who s the party
responsible for consuliing with any commurnuty
affected by the project Qur work comes at the
outset of a project and we are typically on and off
the project very quickly and our job sites are
often in remote locations where we have no
interface with members of the public There are
occasions when we are working in buillt-up areas
or In proximity to the public such as the London
Crossrail and Victora Station Upgrade projects,
and on any such projects in particular we strive to
reduce our noise and dust levels and to conduct
our work in a considerate manner

Typically where we have some community
engagement 11 1s by supporting our employees
when they get nvolved with commurity groups
and tocal charries

Ultimately, we want to be a sustainable business
which earns the respect of all of our stakeholders
by taking seriously our wider responsibiliies
Looking ahead, we am to bring greater definiion to
our sustamabilty agenda as we continue 1o nvest
In our people, technology systems and processes
to enhance both our business performance and
our reputation as a good corporate atizen

Environment

Greenhouse gas reporting

Here we report the quantrty of greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions for the year ended

3| December 215 We have adopted the
International Greenhouse Gas Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
in doing so we have fulfilied our requirements
concerning GHG emissions under The
Companies Act 2006 (Stratepic Report and
Directors Report) Regulations 2013 No 1970

Reporting boundares

To the best of our knowledge we have ncluded
all material emission sources which fall within the
boundaries of cur consclidated accounts

All direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope 2) ermissions
are reported In absolute tonnes equivalent CC,
GHG included are carbon dioxicde methane and
nitrous axide emissions from the combustion of fuels
menitioned below and carbon dioxide emissions
fram the consumption of purchased electrcity

—~ Scope | — Direct GHG emussions combustion
of diesel petrol gas, oll and LPG

- Scope 2 — Indirect GHG emissions purchased
electricity consumed

Data gaps and exclusions

Since adopting the International Greenhouse Gas
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard in 2013, we have worked on improwving
the coverage and accuracy of the reporting

This is an engoing exerase and for the second
year running the number of data gaps has reduced

Last year 98% of units within the Group reported
some data This year all units reported some data
on their primary emission sources including
entrties acquired during the year 2015 We have
accounted for these new acquisiicns 1N our
calculation of the 2015 footprint Units also
report more complete datasets than last year —
more fuels reported and better coverage for

the whole year

Results
Summary Scope | and 2 GHG emussions for the
Keller Group are shown below for 2014 and 2015

Global GHG emissieons datain tonnes of CO.e

Qur total footprint for the year 2015 has
decreased by | 2%, broadly in line with the
Groups reduction in revenue However our
carbon intensity has increased by | 2% from 112
to 114 tonnes CO.e per £m of revenue This
increase 1s due to a number of factors ncluding
more complete reporting

Third-party assurance statement

Keller Group plc appointed Anthesis Consuiting
Group to provide independent assurance on

the 2015 Scope t and Scope 2 GHG accounts
presented above Their summary opinion s
provided below (full opinion and recommendations
are available an request)

Based on our review, we are not aware of any
material modificauons that should be made wo
Keller Group plc s assertion that their Scope |
and 2 group Inventory Is In confermance with
the requirements concerning greenhouse gas
emissions under The Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013 No 1970, following the
methodoelogy of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
Cerporate Accounong and Reporting Standard

Anthesis Consulting Group 12 February 2016

10,000

Keller employees worldwide

39%

Reduction in imuries to hands and feet

2015 2014
Emissions from
Scope | — Combustion of fuel
and operation of faciities 168,392 170031
Scope 2 — Electricity, heat,
steam and cooling purchased
for own use 9,032 9531
Total 177,424 179,562
Intensity measurement
Absolute tonnes equivalent
CO,e per £m of revenue 114 12

0.35

Accident Frequency Rate (AFR)
per 100,000 hours worked
(2014 039)
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Executive Committee

The role of the Committee 1s to
assist the Chief Executive in

— developing and implementing strategy
operational plans budgets, palices
and procedures,

— menitoring operating and financial
performance

— assessing and controlling risks

~— pricritising and allocating rescurce, and

— monrtoring competrtive forces in each
area in which we operate

3 2 KELLER GROUP PLC
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I Alain Michaels
Chief Executive
Age 49
Nauonalcy Briush

Alain was appointed CEO of Keller in May 2015

A Mechanicat Engineer by training, he was previously
Group Operations Director of Rolls-Rayce plc
where he also served as a major divistonal head

He has ako held sentor leadership positions at
Tenneco a Tier | automotive supplier and at
Wolseley the building products distributor Atain
began his career as a consutting engineer at Arup

2 James Hind
Finance Director
Age 51
Nationahty British

Jarmes was appointed Finance Director in 2003
after jaining the Group from D S Smith plc
where he was Group Finanaal Contreller Prior
tothat after qualifying as an accountant James
worked in the New York office of Coopers &
Lybrand advising on mergers and acquisitions

3 Wolfgang Sondermann
Engineering and Operavons Director
Age 65

Nanonality German

A Geotechnical Engineer by traiming Wolfgang
joined the Group in 1986 and was appointed to
the Board in 2003 In January 2016 Wolfgang
was apponted Engineering and Operations
Director In 2014 Wolfgang was apponted

as Chairman of the Board of the German
Geotechnical Society (ODGGT) a technical and
scientific setiety dedicated to the science and
application of soil and rock as a foundation and
construction matenal ‘Wolfgang will retire
from the business in 2016

4 Yenu Raju

Engineering and Operatons Director
(Designate)

Age 55

Nationality Indian

A Geotechnical Engineer by training, Venu joined
the Group 1n 1994 Following appointments as
Managing Director Keller Singapore & Malaysia
in 1999 and as Business Unit Manager Keller

Far East in 2009, Managing Director, Asia and

10 the Executive Committee 1n 2012, Venu was
appointed Engineering and Operations Director
{Designate) in 2016

5 Mark Kliner
President of APAC
{Asia-Pacific region)
Age 5l

Natronahty Briush

Mark joined the Group in 2006 and was
appointed as Managing Director of Piing
Contractors in 2007 and CECQ of Keller Australia
in 2010 Following the merger of Keller Australia
and Keller Asia in January 2016 he was appointed
President of APAC Mark was appainted to the
Executve Committee in 2012 and s a Cwil and
Structural Engineer by qualfication

6 John Rubnight

President of North America
Age 32

Nationality American

John joined the Group in 1986 He was apponted
as Senior Vice-President Southern Region of
Hayward Baker in 2005 President of Hayward
Baker in 2011 and as Managing Directer, Keller
North America in 2013 This tritle was changed

to President of Narth America with effect from
January 2016 John was appointed to the
Executive Committee n 2012 He s a Civil
Engineer by qualification

7 Thorsten Holl

President of EMEA

(Eurcpe, Middle East and Africa)
Age 46

Nationality German

Thorsten was appointed President of EMEA
with effect from 16 November 2015 Thorsten
has held a number of leadership roles with ABB
and the Alstom Group, where he led several of
1ts International businesses, including in China
where he buitt up a number of jomnt ventures
Most recently, he led the ARVOS-Group
{Alstom s Steam Auxiiary Components division
as independent spin-off) as CEO — which he
successfully developed as a stand-alone business

8 Michael Sinclair-Willlams
HSEQ Director

Age 54

Nationalty British

Michae! holds a PhD i1 Risk/Quality Management
and has a varied background in senior safety

and operational roles He joined Keller in 2012
as Health, Safety & Environment Director and
was appointed to the Executive Committee in
2013 In Jaruary 2016 he was also made
responsible for Qualty

? Kerry Pornitt
Company Secretary
Age 45
Nauonality Briush

Kerry was appointed Company Secretary in 2013
Kerry 15 a Fellow of the IC5A and has 20 years
expereénce as a company secretary in a wide
range of FTSEIQQ companies She joned Keller
as Company Secretary in 2013 and 15 Secretary
to the Board and all its Committees

10 Serge Zimmerhn
Human Resources Director
Age 51

Nationahey French

Serge was appointed Human Resources Director
in December 2015 He has extensive experience
n general management, human resources and
communications His 25 years of global
assignments cover more than 40 countries,
including Africa, Asa Europe the Middle East
and North and South America These include
international experience in the construction
industry with Bouygues Group

Il Joseph Hubback
Strategy Director
Age 39

Nationality Britsh

Joseph was appaointed Strategy Director in
January 2016 Joseph was previously a Partner

at McKinsey & Company in London where he
worked with chents in the engineering and
high-tech industries Prior to McKinsey he held

a variety of roles with ICl over a |0-year perod
He started in project engineering building
factories before moving into operations and
supply chain management and then fimnishing off in
sales roles leading accounts in EMEA and globally
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Operating review

North America

Results summary and KPls

Revenue (£m)

£851.2m

2015 8512
2014 7756

Operating profit (m)’

£76.4m

2015 764
2014 599

Qperating margin (%)

9.0%

2015 g0
2014 77

Return on net operating assets {%)"

Accdent Frequency Rate

Staff turnover (%)

2015 22
2014 17

In North America our total revenue increased
by 10% Adjusting for acquisiions and translation
differences, like-for-like revenue was up 2%
The iull year operating profit of £76 4m (2014
£599m) reflects a much improved result from
our US businesses partly offset by lower profits
in Canada

us

Qur US business had a very strong second half
buillding on the good progress made in the first
half as construction activity continues to improve
across the country

Cur largest North American business Hayward
Baker, had another good year in 2015 The
business improved 1ts results in the year despite
having fewer major projects proving the strength
of 1ts business mode! of performing a wide range
of small to medium sized centracts across a broad
range of products and geographies

Australia

2015 Q12
20014 020

Cur US piling companies performed very well,
partcularly Case and H| Foundation which had
record years on the back of strong regional
markets and an excellent performance on a
number of large projects Highlights for Case
included major projects working on the installation
of catenary poles on rail ines and at a hydroelectric
plant at Red Rock Dam in lowa Hf Foundation
benefited from buoyant conditions in its dormestic
south Florida market successfully completing the
foundations for a number of landrmark projects

in Miami, often working with other Keller companies
to provide multe-product solutions

Bencor the diaphragm wall company acquired in
August has been successfully integrated into the
Group Waork on 1ts US$135m project to repair
and upgrade the East Branch Dam in Pennsylvania
15 progressing 1o plan

2015 7
2014 13

Sunceast the Group's post-tension business
which mainly serves the residential construction
market recorded a strong performance, taking
full advantage of the increase in housing starts in
the year

Canada

Keller Canada has struggled in very difficult
market conditions but managed to record a smal!
profit helped by further reductions in averheads
Despite much reduced revenue gross marging
held up well and the business successfully
performed the only major piling project in the
year in the Alberta ol sands On a positive note,
we have just been awarded a C$43m mulu-
product techrically demanding project in
downtown Toronto in connection with the
expansicn of the city s metro system

Results summary and KPls

Revenue (£m)

£16}.5m

Operating profit {(£m)*

£/ 2m

Operating margin (%)

4 5%

2015 1615 2015 72 2018 45

2014 2613 20014 157 2014 60
Return on net operating assets (%)" Accudent Frequency Rate Staff turnover (%)

2015 4 2015 026 2018 e

2014 30 2014 035 2014 9

Awustrahian dollar revenue decreased by around 30%
and aperatng profit by nearly 50% despite a good final
settlement on the Wheatstone contract This reflects
avery difficult market for our traditenal foundation
businesses and having no replacement contract of near
equivalent size for Wheatstone The operating margin
also dedined followang the condusion of that project

In response to the difficult market conditions,

we announced In November a merger of the
Groups three piling businesses nto one to be
branded Keller Foundations Thus merger s
proceeding to plan and has been well received
by both customers and employees As a result of
this and other cost-saving reasures iImplemented
during the year we have reduced our Australian
overheads by A$7m on an annualised basis
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In contrast 1o the construction market as a2 whole,
the near-shore marine segment has remained
robust and our businesses focusing on this
segment performed well Waterway had an
excellent year and Austral which was acquired

In July 2015, has had an encouraging start as part
of Keller

In the last two months Keller Australia has won
two large projects the construction of Mayfield
MNo7 Wharf (A$43m) In Newcastle, New South
Wales and the foundations for the next phase
of a major commercral development in Sydney
(A$37m) As aresult of these other contract
awards and the acquisttion of Austral the
Australian order book 15 now 20% higher than
this time last year

Organisational changes

With effect from | january 2016, the Asia and
Australia divisions were merged to create a new
Asia-Pacific (APACY division, under one
leadership team headquartered in Singapore
The new division provides much needed resource
and capability to ensure we take advantage of the
opportunrties within the fast-growing Asia area
and a number of scale efficencies The new
dmvision makes up around 20% of the Group's
revenue (North America being over 50% and
EMEA around 30%) providing a better balanced
portfolie Going foerward we will report the
Group's results in three gecgraphic divisions
North America EMEA (Eurcpe Middle East

and Africa) and APAC




Europe, Middle East & Africa (EMEA)

Results summary and KPls

Revenue (£m)

£441.5m

Operating profit {(£m)’

£21.3m

Operating margin (%}

4 8%

2015 4415 2015 213 2015 48
2014 451 5 2014 129 2014 29
Return on net operating assets (%)™ Acadent Frequency Rate Staff turnover (%)

2015 14 20015 0137 2015 5

2014 8 2014 042 2014 14

In sterling terms revenue in EMEA as a whole
decreased by 2% n 2015 On a constant currency
basis however revenue was 5% up on 2014
Operating profit grew sigrificantly and the
operating margin increased by nearly 2% to 4 8%,
the highest level for six years, reflecting the
benefit of continuing business Improvement
initiatives and a good performance on our major
contract in the Caspian region

Europe

Desprte the mixed market conditions in Europe,
our businesses improved their results through a
focus on cost control, risk management and
careful contract selection

QOur businesses in central Eurcpe underpinned
this impravement Keller Poland benefited from
the infrastructure mvestment in the country
and was recently awarded a €(7m ground

Asia

improvement contract n connection with the
upgrade of the 57 motorway in northern Poland
Germany once again reported an excellent result
and the Groups Austrian business performed
well In a compettive market The business is
making good progress on the €31m St Kanzian
contract, the major greuting project on the
Koralm railway line between Graz and Klagenfurt

The UK business also had a better year in 2015
working on a wide variety of commercial and
infrastructure prajects Much effort is currently
being devoted to ensure Keller secures significant
work on the major infrastructure projects
scheduled for the next few years in the UK

Conditions in our larger markets in Southern
Europe remain very challenging The French
censtruction market remains subdued whilst
volurnes in Spain are still at very low levels

The European business has continued to move
people and equipment around the region to
those areas where there 1s more work and to
support major projects elsewhere in the world

A good example of this was in reallocating
resources from Eastern Europe to the Caspian
region to undertake the major project in that area

Middle East and Africa

Competition in the Middle East remains tough but
the Group in¢reased its profit from the region This
performance was aded by a good result in Saud)
Arabia and a number of contract wins in Qatar
where wrthin two years of starting a business, we
have already bult a reputation for rellabiity and qualrty

Franki Africa had a good year, significantly increasing
both revenue and prefit on the back of a strong
performance in South Africa and the successful
completion of Ada Phase 2 a major jetty project
off the coast of Ghana

Results summary and KPIs

Revenue (£m)

£108 2m

Operating profit (£m)’

£4.5m

Operating margin (%)°

4.7%

2015 108 2 2015 45 2015 41

2014 13 2014 83 2014 75
Return on net operating assets (%)™ Accident Frequency Rate Staff turnover (%)

2015 7 2015 0 58 2018 4

2014 15 2014 064 2014 "
After a very disappointing first half both revenue and  The Malaysian construction market slowed India

profit picked up significantly in Asia in the second
half of the year For the year as a whole, revenue
was broadly flat but profit was down significantly,
reflecting the break-even performance in the first
haif The operatng margi was 4 2%, down from 7 5%

ASEAN

Despite 2 much improved secend haif Keller's
ASEAN businesses as a whole had a disappointing year
with revenue broadly flat and profit much reduced

In Singapore the market was quiet with no
growth in commercial construction and a virtual
stop in projects for the oil and gas industry In
addition, we suffered from significant delays on
our major vibro-compaction contract at Changl
arport for reasons beyond the Groups control

significantly in the year as a result of the fall in the ol
price This slowdown combined with a delay on one
of our larger projects, meant that our traditional
Malaystan business had a disappointing 2015
Encouragingly, however Ansah, the small driven
piling business acquired in 2014 far exceeded our
expectations winning some substantial work on the
RAPID petrochemical complex being constructed
by Petronas in south eastern Malaysia In totat,
Keller's work on RAPID will total nearly US$50m

Towards the end of 2015, we won our first major
ground improverment project in Indonesia Thisis a
US$25m contract to provide vibro-compaction
works at Plurt City, a newly created group of
islands near Jakarta

Keller India performed well in 2015 helped by
an Improving constructron market The business
has entered the near-shore marine construction
market, leveraging off existing Keller expertise
n Australia

" Before exceptonal items

" Operating profit before exceptional tems expressed as
a percentage of average net operating assets (including
goodwill acquired through acquisitons) Net operating
assets excludes net debt tax balances deferred
consideration and net defined benefit pension kabilities
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Financial review

Earnings per share'
Increased to 86.4p,
an increase of 5%

James Hind
Finance Director
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Results

Trading results’

Group revenue for the year was £1,562 4m, down
2% on 2044 and down 4% after stripping out the
effects of acquisitions and foreign exchange
movements This decrease was eniirely due to
Austraha where revenue fell by almost £100m

in the year as a result of the completion of the
Wheatstone contract, the Group's largest ever
project and a continuing dechine i the Australian
construction market On a constant currency
basis the Groups other three divisions all
reported ncreases in revenue

EBITDA was £155 5m compared to £14] 9m

in 2014, and operating profit was £1034m, an
increase of 12% on the £92 Om generated in 2014
The Group operating margin increased from 5 8%
to 6 6% Thisincrease 15 due to a combination of
operational Improvements, some good final
project settlements and improving market
condrtions in some countries, most notably

the US from where Keller derves almost 50%

of its revenue

In North America as a whele which represented
54% of Group revenue, operating profit increased
by 28% from £599m in 2014 to £76 4m n 2015

In constant currency, revenue was up 3% and
operating profit ncreased by 19%, reflecting an
improved performance across virtually ali the
Groups US businesses in part due to the
continuing steady improvement in the US
censtruction market Our business in Canada
continues to experience very challenging market
condrtions, but sull made a small profit In the year

In EMEA conditions in our key markets remamed
mixed but across the region as a whole there
were signs of improvement, partcularly in
Northern Europe and the Middle East White
reported revenue decreased shightly it was up
5% on a constant currency basis and operating
profit mncreased from £129mto £21 3m This
improvement in profitability was mainly due o
excellent performances from our businesses in
Central and Fastern Europe, good progress on
the major project i the Caspian region and a
strong result from Franks Africa

Revenue in Asia was broadly flat and operaung
profit decreased from £8 3mn 2014 to £4 5m
in 2015 This reduction was almost wholly in the
first half of the year due to delays in the timing
of some large projects and challenging market
conditions in Malaysia

In Australia revenue was down by nearty 40%
and areund 30% on a constant currency basts
Operating profit was £72m down from £157m
in 2014 Thus reflects the substantially reduced
coniribution from Wheatstone and the very
difficult market conditions faced by our
foundation businesses

Net finance costs’

Net finance costs increased from £6 9m in 2014
to £77min 2015 This increase 15 attributable to
lower non-cashr iIncome from financial assets
Net interest payable on the Groups net debt
was £6 5m, asimilar level to 2014

£1034m

Operating profit'

Operating margin from continuing operations (%)°

2015 66

2014 58

2013 54

2012 37

W00 25

2010 41

2009 74

2008 100

2007 12
2008 104

Before exceptional items

Covenant Current

Test hmit  position”
Net debt EBITDA < 3x | 5%
EBITDA interest cover > 4y 22 2%
Net worth >3200m  £3305m

Calculated in accardance with the covenant with certain
adjustments 1o net debt and net interest and EBITDA
annualsed for acquisuions

Investment (£m)

2015 126 7

2014 68 6

2013 2452
2012 337

2011 379

Capital expenditure Acqusshions

Dividend per share (pence)

2015 171
2014 2512
2013 240

2012 28

2001 228

2010 228

2009 2175

2008 207

2007 180

2006 156

Cash flow history” — profits = cash

2015
2014
2013

2012
2011

2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

EBITDA — Group operating cash flow
From continuing operations

' Before pre tax excepuonal items of £394m (2014
£569m) £31 2m of this relates to a partal impawrment of
the Keller Canada goodwill balance The balance relates
primarity to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets
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Financial review contnued

Excepuional items

Exceptional tems in 2015 totalled £394m,

all of which are non-trading items relating to
acquisitions £31 2m of this relates to a partial
imparrment of the goodwill which arose on the
acquisiton of Keller Canada in 2013 This business
15 heavily exposed to construction in the Canadian
oil sands region, which has reduced dramatically
following the substantial fall in the price of all
The remaining goodwill relating to Keller Canada
amounts to £276m The other 2015 exceptional
rtems primanly relate to the amortisation of
other intangible assets arising on the acquisition
of businesses

Tax

The Group's effective tax rate before exceptional
itemns was 34 5%, shghtly below the 2014 effective
rate of 349% The effective tax rate appears high
compared to the UK statutory rate because of
the geographic mix of profits with around 70%
of the Group's 2015 pre-exceptional profit befare
tax being earned in the US where the combined
federa! and state corporate tax rates total

nearly 40%

An exceptional tax credrt of £3 Om has been
reflected on the 2015 exceptional items This
comprises £7 7m of credits on the exceptional
charges, partly offset by a £4 7m write-down of
the deferred tax asset in Canada as a result of
the Keller Canada goodwill imparrment

Profit for the period

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders
before exceptional items was £62 7m, a 13%
increase on 2014 Profit for the period after
exceptional tems totalled £26 3m {2014 loss

of £12my)

Earnings and dividends

Earnings per share (EPS) before exceptional tems
increased to 86 4p (2014 75 3p) an increase of
15%, in hne with the increase in the Group's profit
after tax

EPS after exceptional tems was 35 5p {2014 loss
per share of 4 2p)

The Board has recommended a final dividend of
18 3p per share, which brings the total dividend
for the year to 27 |p, a 7 5% increase on 2014 The
2015 dwidend 1s covered 3 2x times by earnings
before exceptional items

3 8 KELLER GROUP PLC
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Cash flow and financing'?

The Group has always placed a high priority en
cash generation and the active management of
working capital In 2015, cash generated from
operations before exceptional items was
£1423m representing 92% (2014 |17%) of
EBITDA befare exceptional items This continues
the Group's excellent record of converting profits
into cash, wrth the aggregate of the last 10 years
of cash generated from operations representing
99% of EBITDA Year-end working capital was
£97 Im, which 1s below the level at the end of
2014, despite making two acquisitsons during the
year Net capital expenditure totalled £699m
compared to depreciation and amortisation

of £52 Im

At 3t December 2015 net debt amounted to
£1830m (2014 £1022m) The increase is mainly
due to expenditure of £52 5m on acquisitions
during the year and an exceptional cash cutilow
of £27 5m relating o the exceptional contract
provision announced in 2014 Based on net assets
of £334 Om, year-end gearing was 55%

The Group's term debt and committed faclities
comprise US$165m of US private placements
maturing between 2018 and 2024 and a £250m
muiti-currency syndicated revolving credit facility
expinng In September 2019 At the year end the
Group had undrawn committed and uncommittad
borrowing faclities totalling £153 5m

The most significant covenants in respect of our
main borrowing facilities relate to the ratio of net
debt to EBITDA EBITDA interest cover and the
Group's net worth The Group 1s operating well
within all of its covenant limits

Capital structure and allocation

The Group's caprtal structure 15 kept under
constant review taking account of the need
for and availability and cost of various sources
of finance

The Groups objective is to deliver long-term
value to its shareholders whilst mamntaining a
balance sheet structure that safeguards the
Group's financal positien through economic
cycles Inthis context, the Board has established
clear priorities for the use of caprtal In order of
priority these are

1 To fund profitable crganic growth
opportunities

1 To finance bolt-on acquisitions that meet the
Group's investment criteria

- To pay ordinary dvidends at a level which
allows dwidend growth through the cycle

v Where the balance sheet atlows, to deploy
funds for the benefit of shareholders in the
most appropriate manner

The deployment of funds 1o shareholders other
than through ordinary dividends is unlikely to be
considered where it might result tn the Group's
net debt exceeding | 5x EBITDA after taking
accaunt of other investment opportunities and
the seascnality of cash flows Such deployment
could include using the existing authority to buy
back the Company's shares




Pensions

The Group has defined benefit pension
arrangements in the UK Germany and Austria
The Group closed 1ts UK defined benefit
scheme for {uture benefit accrual with effect
from 31 March 2006 and existing active
members transferred to a new defined
contribution arrangement

The fast actuanial valuatien of the UK scheme
was as at 5 April 2014, when the market vaiue

of the schemess assets was £35 Bm and the
scheme was 77% funded on an ongoing basis
Following the valuation, the level of contributions
increased margnally to £1 6m a year, a level
which will be reviewed following the next
triennial actuarial valuation

The 2015 year-end 1AS 19 valuation of the UK
scheme showed assets of £38 2m habilities of
£48 5m and a pre-tax defiat of £10 3m

In Germany and Austria, the defined benefit
arrangements only apply to certain employees
who joined the Group pricr to 1991 The IAS 19
valuation of the defined benefit ebligation totalled
£12 8m at 31 December 2015 There are no
segregated funds to cover these defined benefit
abligations and the respective labilities are
included on the Group balance sheet

All other pension arrangements in the Group are
of a defined contribution nature

Management of financial risks

Currency risk

The Group faces currency risk principally on its
net assets most of which are 1n currencies other
than sterling The Group aims to reduce the
impact that retranslation of these assets might
have on the balance sheet by matching the
currency of its borrowings where possible with
the currency of its other net assets The majorrty
of the Groups borrowings are held in US dollars
Canadran dollars, Euros Australian dollars
Singapore dollars and South African rand in
order to provide a hedge against these currency
net assets

The Group manages its currency flows to
minimise currency transaction exchange risk
Forward contracts and other derwative financial
instruments are used to hedge significant individual
transactions The majority of such currency flows
within the Group relate to repatriation of profits,
intra-Group joan repaymenis and any foreign
currency cash flows associated with acquisitions
The Group's foreign exchange cover 1s executed
primarily in the UK

The Group does not trade in financial
instruments nor does it engage In speculative
derwative transactions

Interest race risk

Interest rate risk 1s managed by mixing fixed
and floating rate borrowings depending upon
the purpose and term of the financing As at
31 December 2015, 87% of the Groups
third-party borrowings bere interest at
floating rates

Credit risk

The Group's principal financiz! assets are trade
and other receivables, bank and cash balances and
a limited number of investments and derivatives
held tc hedge certan of the Group's liabilities
These represent the Group s maximum exposure
1o credit risk In relation to financial assets

The Group has stringent procedures to manage
counterparty risk ang the assessment of
customer credit risk 1s embedded in the contract
tendering processes Customer credit risk is
mitigated by the Groups relatively smali average
contract size, s diversity, both geographically and
in terms of end markets, and by taking out credit
insurance n many of the countries in which the
Group operates No individual customer
represented more than 5% of revenue in 2015

The counterparty risk on bank and cash balances
s managed by hmiting the aggregate amount of
exposure to any one nstitution by reference

to their credit rating and by regular reviews of
these ratings

James Hind
Finance Director

! Before pre-tax excepuonal nerns of £394m (2014 £56 %)
£3F 2m of this refates to a partial impairment of the Keller
Canada goodwill balance The balance relates pnmanily to
the amortisation of acquired intangble assets

? Before £275m cash outflow in 2015 relating 1o the 2014
excephonal contract provision

Our Strategic report from pages 4 to 39
has been reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors on 29 February 2016

By order of the Beard

Bl

Kerry Porritt
Company Secretary

29 February 2016

KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015

39

MIIALIAC

ADILvdLS ‘

AINVIWHOAHId I

IONYNHIAOD |

SLNIWILVES TVIDNYNIL l




Corporate governance statement

Board of Directors

| Roy Frankhn
Chairman

Age 62
Nauonality Britsh

Roy was appointed to the Board in 2007 and became Chairman of the
Board and the Nomination Cormmittee in 2009 He was formerly Chief
Executive of Paladin Resources plc and Group Managing Director of
Clyde Petroleum plc, following various servor management posts at BP
Roy's background in the international o and gas sector brings with it an
understanding of what 1t takes to operate within challenging markets

Roy 1s Deputy Chairman of Statoll A/S and 1s 2 Non-executive Director

of the Australan-hsted company Santos Ltd He is also an Adwisory Board
Member of Kerogen Capital and 1s Chairman of privately held Cuadrilla
Resources Holdings Limited Roy has been appointed as Non-executive
Director of Amec Foster Wheeler plc the British muftinationat consultancy,
engineering and project management company

2 Alain Michaelis
Chief Executive
Age 49
Naucnality British

Alan was appointed CEO of Keller in May 2015 A Mechanical Engineer by
traming he was previously Group Operations Director of Rolls-Royce ple
where he also served as a major divisional head He has also held senior
leadership positions at Tenneco, a Tier | automotive supplier, and at
Wolseley the building praducts distributor Alain began his career as

a consutting engineer at Arup
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3 James Hind
Finance Director
Age 51
Nauonality British

James was appointed Finance Director in 2003 after joining the Group from
D S Smith plc where he was Group Finanaal Centrolter Prior to that, after
qualiying as an accountant, James worked in the New York office of
Coopers & Lybrand advising on mergers and acquisitions

4 Wolfgang Sondermann
Engineering and Operatons Director
Age 65

Nauonality German

A Geotechnical Engineer by traming Wolfgang joined the Group in 1986
and was appointed 1o the Board 1n 2003 In January 2016, Wolfgang was
appointed Engineering and Operations Cirector In 2014, Wolfgang was
appointed as Chairman of the Board of the German Gectechnical Society
(DGGT), a technical and scientific society dedicated 1o the science and
application of soll and rock as a foundation and construction material
Wolfgang will retire from the business in 2016

5 Ruth Cairme

Independent Non-executive Director
Age 62

Naticnality Briush

Appointed to the Board in 2010 Ruth ts a member of the Nomination
Audrt and Health, Safety & Environment Committees and 1s Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee




A physicist by background Ruth's strategic and commeraal evperience were
gained within Shell where she held a number of senior international roles,
most recently as Executive Vice President Strategy and Planning before her
retirement in 2014 Ruth 15 a Non-executive Director of Assocrated British
Faods plc and Rells-Reyce Holdings pic

6 Paul Withers

Senior Independent Director
Age 59

Nationality Briuish

Appointed to the Board in 2012 and a member of the Audit Nomination
Remuneration and Health Safety & Environment Committees Paul is also
the Senior Independent Directar He quabified as 2 Chartered Mecharucal
Engineer and was Group Managing Director at BPB plc the international
building materials business, where he spent his executive career He is a
Non-executive Directar of Devro plc and Premier Farnell plc

7 Chnis Girling

Independent Non-executive Director
Age 62

Nauonality Britsh

Chris was appointed to the Board in 2011 and is a member of the
Remuneration, Nomination and Health, Safety & Environment Committees
and s Chairman of the Audit Committee

A Chartered Accountant by training, Chris was formerly Group Finance
Director of Carilhon plc and he brings to Kelier his background in a range
of sectors, as well as recent and relevant financial experience Heisa

Non-executive Director of Workspace Group PLC and South East Water
Limrted and the independent Chairman Trustee for Slaughter and Mays
pension fund

MTIAIIAC |

B Nancy Tuor Moore

Independent Non-executive Director
Age 67

Nationality American

Nancy was appointed to the Board in 2014 and 1s a member of the Audit
Nommation and Remuneration Committees and Chairman of the Health,
Safety & Environment Committee Nancy's extensive International business
experience, together with a proven record in winning and safely delivering
both global and local contracts, was ganed at CHIM Hill, Inc where she
held the board position of Group President and Corporate Sponsor for
Sustainab ity before retiring in 2013 Nancy 1s a Non-executive Director
of Global Foed Exchange and Terracon, Inc and a member of the Board

of Governors for Colorado State University

ADILvHLS I

9 Kerry Porritt
Company Secretary
Age 45

Natonality British

Kerry was appointed Company Secretary in 2013 Kerry s a Fellow of the
ICSA and has 20 years' experience as a company secretary in a wide range
of FTSEICO companies She joined Keller as Company Secretary in 2013
and 1s Secretary to the Board and all its Committees
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Corporate governance statement contnued

Chairman’s introduction

Dear shareholder

tn this part of the Annual Report, we set out the measures that we have
taken to ensure that the Group continues to apply high standards of
corporate governance We have complied with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014 throughout the year, however geod
corporate governance requires much more and | set out below how the
Board has fulfilled its role i this area

At Keller, the Board of Directors 15 accountable for ensuring that the highest
standards of governance facilitate the success of the Company and sustain
this over tme

The Board believes that Keller's effectiveness shoutd be supperted by a
strong governance framework During the year, we reviewed and agreed

a new version of our Code of Business Conduct and in 2016 the Groups
Business Conduct Programme will continue to promote honesty farness
and integrity in relations between the Company, employees and ther work
colieagues, customers suppliers competitors and the communities in which
we work

Crderly succession planning is vital In runming a sustainable business

In May 2015 justin Atkinson retired as CEQ after 25 years with the business
We were delighted to announce the appointment of his successor

Alain Michaehs Further information an haw we dealt wath our new CEO
appointment can be found in the Nominauon Committee report
together with further detal on how the Nominaton Commitiee, under
the Chairmanship of our Senior Independent Director Paul Withers,

1s carrying out the search for my successor

At the end of 2014 an internal Board evaluation was undertaken which
completed in early 2015 The feedback from the evaluation confirmed that
the Board and each of its Committees continue to cperaie effectively and
that each Director continues to make an effective contribution and retaing
a strong commitment to their role The resulting development themes
that arose from the evaluation are discussed on page 49 | have also

set out how we have progressed against the areas we identified for
improvement as part of the 2014-15 review

42 KELLER GROUP PLC
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Comrnunications with our shareholders are given high priority by the Board
The Annual Report 15 sent to all shareholders We maintain a corperate
website, containing a wide range of information of interest to investors,
including presentations to institutional investors and analysts The website

i1s updated with all formal communications to the investment community
immedsately following their release through a regulatory news service 1n
complance with Keller s obligations under the Listing Rutes and Disclosure
and Transparency Rules The Board uses the Annual General Meeting to
communicate with private and institutional shareholders and welcormnes
their participation

Throughout the year the Chief Executive and Finance Director regularly
meet with, and make presentations to institutional investors in the UK
Continental Europe and the US These include meetings following the
announcement of the annual and interim results with the Company s largest
institutional shareholders on an indwidual basis Our Finance Director also
rmeets regularly with our debt investors All major shareholders have the
apportunity on request to meet the Chairman the Senior Independent
Director or on appointment, any new Non-executive Direciors On a
regular basis the Board is apprised of the views of the investment
community through the circulation of brokers research notes and
feedback from analysts and investors, supplemented by occasional
nvestor perception surveys

The remamnder of this report contains the narrative reporting variously
requred by the Code, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Trangparency
Rules | hope that you find this an informative and helpful discussien of an
important topic

Yours farthiully,
puT

Roy A Frankhn
Chairman

29 February 2016




Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Througheut the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and to the date

of this report we have complied with the provisions set cut in the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2014 (the Code) The Code 1s publicly
avallable at the website of the Financial Reperting Counal (www frc org uk)
This Corporate Governance section of the Annual Report and Accounts
describes how we have applied the main prinaples of the Code

A Leadership

A | The role of the Board

The Board met formally nine times during the year The Group 1s controlled
through its Board of Directors The Board has formally adopted a schedule
of matters reserved to 1t for decision

A 2 Division of Responsibilities

The rcles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are defined and there s a
clear diviston of responsibilities Roy Franklin, the Chairman, is responsible
for the leadership and effactiveness of the Board Alain Michaelis, the Chief
Executive Is the Director ultimately responsible for the running of the
Group's business

A 3 The Chairman

The Chairman sets the Board's agenda ensures that adequate time I1s given
for discussion of all agenda items, facilitates effective Board processes, and
ensures that Directors are properly briefed in order to take a full and
constructive part in the Board and Board Committee discussion Also the
Chairman ensures effective commurication with sharehaolders

A 4 Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors constructively challenge and help to develep
proposals on strategy and bring strong independent judgement, knowledge
and experience to the Board s deliberations Periodically, the Chairman
meets with the Non-executive Directors without the Executive Directors
present Apart from the formal Board meetings, there 1s regular informal
contact between the Directors

B Effectiveness

B | The Composition of the Board

The Nomination Committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the
Board and the knowledge, experience, length of service and performance of
the Directors

B 2 Appointments to the Board

The appointment of new Directors to the Board is led by the Nomination
Committee Further detals of the activities of the Nomination Committee
can be found on page 49

B 3 Commitment

On appointment Directors are notified of the tme commitment expected
from them External directorships which may impact existing time
commitments must be agreed with the Chairman

8 4 Development

On appontment, the Directers are provided with induction training

and information about the Greoup, the role of the Board and the matters
reserved for its decision, the terms of reference and membership of

Board Committees and the latest financial nformation This 1s supplemented
by meetings with the Company's legal and cther professional advisers,
where appropriate wvisits to key locations and meetings with certain senior
executives to develop the Directors’ understanding of the business

Also, the Directors are continually apprised of best practice, regulatory

and legislative developments

B 5 Information and Support

The Charman in conjunction with the Company Secretary ensures that
all Board members receve timely and accurate nformation The Company
Secretary ensures that there are effective information flows to the

Board and its Committees and between senior management and
Naon-executive Directors

B 6 Evaluauon
During 2015 the Company Secretary assisted the Chairman in a review
of the performance of the Board its Committees and Dhrectors

B 7 Re-elecuon
All Directors were subject to shareholder election or re-election at the
2015 AGM as will be the case at the AGM in May 2016

€. Accountability

C | Financial and Business Reporung

The Strategic report on pages 4 to 39 provides information about the
performance of the Group, the business model, strategy principzl risks
and uncertainties relating to the Group's future prospects

C 2 Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board canfirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group Principal risks
including potential iImpacts and mitigating actions are set out on pages 26
to 28 of the Strategic report

C 3 Audit Committee and Auditors

The Board has delegated a number of responsibilities to the Audrt
Committee, which 1s respansible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting processes, Internal audit and work undertaken by the external
audrtors The Chairman of the Audit Committee provides regular updates
to the Board

D. Remuneration

D | The Level and Components of Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee sets levels of remuneration apprepriately
so as to attract retan and motivate the Board but also structures
remuneration so as to link it to both corporate and :ndividual performance,
thereby aligning management’s interest with those of shareholders

D 2 Procedure
Details of the work of the Remuneration Committee can be found in the
Directors' remuneration report on pages 52 to 66

E Relations with shareholders

E | Dhalogue wath Shareholders

The Board 1s committed to ongoing engagement with shareholders and
has an established cycle of cormmunication based on the Group's financal
reperting czlendar This includes preliminary results in February, publication
of the Annual Report in March, half-year results in August and Interim
Management Statements :n May and November The Board 1s keen to
understand the views of shareholders and ensures open dialogue
throughout the year

E 2 Constructive Use of the Annual General Meeting {'AGM")

The Board uses the AGM to communicate with private and instriutional
shareholders and welcomes their particpation The Notice of the AGM
detailing all proposed resolutions, Is sent to shareholders at least

20 working days befaore the meeting
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Corporate governance statement contnued

Leadership

The role of the Board and its Committees

Board

Strategy development, growing shareholder value, oversight and corporate governance

— provide entrepreneurial
leadership of the Group
driving it forward for the
benefit and having regard
to the views of its
sharehelders and other
stakehclders

— govern the Group within
a framework of prudent
and effective controls
which enable risk to be
assessed and managed
te an appropriate fevel

— approve the Group's
strategic objectives

— ensure that sufficient
resources are avallable
to enable 1t tc meet
those objectives

— It delegates authority
10 manage the business
to the Chief Executive
Officer and also
delegates other matters
to Board Committees
and management
as appropriate

— the Board has formally
adopted a schedule of
matters reserved to 1t
for its decision

Audit Committee
Oversee the Groups
financial reperting risk
management and internal
control procedures and
the work of its internal
and external auditors
(page 50)

HSE Committee
Oversee the Board s
respaonsibiliies in relation
to health, safety and
environmental matters,
arising out of the activities
of the Company and
its subsidiaries

{page 48)

Nomination
Committee
Review the composition
of the Board and plan
for its progressive
refreshing with regard
to balance and structure
as well as succession

planning {page 49)

Remuneration
Committee
Determine the
framework, pohcy
and levels of
remuneration of the CEQ
Executive Directors and
senior executives

(page 52)

Executive
Committee
Assists the CEO 1o
develop and implement
strategy operatonal
plans, budgets, policies
and procedures, monitor
operating and finanaal
performance, assess and

control risks prioritise
and allocate rescurce
monitor competitive
forces in each area
of operation
(page 33

The terms of reference for each of the Board s key Committees which are reviewed on an annual basis, can be found on our website

Key roles

Responsibilities

Chairman

Responsible for leading the Board, its effectiveness and governance
The Chairman Is respensible for the following matters pertaining to the leadership of the Board

- ensuring appropriate Board composition

— ensuring effective Board processes,

— setting the Board's agenda

— ensuring that Directors are properly briefed in order to take a full and constructive part in Board and Board
Committee discussions,

— ensuring effective communication with shareholders, and

— ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-executive Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Respensible for the formulation of strategy and the business of the Board
The Chief Executive s responsible for the following matters

— formulating strategy proposals for the Board

— formulating annual and medium-term plans charting how this strategy will be delivered

— apprising the Board of all matters which materially affect the Group and its performance, ncluding any
significantly underperforming business activities, and

—leadership of executive management to enable the Groups businesses to deliver the requirements of
shareholders ensuring adequate, well-motivated and iIncentivised management resources, ensuring succession
planning and ensuring appropriate business processes

The roles of the Charman and the CEQ are quite distinct from each other and are clearly defined in written
terms of reference for each role

Sentor Independent Director

Discusses any concerns with shareholders that cannot be resolved through the normal channels of communication

The role of Senior Independent Director provides a point of contact for those shareholders who wish to raise
ssues with the Board other than through the Chairman The Board has agreed that the Senior Independent Director
will act as Chairman of the Board in the event that the Chairman is unable to do so for any reasen

Company Secretary

Ensures good information flows to the Board and its Committees and between senior management and
MNon-executive Directors

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary The Company Secretary is
responsible for ensuring that the Board operates in accordance with the governance framework it has adopted
and that there are effective Information flows to the Board and its Committees and between senior management
and the Non-executive Directors

The appointment and resignation of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for consideration by the Board as a whole
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Board and Committee meetings and attendance

Audit HSE Nomimnation Remuneration
Director Board Committee Commttee Committee Commuttee
Justin Atkinsor' 474 - - - -
Ruth Cairnie? 919 22 33 i3 313
Roy Franklin AT, - - 33 -
Chris Girling? 919 5/5 171 373 3/3
james Hind 9r5 - - - -
Alan Michaelis®  5/5 - - - -
Wolfgang
Sendermann 99 - - - -
Nancy Tuor
Moore? S/9 515 373 3/3 272
Paul Withers 99 55 373 373 313

| Justin retired from the Board on 14 May 2015 Justin Atkinson did not attend a
Memination Committee meeting relating to CEQ successan

2 AllNon executive Directors were appointed members of all Board Committees on
24 September 2015

3 Alain Michaelis succeeded Justin Atlanson as Chief Executive Officer on 14 May 2015

Board diversicy

Keller continues to be supportive of the need for diversity on its Board

to provide the necessary range of background, experience, values and
perspectives to optimise the decision-making process Gender s seen as one
important aspect of diversity to which the Chairman and the Nomination
Committee must pay due regard when deading upon the most appropriate
composttion of the Board

The Board has established a range of backgrounds, capabilities and
experiences that are critical for the overall Board composition and this
farms the key objective and basis for the search and assessment of
candidates for future positions Within this context, in the ongoing process
of refreshing the Board, the Company continues to encourage and welcome
interest from women as from other candidates who will add to the Board s
diversity Aganst this evernding objective, the Company does not currently
propose to set targets for the percentage of women or other aspects of
diversity on its Board in future years

The Board, as at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts comprises
25% women — two women six men (25% at 2 March 2015 — two women
six men)

Within the Keller Group our overall senior management population
comprises 6% women and woemen employees account for 9% of the
organisation as a whole

Professional development

Cn appointment, Directors are provided with nduction training and
information about the Group, the role of the Board and the matters
reserved for its decsion the terms of reference and membership of the
Board Commuttees and the latest financial nformation about the Group
This 1s supplemented by meetings with the Company's 'egal and other
professional advisers and where appropriate, visits to key locations and
meetings with certain senior executives to develop the Directors
understanding of the business

Througheout their period of office, Non-executive Directors are continually
updated on the Groups business, its markets social responsibility matters
and other changes affecting the Group and the industry in which 1t operates
including changes to the legal and governance emvironment and the
cbligations on themselves as Directors

Directors’ conflicts of interests

Under the Compantes Act 2006, a Director must avoid a situation where
they have cr could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or
possibly may conflict with Keller s interests The Act allows Directors

of public compames to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts where
appropriate where the articles of association contain a provision te this
effect The Articles of Association give the Directors authorrty to approve
such situations and to nclude other provisions to allow conflicts of Interest
to be dealt with To address this issue at the commencement of each
Board meeting, the Board considers its register of interests and gives,
when appropriate, any necessary approvals

There are safeguards which will apply when Directors decde whether to
authorise a conflict or potential conflict First only Directors who have

neg interest in the matter being considered will be able to take the relevant
decsion, and secondly, In taking the deasion the Directors must act in a
way that they consider, in good faith wall be most likely to promote Keller's
success The Directors are able to impose imits or conditions when giving
authorisation if they think this s appropriate These procedures on conflict
have been followed throughout the year and the Board considers the
approach to operate effectively
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Corporate governance statement contrued

Effectiveness

Directors and Directors’ independence

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, four other Non-executive
Directors and three Executive Directors The names of the Directors at
the date of this report, together with their biographical details, are set out
on pages 40 and 41 All of these Directors served throughout the year with
the exception of Alain Michaelis who was appointed on 14 May 2015

The Non-executive Directors constructively challenge and help to develep
proposals on strategy and bring strong independent judgment knowledge
and experience to the Boards deliberaticns Periodically the Chairman
meets with the Non-executive Directors without the Executive Directors
present Apart from formal contact at Board meetings, there 1s regular
nformal contact between the Directors

Ruth Cairnie, Chris Girling, Nancy Tuor Moore and Paul Withers are all
considered to be independent Non-executive Directors Roy Franklin was
ndependent at the time of his appointment as Chairman on | August 2009
Roy's other professional commstments are as detaled on page 40

Roy has announced his intentien to retire from the Board during 2016,
once a surtable successor has been recrurted

All Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first AGM
following their appointment and to annual re-election thereafter in
accordance with the Code

Board evaluation

Further to the 2014 Board evaluation a number of actions were taken in the
areas of Chairman and Non-executive Cirector succession planning and
increased interaction between the Board and the Executive Committee

Detalls of how those areas were addressed in 2015 can be found inthe
repcrt of the Nominaticn Committee on page 49

Due to changes in the Board's composttion during the year no evaluation
was carried out in 2015 An external review is planned for 2016

The Charman has confirmed that the Directors standing for election at
this year's AGM continue to perform effectively and to demonstrate
commitment to their roles

Information and support

The Board and each Committee are satisfied that they receve sufficient,
reliable and timely information in advance of meetings and are provided
with all necessary resources and expertise to enable them 1o fulfil their

responsibilities and undertake their duties in an effective manner

For each Board and Committee meeting, Directors are provided with

a tallored Board pack at least one week prior to the meeting To mprove
the delivery and security of Board papers, the Company continues to
use an electronic system allowing the Board to easily access information
rrespective of geographic location Directors regularly receive additional
nformation from the Company between Board meetings including a
monthly Group performance update Where a Director was unable to
attend a meeting they were provided with all the papers and information
relating to that meeting and were able to discuss issues arising directly
with the Chairman and Chief Executive
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Board focus areas in 2015
Strategy
- reviewed and approved
- the Groups strategic review and the recommendations arising
(see Chief Executive's review page 6 for further details)
— the annual budget
— the appreach and process enabling it to make the viability statement
(see page 28 of the Strategic report for the process, and page &7
of the Directors report for the statement)
— evaluated and approved
— the acquistion of Bencor, a business providing diaphragm wall technology
inthe US (see ‘Strategy In action’ page 14 for further details) |
— the acquisttion of Austral a marine piling business in Western Australa |
{see ‘Strategy in action page 16 for further details) ‘

Risk

— considered the principal risks and uncertanties which could impact
the Group

- reviewed the risk management framework with particular regard to
its )Impact on making the viability statement

CEO succession
— agreed the terms of Justin Atkinsons retirement as CEC from the Company
— agreed the appointment of Alain Michaels as CEO with effect from

14 May 2015 (for further detals on each of the arrangements please

refer to the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 52 to 66)

Talent development
- reviewed and discussed progress in developing a succession plan for the
Group's senior management population

Finance
— considered and agreed the 2015 interim and final dvidends

Cperational performance

~ recenved and considered strategic and operational perfermance
presentations from the Presidents of the US, Australia, Asia and
EMEA regicns

— attended an overseas Board visit In Singapore where they met with
the local management tearm taok part in a site visit to Changhy Airport,
and met with partiapants in the Global Engineering Programme

2015 Board meetings - time spent

Strategy 4%
Finance 27%
Governance 23%
Procedural 5%
People 4%




Accountability

Internal control

The Board 1s ulumately responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of falure to achieve
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying
evaluating and managing the principal risks faced by the Greup which has
been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval

of the Annual Report and Accounts This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board and accords with the guidance of the Financial Reporting Counci

Details on the dentification and evaluation of risk can be found in the
section headed Principal risks and uncertainties on pages 26 1o 28

The principal elements of the internal controf framework are as follows

(a) Authorisation procedures

Documented authorisation procedures provide for an audrtable trail of
accountability These procedures are relevant across Group operations and
provide for successive assurances to be given at increasingly higher levels of
ranagement and, finally, to the Board

(b) Management of project risk
Project risk s managed throughout the Iife of a contract from the bidding
stage to completion

Detaled rsk analyses covering technical operational and financial issues are
performed as part of the bidding process Authorrty imits applicable to the
approval of bids relate both 1o the speaffic risks associated with the contract
and to the total value being bnd by Keller, or any joint venture to which
Keller i1s 2 party Any bids invelving an unusually bigh degree of techrical or
commercal risk for example those using a new technology or in a territory
where we have not previously worked must be approved at a senior level
within the operating company

On average, our contracts have a duration of around six weeks but larger
contracts may extend over several months The performance of contracts
1s monitored and reported by most business units on a weekly basis

In addiuon, thorough reviews are carried out by senior managers on any
pacrly performing jebs and full cost-to-complete assessments are routinely
carried out on extended duration contracts

Further detal on the management of praject risk 1s provided in the section
headed Principal risks and uncertainties’ on pages 26 to 28

(c} Health and safety
Regular reportng, monitoring and reviews of heafth and safety matters are
made to the HSE Committee and the Board

{d} Budgeung and forecasting

There 1s a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget approved
by the Board This budget includes monthly profit and loss accounts balance
sheets and cash flows In addition, forecasts are prepared for the two
subsequent years Forecasts for the full year are regularly updated during
the year

(e) Financial reporting

Detalled monthly management accounts are prepared which compare
profit and loss accounts, balance sheets, cash flows and other information
with budget and prior year, and significant variances are investigated

(f) Cash control

Each business reports its cash posrtion weekly Regular cash forecasts are
prepared to monitor the Group's short- and medium-term cash positions
and to control mmediate borrowing requirements

(g) Investments and capital expenditure
All sigmificant investment decisions, inciuding caprial expenditure, are
referred to the appropriate divisional or Group autharity level

{h) Internal audit

The Group has a structured programme of independent outsourced audit
reviews, covering tendering, operational processes and internal financial
controls The intention 1s to conduct an internat audt of all material business
units at feast once every four years This programme has been carried out
by PricewaterhouseCoopers since 201G The programme 1s approved and
monitored by the Audit Commuttee, which reviews the findings of each
such exercise

{1) Electromic Internal Control Questionnaire {('EICQ")

Each year every principal business unit 1s required to complete an electronic
queshionnaire responding to whether key internal financial and non-financial
controls are in place The results of these questionnaires are summarised in
a ‘heat map’, which 1s presented to and discussed by the Audit Committee
The responses to the questionnaires are zalso reviewed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers during each internal audrt

() Annual compliance staternent

Once & year, managers are asked to confirm the adequacy of the systems of
internal controls for which they are responsible and their compliance with
Group policies, local laws and regulations, and 1o report any significant
control weaknesses or breakdowns identified in the past year

(k) Business conduct

The Groups business conduct handbook sets out the Group s policies
and processes with regards to conducting business 1o all business units
worldwide All business units are required to self-certify that they are
comphant with the Groups business conduct handbook and complance
with the handbook 1s considered as part of the iIndependent reviews

During 2015 the Code was revised and refreshed and its launch will take
place during 2016

{I) Whistleblowing procedures

Employees are encouraged to raise genuine concerns about malpractice
at the earliest possible stage In 2016 we are introducing a new externally
facilitated whistleblowing hotline service for employees Any issues raised
under our procedures are thoroughly investigated and reported back to
the Audit Committee

The management of financial risks rs described in the Finanoial review on
pages 3610 39
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Corporate governance statement contnued

Health, Safety & Environment Committee report

Nancy Tuor Moore
Chairman of the Health, Safety & Environment Committee

HSE Committee Membership

~ Nancy Tuor Moore (chairman from 26 June 2014)
- Ruth Cairnie

- Chris Girling (apported on 24 September 2015)
— Paul Withers

Dear shareholder
It 1s my pleasure to present the HSE Committee Report for the year
ended 3i December 2015

Key objective
The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
In relation to health safety and environmental matters arising out of the

activities of the Company and its subsidiaries The Committee s responsible

for monitoring and reviewing the Group's Health and Safety Framework
in ine with applicable laws and regulations It also evaluates and oversees
the guality and integrity of the Company's reporting ic external
stakeholders concerning health safety and environmental matters

Terms of reference of the Committee

The Committee's terms of reference which were reviewed during the
year are avallable on the Groups websrte (www keller co uk) and on
request from the Company Secretary

Committee membership

Further to the 2015 Board and Committee review and evaluation
process, 1t was agreed that all of the Non-executive Directors should
consttute the membership of all of the Board Committees Accordingly,
Chris Girling was appointed a member of the Cammittee with effect
from 24 September 2015 .

Committee meetings

The Chief Executive and the Group Health Safety Environment &
Quality Director attend all meetings of the Committee Members of the
Executive Committee have an open nvitation to attend meetings where
they are encouraged to contribute and present and are required to
attend to report to the Committee in the event of a major incident

Or Near-miss occurrence

The Committee is required to meet at least twice per year During this
financial year the Commuittee met three umes
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Activities of the Committee
The main activities of the Committee since the last report were
as follows

- reviewing the Groups safety performance in 2015 against ts plan,

- recemng safety performance reports and updates on progress against
the 2015 health safety and ervironment plan

- revising the Groups HSE Assurance Framework and receving updates
on the 2015 Assurance Programme,

— recemng reports on the implementation of Root Cause Analysis training
workshops within the business

= approving the ndlusion of the Quality Management framework within
the HSE functional teams,

— reviewing the positioning of the Group In relation to sustanability,

- receving updates on our Environmental Awareness Campaign that was
rolled out in 2015, and

— recelving updates on regulatory and legal developmenits

Progress during the year

Whilst we made significant progress against our annual HSE targets,
these were tragically overshadowed by the deaths of two employeses
warking on site In Malaysia during the year The incident was investigated
by the local regulator Whilst the Company has given both financial

and emotional support to the colleagues and famihies of the employees
involved and will continue to do so we have conducted our own
nvestigations to ensure that the learnings are shared across those of
our businesses working in similar environments and such an occurrence
15 prevented from happening in the future

The introduction of Qualrty into the HSE function will ensure that going
forward, standard operating procedures are put in place to continuously
improve our products

Reductions
The number of rigs averturned in 2015 have reduced by 25% and there
has been a 39% reduction in hands znd feet njuries

We are also pleased to report a reduction of 10% in our AFR 30% in
major Injuries, and 4% in LTls

Further detall on the Company s HSE performance in 2015 can be
found in our Strategic report on pages 29 to 31
Nancy Tuor Moocre

Chairman of the Health Safety & Ernvironment Committee

29 February 2016




Nomination Committee report

Roy A Frankhn
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Commttee membership
- Roy Franklin {Chairman)

— Ruth Cairnie

- Chiris Girling

— Nancy Tuor Mocre

- Paul Withers

Dear shareholder
This report provides details of the role of the Nomination Committes
and the work it carried out during 2015

Key objective

The Commuttee keeps under review the balance of skills on the Board
and the knowledge, experience, length of service and performance of
the Drectors

Terms of reference of the Commuittee

The Committeess terms of reference, which were reviewed during the
year, are avallable on the Group s website (www kellerco uk) and on
request from the Company Secretary

Committee membership
Only the Chairman and Non-executive Direciors are members of
the Committee

Justin Atkinson who retired as CEO of the Company on 14 May 2015,
was a member of the Committee until his retirement but did not attend
meetings where CEO succession was discussed

Committee meetings

No one other than a member of the Committee 1s entitled to be
present at its meetings The Committee may invite members of the
senior management to attend meetings where 1t is fett appropriate and
Alain Michaelis the CEQ and Jackie Holman and Serge Zimmerlin (the
Group HR Director to 30 November 2015 and from | December 2015
respectively) attended certain meetings during the year

The Committee is required to meet at least twice per year Duning this
financial year the Commitiee met four tirnes

Acuvities of the Commuttee

An evaluation of the Board and its Committees was carried out in June
2014, by means of an electronic questionnaire compiled by the Company
Secretary and faclitated by Lintstock.

Two dear areas of cansideration were raised by members of the Board

- succession planning for the Chairman and
— the constitution of the Board Committees

The Chairman followed up these areas with the members of the Board
indwidually in the first quarter of 2015 and the following actons have
been taken

Succession planning for the Chairman

Further to Roy Franklin's advice of his intention to retire from the
Board during 2016 the Nomination Committee appointed Zygos
to lead the search for the Chairman's successor Paul Withers as
the Sentor Independent Director 1s leading the process on behalf
of the Committes and a project tuneline for the search and future
appointment has been agreed

Caonsutution of the Board Committees
Further to discussion regarding the membership of the Board Committees

(@) all Nen-executive Dhirectars are now members of each Board
Committee, and
(b) the CEQ is no longer a member of the Nomination Committee

Succession planning for the Non-execuuve Directors

In addition to the above actions the Chairman and Company Secretary
commenced a process looking at a more formal approach to Non-
executive Director succession planning it was also agreed that the
traditional length of tenure of the Non-executive Director of three terms
of three years each be amended to two terms of three years each, with
annual renewal up to a2 maximum period of three years thereafter, 1o
allew for more flexibility in the succession planning process

Other activities of the Committee since the last report were as follows

— CEO succession planning, culminating in the retirement of Justin Atkinson
and appointment of Alain Michaels on [4 May 2015, and

— oversight of the implementation of the Groups executive development
programme

Keller and the Committee continue to encourage and welcome interest
from women as from other candidates who will add to the Board's
diversity The Board's overriding objective 1s to continue to provide
effective leadership and, therefore, the Committee continues to
recommend for appointment only the most appropriate candidates

to the Board in ine wath the criteria set out on page 45 There are,
therefore no formal targets set for female representation at Board level

In accordance with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code all members of the Board will seek re-election at the Annual
General Meeting in May 2016, with the exception of Alain Michaels
who will seek his first election

In December 2015 the Committee formally reviewed the performance,
contribution and commitment of each of the Directors retiring at this
year's AGM and seeking reappointment, and supported and recommended
their reappointraent to the Board The Committee has confirmed

that each Director continues to perform well both on an indiidual and
collectrve basis, making a valuable contribution to the Board's deliberations
and demonstrating commitment to Keller s long-term interests

Roy A Franklin
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

29 February 2016
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Corporate governance statement contrued

Audit Committee report

Chris Girling
Chairman of the Audit Commritee

Audit Committee membership

— Chris Girling (Chairman)

— Ruth Carrnie (appointed 24 September 2015)
- Nancy Tuor Moore

— Paul Wrthers

Dear shareholder
This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
and the work 1t carried out during the year

The Chairman, Chief Executive Finance Director Group Financial
Controller and the Company's externat auditors (the 'Auditors }
nermally attend, by invitation all meetings of the Commitiee
PricewaterhouseCoopers in their role as internal audrtors attend
at least two meetings of the Committee each year

Key objective

The Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for
ensuring that the Group's financial systerns provide accurate ang
up-to-date information on 1ts financial pesition and that the Group's
published financial statements represent a true and fair reflection of this
position It also reviews the Group s systems of internal control and the
processes for moritoring and evaluating the risks facing the Group

Terms of reference of the Committee

The Comrnrttees terms of reference which were reviewed during
the year, are available on the Group s website (www keller co uk) and
on request from the Company Secretary

Committee membership

Further to the 2015 Board and Committee review and evaluation
process, 1t was agreed that all of the Non-executive Directors should
constitute the membership of all of the Board Committees Accordingly
Ruth Cairnie was appointed a member of the Committee with effect
from 24 September 2015

Committee meetings

The Committee is required to meet at least twice per year During this
financial year the Committee met five times, all with the Company's
Auditors in attendance and on two of these occasions the Commirttee
met privately with the Auditors without management being present
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Activities of the Committee
During the year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities by

— reviewng a report on the Group’s system of internal control and rts
effectiveness and receving regular updates on the Groups principal risks,

— reviewing a report from management on their process for assessing the
Group s viabllity over a three-year period and reporting the outcomes of
the assessment to the Board

- reviewing and approving the Audrtors engagement letter and audr fee,

— reviewing the Auditors' reports and the Group's draft financal statements
and recommending them for approval to the Board

— reviewing the scope and results of the audt, its cost-effectiveness and the
independence and objectivity of the Auditors

— undertaking an assessment of the effectiveness of the internal audit process

— approving a rofling four-year programme of internal audit reviews of aspects
of the Group's operations and financizl controls and receving reports on all
reviews carried out during the year

— receving briefings on various techrical issues such as accounting standards
and therr practical consequences for Keller

— reviewing the Groups whistleblowing policy and monitoring the procedures
In place for employees to be able to raise matters of possible Impropriety

— reviewing the process for the refresh of the Group's Code of Business
Conduct and rts programme for implementation in 2016

— reviewing the Committee's effectiveness and its terms of reference

— reviewing the Group’s policy on employment of the Auditors for
non-audit services

— reviewing the need for an internal audrt function and

— reviewing the Groups policy on the employment of former employees
of the Auditors

The Audit Committee also reviewed the Company's processes and the
outcomes of those processes to ensure that it was able to offer advice to
the Board over whether the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts can be
considered far, balanced and understandable The following processes are in
place to provide this assurance the co-ordinatton and review of the Annual
Report and Accounts was performed within an exactng tme-frame which
ran alongside the formal audit process undertaken by the Auditors guidance
was 1ssued to contributors at an operationzl level, an internal verification
process dealing with the factual content of the reports tock place, and a
comprehensive review was undertaken by the senior management team
and external adwisers that aimed to ensure consistency and overall balance

Significant 1ssues considered by the Committee included those 1dentified in
the Independent Auditor s Report They related to the financal statements
focused on the Group s approach to key estimates and judgments in
connection with

— accounting for construction contracts The main factors considered when
making those estimates and judgments include the percentage of work
completed at the balance sheet date on longer-term ¢ontracts the costs
of the work required to complete the contract and the outcome of claims
and variations raised against customers and claims raised against the Group
by custemers or third parties The Committee has reviewed a report
prepared by management on the key estimates and judgmenis relating to
construction contracts having a material mpact on the Groups result for
the year, and

the carrying value of goodwill The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any mparment in accordance with the accounting policy

set out In note 2 to the financial statements The Group estimates the
recoverable amount based on value-mn-use calculations These calculations
require the use of assumptions the most important being the forecast
revenues, operating margins and the discount rate applied The key
assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are set out in note 3 to
the financial statements The Committee has reviewed the key assurnptions
used for all Impairment tests of matenal goodwill batances In particular, this
review has focused on Kelfer Canada where there Is the most uncertainty
surrounding the projections used in the value-in-use calculation




The Committee also examined the disclosure of items which are described

as exceptional in the consolidated income statement and discussed the
appropriateness of such disclosure with the Company’s Auditors

These matters and any audit differences are considered i the Committee
meetings that review the full-year and intenim results At these meetings
the Committee discusses with the Auditors whether they consider
management's assumptions behind these estimates and judgments 1o

be conservative or aggressive In addition, during such meetings the
Committee meets with the Auditors without management being present

Internal audit

PricewaterhouseCoopers continues to prowvide a structured programme
of independent, outsourced reviews of all material business units at least
once every four years During 2015 the Audit Committee recewved and
considered reports from PricewaterhouseCoopers which detalled the
progress against the agreed work programme This programme covered
reviews of seven business units in six countries which together
represented approximately 20% of the Group s revenue for the year

It Included, for example assessments of our Franki Africa businesses

in South Africa and Mozambique, the Case business in the US the
Waterway business in Australia, and Keller Malaysia Although there
remains scope to improve the formality of certain controls in certamn
businesses to ensure they operate more effectvely, there were no
findings that PricewaterhouseCoopers considered of a significant nature
In September the Committee formally reviewed the effectiveness of
these arrangements and discussed them and any actien plans arising
with management, concluding that the iternal audit arrangements

were appropriate and effective

External audit

The Committee places great importance on ensuring there are high
standards of quality and effectiveness in the external audit process and
complied with the provisions of the Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 (the CMA
Audit Order) throughout the year

KPMG, and its predecessor firms, has been the Company’s auditor since
the Company first hsted on the London Stock Exchange in 1994 As set
out In our 2013 Annual Report and Accounts, KPMG were re-appointed
as the Company s Auditor n 2014 subsequent to a robust retendering of
the external audit process Following the introduction of the draft UK

and EU guidance on mandatory audrtor rotation the Committee anticipates

retendering the external audit again for the 2019 year-end the year after
the Company's existing lead audit partner will be required to rotate off
the audit of the Group

The Committee has undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the

external audit process of the 2014 financial statements This assessment
focused on the calibre of the audit firm (including reputation presence
In the Industry, size, resources and geographic spread} its quality control
processes the quality of the team assigned to the audit the audrt scope
fee and audit communications, and the governance and independence of
the audit firm

There are a number of checks and controls in place for safeguarding the
objectivity and independence of the Auditors There are open lines of
communication and reporting between the Auditors and the Committee
and when presentng their ‘independence tetter' KPMG LLP discuss with
the Commuttee their internal process for ensuring ndependence

A detaled assessment of the amounts and relationship of audit and
nen-audrt fees and services 1s carried out each year and the Audrt
Commitiee has developed and implemented a policy regulating the
placing of non-audrt services to the Auditors which should prevent any
impairment of independence Any work awarded to the Auditors other
than audit or tax compliance with a value in excess of £100 000 requires
the specific approval of the Committee The Commuttee 15 aware of

the new EU legislation effective frem mid-2016, restricting auditors from
providing certamn non-audit services and 15 monrtoring the UKs adoption
of those prowisions The Committee will ensure that the Cempany
complies with the new UK guidance once implemented

Over the last three years, the rato of non-audrt related fees pad to

the Auditor averaged 57% of the total audit fee Excluding the Reporting
Accountants’ work which KPMG provided on the acquisition of Keller
Canada in 2013, this ratio falls to 37% The ratio of non-audrt related fees
pad to the Auditor in 2015 15 40% of the tatal audit fee

Also as part of its annual review of Auditors’ independence the
Commuttee reviews the level and nature of entertanment between
the Auditors and management

A resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP will be put to shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting to be held in May 2016

Chris Girling

Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

29 February 2016
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Directors’ remuneration report

Annual statement

Dear shareholder
It 1s my pleasure to present the Directors remuneration report for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Committee role, remit and membership

In 2015 the Remuneration Committee s remit and role were unchanged
Further to the 2015 Board and Committee review and evaluation process,
1t was agreed that all of the Non-executive Directors should constitute the
membership of all of the Board Commitiees Accordingly Nancy Tuor
Moore was appointed a member of the Committee with effect from

24 Septermber 2015

Remuneration policy
Qur remuneration policy supports the following principles

— to provide a clear ink between performance and reward and ensure
that the Executive Directors interests are dosely aligned with those of
our sharehalders and
— to help us to attract retain and motivate high-calibre executives to manage
the business and deliver against our strategy ensuring the long-term success
of the Company
Ruth Cairnie
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee We operate a remuneration structure comprising base salary and benefits,
a bonus plan and a long-term incentive plan Our incentives are aligned with
our strategic priorities The outcomes reflect the performance of the

Remuneration Committee membership business and strategic progress in 2015

— Ruth Cairnie (Chairmany

— Chris Girling We continued to apply cur remuneration policy as approved by shareholders
- Nancy Tuor Moore (appointed 24 September 2015) at the Annual General Meeting {AGM") in May 2014 No changes to the

- Paul Withers remuneration policy are proposed for 2016

The Committee will review the remuneration policy 1nthe context of |
Keller's evolving requirements changes in market practice and shareholder
expectations including recent guidance on time horizens and holding
periods for long-term incentives and long-term executive share ownership
prior 1o submitting it for shareholder approval no later than the 2017 AGM
as required

Activities of the Committee
The Committee’s main regular activities during 2015 were as follows

— we reviewed the performance of the Group for the year and the
performance of the Executive Directors 1o determine bonus outcomes
for 2015,

— we approved share awards for 2015

— we set base salares and estabhshed the Executive Directors bonus
arrangernents for 2016

— we reviewed the base salaries and bonus arrangements for 2016 for
the Executive Committee, |

— we reviewed the Directors remuneration report, and |

— we considered remuneration market trends and corporate !
governance developments

In addrtion, during the year the Committee

— took advice on and agreed the remuneration arrangernents for
Alain Michaelis wha was appointed CEC duning the year and

— took advice on and agreed the remuneration arrangements for
Justin Atkinson who retired as CEO on 14 May 2015 and whose
employment with the Company terminated on 3| December 2015

Remuneration for 2015

Alain Michaelis was appointed to the Board as CEC on 14 May 2015 From
this date, Alain received an annual base salary of £500,000, pension by way
of satary supplement in the amount of 18% of salary a car allowance of
£15 000 and other benefits including private health care, Iife assurance and
long-term disability insurance Alain was also entitled to participate inthe
Company’s annual bonus plan for 2015, pro-rated from his date of
appointment to 31 December 2015, and the performance share plan
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An exceptional award of 200% of salary was made under the performance
share plan which is permitted under our approved policy to enable the
recruitment of a suitably qualified candidate and with the additional benefit
of areating strong alignment of the new CEC with our shareholders we
engaged our major shareholders on this matter Justin Atkinson retired from
the Board as CEQ on 14 May 2015 and his employment with the Company
terminated as at 31 December 2015

Justin receved his normal base salary and benefits during his employment
but hrs bonus for 2015 was pro-rated to 30 June 2015 and he was not eligible
for a share award in 2015 The financial arrangements relating to fustin's
retirement were consistent with the remuneration policy and disclosed

an our website from 31 December 2015

During 2015 Wolfgang Sondermann reached retirement age At the request
of the new CEQ, the Committee considered and agreed an extension to
Wolfgang s employment contract which was due to expire at the end of
2015 The contract has been extended untd 30 April 2017 to support the
leadership transition The previous announcement of his possible retirement
meant that as reported last year the Committee did not make hirm an
annual share award in 2015 To ensure equal treatment and alignment of all
Executive Directors the Committee therefore intends to make Wolfgang an
award in 2016 based on the lower number of shares he would have receved
in 2015 had the intbial announcement not been made wrth a performance
period of | January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (the same as for other
partiapants in the 2015-17 cycle) The award will vest three years from
grant, 1e not before 2019, and will also be pro-rated over the periad fram
grant to the date of Wolfgangs retirement Wolfgang will not receive any
share award in respect of 2016 itself

Overall, the Groups results for 2015 demonstrated continued good
progress in delivery of the strategy with profit before tax increasing by
12% and earnings per share by 15% This strong performance by the Group
for the year resulted in bonuses ranging from 57% to 59% of maximum for
the Executive Directors under the Company s annual bonus

Performance Share Awards granted in 2013 are measured using EPS and
TSR targets based on performance to 3| December 2015 The EPS targets
were met in full and the TSR targets were partially met, such that 67 3% of
the Awards will vest in 2016

Details of the remuneration deasions for 2015 and mplementation of the
remuneration policy for 2016 are set out in the Directors annual
remuneration report on pages 58 to 66

Remuneration for 2016

The base salaries of Alain Michaels, James Hind and Wolfgang Sendermann
were increased by 3%, to £515,000, £350,500 and £313,367 respectively
with effect irom | January 2018, in line with general pay increases of 3%
awarded across the Group

The Commitiee 15 not proposing any other changes 1o the implementation
of our remuneration policy for 2016 compared 1o 2015

Remuneration disclosure

This report comples with the requirements of the Large and Medum-sized
Companies and Groups Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013, the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 and the UK Listing Authority s
Listing Rules and the Disdlosure and Transparency Rules

Before exceptional items

The report is in two sections

— asummary of the Directors remuneration policy report {pages 54 10
57) This secuon contains details of the remuneration policy approved at
the 2014 AGM and 1s for information onfy and

— the Directers' annual remuneration report This sectien sets out the
detalls of how our remuneration pelicy was implemented for the year
ended 3| December 2015 and how we irtend for it to apply for the year
ending 31 December 2016 and rt 1s the subject of an advisory shareholder
vote at the AGM in May 2016

I will be available at the AGM to answer your questions

Ruth Cairnie
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

29 February 2016

Key objective

To determine the framework broad policy and levels of remuneration
for the Group s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) the Group's Finance
Director and Engineering & Operations Director and other axecutives
as deemed appropriate The framewark includes, but is not imrted to,
establishing stretching performance-related elements of reward and

15 Intended to promote the long-term success of the Company

Terms of reference of the Commuittee

The Committees terms of reference, which were reviewed during the
year are avalable on the Groups website (wwwkellerco uk) and on
request from the Company Secretary

Committee meetings

Committee meetings are attended by the members In addition the
Chairman and the CEQ may attend meetings as required The CEO 15 not
present when his own performance or remuneration is discussed and no
Director is involved in deciding their own remuneration The Commuttee
18 required to meet at least twice per year During this financial year the
Committee met three times

Key responsibilities

— Making recommendations to the Board within the agreed terms of
reference on Keller's framework of executive remuneration

— Determining the contract terms, remuneration and other benefits
for each of the Executive Directors, induding performance share
awards performance-related bonus schemes, pension rights and
compensation payments

— Ensuring that performance-related elements are transparent
stretching and rigorously applied

— Monrtorning remuneration for senior executives below Board level

— Approval of share awards
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Directors’ remuneration report contnued

Remuneration policy report

Summary of Directors’ remuneration policy report

The remuneration policy was approved at the AGM in May 2014 Provided for information only are the details of the policy that were referenced
in Committee activities over the pasi reporting year which includes the Remuneration policy table the recrutment remuneration arrangements
Executive Director service contracts and terms and condrtions for Non-executive Directors The full policy report as approved by shareholders
can be found at wwwkeller co uk

Remuneration policy table

Element

Purpose and link
to strategy

QOperaticn

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Base salary

Fixed cash compensation

dependent upon experience

and responsibilities

Sufficiently competitive to
ensure adequate retention
Sufficent for ncentives to
be fully variable

Reviewed annually
effective | January

Periodically benchmarked
Pay and conditions
throughout the Group
taken Into account when
determining any increase

Na maximum but
positoned broadly at
the median

Increases are not expected
to exceed average increases
for the wider workforce,
unless a change i scope or
complexity of role applies

None

Annual bonus

Short-term cash incentive
up to 100% of salary based
on achievernent of annual
financral and personal
strategic objectives

Medium-term incentive
any bonus n excess of
100% of salary (up to

a maximum of 150% of
salary) 1s deferred for
three years and paycut
linked to ongong share
price performance

Drives and rewards
annual performance

Part deferral, together
with link to share price
(see Operztion column)
focuses participants

on medium-term
performance and
supports alignment
with shareholders

The mix of financial and
personal strategic
objectives, together with
Group performance,
ensures an appropriate
broad focus on different
elements of Company
performance

Performance measures
and weightings are set at
the start of the year to
reflect business priones

Targets are reviewed
annually andg relate to
finanaal and non-financal
targets in ine with the
business plan

At the end of the year, the
Remuneration Committee
determines the extent to
which targets have been
achieved

Any bonus above 100% of
salary is deterred (sausfied
in cash adjusted in hne with
share price movements
and dnadends paid over the
three-year deferral period
commencing on the last
day of the year to which
the bonus relates)

Bonuses are subject to
clawback in situations of
material misstatement,
error or gross misconduct

For maxirmum
performance

— 150% of salary
For threshold performance
~ 0% of salary

Bonus up to 100% of salary
for very strong
performance

Payouts between 0%

and 100% of salary are
determined broadly on a
straight-line basis such that
the payout for
performance in ine with
budget (targer’) 1s kely 10
be in the range of 35%-55%
of maxirmum

Any bonus in excess of
100% of salary only payable
for genuinely exceptional
performance

At least 70% based on financial
performance

Measures may include (but are
not hmited to)

-- Profit before tax { PBT")

— Earnings per share ('EPS)

— Average net debt target

— Personal strategic objectives

Targets will be adjusted to take
account of major acquisitons

Payment potential for personal
strategic objectives 1s capped at
50% of the potential payout f PBT
or EPS targets are not triggered

Bonuses may be reduced by up
to 10% f pre-defined lead’ safety
targets are not delivered

In addition, the Committee has
discretion to reduce bonuses
(down to zero If appropriate) In
excaptional circumstances 1o take
into account factors adversely
affecting the Company s reputation
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Element

Purpose and ink
to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Performance Share Plan

(PSP’

Variable long-term
remuneration paid
n shares

Focuses on long-term
financial performance

as well as stock market
outperformance,
through targets based on
EPS growth and relative
total shareholder return
(TSR

Retention through
delivery of potentally
significant deferred
remuneration

A considerable part of
potential remuneration
15 knked to long-term
Group performance

Retention of vested shares
{(Inked to shareholding
guidelines) enables
meaningful shareholdings
to be built up, aligning
interests of senior
managers and
shareholders

Award released after
three years

Performance measured
over three financial years

Any dndends paid may
acerue over the vesting
period and would be
pad only on those shares
that vest,

Awards are subject to
clawback in situations of
material misstatement
error or gross misconduct

Normazl award of 100%
of base annual salary
each year

Up 10 200% of salary
where the Commitiee
determines that
exceptional circumstances
exist {e g on recrutment)

25% of an award vests

for threshold performance,
rising on a straight-line
basis to full vesting

Vesung of PSP awards 1s subject
to continued employment and
performance against twe equally-
weighted measures, which are
currently as follows

— EPS growth measured on 2 point
to point basis over the three-year
performance pericd

— TSR relauve to arelevant peer
group over the three-year
performance period

The Committee will review the
targets prior to each grant to
ensure that they continue to be
well aligned with the delivery of
Company strategy

Pension

Salary supplement, defined
benefit plan and defined
contribution plan

Prowvides for employee
welfare and retirement
needs

Defined benefit { DB')
plan in the UK closed to
future benefit accruat
in 2006

Replaced with lower-risk
defined contnbution
('DC) plans

Executives can elect

to recewve either a DC
contribution or a salary
supplerment of equivalent
cost to the Company

MNo formal maximum, but
no plans to exceed currant
percentages of basic salary

None

Other henefits

Company car or car
allowance private heatth
care ife assurance

and long-term disability
Insurance

Access to company car to
facinate effective travel

Insurance benefits to
support the indmdual and
ther famiy to minimise
disruption 1o day-to-day
business eg from iliness

Benefits currently include,
but are not imited to a car
and payment of s
operating expenses, or car
allowance, private heatth
care, life assurance, and
long-term disability
Insurance

Benefits prowided through
third-party providers

It 1s not antiopated that the
cost of benefits provided
will materizlly exceed the
level in recent years

The Committee retans

the discretion to approve

a higher cost in exceptional
arcumstances, € g relocation

None

Notes to the policy table

Performance measure selection and approach to target setting
The measures used under the annual bonus plan are selected annually to reflect the Group s plans for the year and reflect both financial and non-financal
priarities Performance targets are set annually to be stretching but achievable with regard to the particular strategic priorities and economic environment

In a gven year

The Committee believes that EPS and TSR continue to be appropriate measures of long-term performance for Keller EPS provides a link to long-term
financial performance and s highly visible internally, while TSR provides strong alignment with shareholder interests EPS targets will be reviewed and
confirmed prior to each grant, taking account of analyst estimates, hustorical performance and EPS performance ranges used at other FTSE250 companies
The TSR target for full vesting has been determined on the basis of an historical znalys:s of the median to upper quartile spread and is in line with typicat
market practice for a company of Keller's size The Committee retains discretion to adjust this target for future awards should circumstances change

If an event occurs which causes the Committee to consider that an cutstanding PSP Award or bonus would not achieve its original purpose wrthout
alteration the Committee has discretion to amend the targets, provided the new condiions are matenally no less challenging than when originally imposed
Such discretion could be used to adjust appropriately for the impact of materal acquisitions or disposals, or for exceptional and unforeseen events outside
the control of the management team The application of any such discretion would have regard to the Committee’s practice of ensuring the stability of
measures and targets throughout the business cycle
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Directors’ remuneration report cntnued

Remuneration policy report continued

Shareholding guidelines

To reflect the importance the Commuttee places on aligning their nterests with shareholders Executive Directors are required to hold shares with a value
equivalent to 100% of salary Executive Directors are required to retain 50% net of tax of shares acquired on vesting of share Awards until the required
holding 15 attained

Awards under previous remuneration policies
Any awards or remuneration-related commitments made to Directors under previous remuneration policies will continue to be honoured

Detalls of the policy on fees paid to Non-executive Directors are set out in the table below

Function Operation Opportumty Performance metrics
Charman and Non-executive Director fees  Fee levels are reviewed annually with any  No maximum but positsoned broadly None
To attract and retan NEDs of the highest adjustments effective | January at median
calibre with broad commeraal and other  The determunation of fees, including that It 1s not expected that increases will
experience relevant to the Company of the Chairman, has been delegated by exceed those for the wider workforce
Non-executive Directors do not the Board to the Executive Directors or market NED fee inflation rates
riapate in any ncentve scharme who are guided by independent surveys of  However in the event that there 1sa
particpa Y fees paid to NEDS of similar companies materal change in the complexity,

responsibility or time commiment
required to fulfil a non-executive role
the Board has overall discretion to make
The Non-executive Directors are pard an appropriate adjustment to fee levels

a basic fee, plus additional fees for the
chaining of a Board Committee and to Aggregate fees are subject to the imit

the Senicr Independent Director which in the Company's Articles of £300,000

reflects the time commitment and Fees for the year commencing | January

responsibilities of their roles 2016 are set out in the annual report
on remuneration

The Chairman s paid a single
consolidated fee

Recruitment remuneration arrangements
In the case of appointing a new Executive Director from outside the Company, the Remuneration Committee will seek to align the remuneration package
with our remuneration pelicy which may include elements outlined in the policy table above

In deterrmining appropriate remuneration, the Remuneration Committee will take into consideration all relevant factors to ensure that arrangements are in
the best interests of both Keller and rts shareholders and will seek not to pay more than is necessary for this purpose The Committee may make an award
In respect of a new appointment o buy out’ Incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer on a hke-for-like basis which may be awarded
in addrtion to the remuneration structure outlined in the table above In doing so the Committee will consider relevant factors including any performance
conditions attached to these awards and the likehhood of those conditions being met The Committee may also rely on exemption 94 2 of the Listing Rules
to facilitate such a buy out If required

Internal promotons to the Board

In cases of appointing a new Executive Director by way of internal promotion the Remuneration Committee wilt apply the policy consistently as for
external appointees detaled above Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their promotion to Executive Director level the
Company will continue to honour these arrangements Incentive opportunities for beiow Board level employees are typically no higher than Executive
Directors, but measures may vary

Non-executive Director recruitment
In recrurting a2 new iNon-executive Director, the Remunerauon Committee will utilise the policy as set out in the table above

All Non-executive Oirectors have specfic terms of engagement the dates of which are set out below

Unexpired term of contract table

Director Date of engagement letter Unexpired term {months as at 29 February 2016}
Ruth Carnie 8 April 2010 {renewed on 30 May 2013) 2 months

Roy Frankiin 17 July 2007 (and 28 July 2009 as Chairman, renewed on | August 2015") 5 months

Chris Girling Il February 2011 (renewed on 14 January 2014) 12 months

Nancy Tuor Moore 26 June 2014 15 months

Paul Withers 17 December 2012 (renewed on 16 December 2015) 33 months

' Roy Frankhns engagement was renewed for a periad of 12 months
The Non-executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any iIncentive plans or pension arrangements

Terms and conditions for Non-executive Directors

The appointment of Non-executive Directors 1s for a fixed term of three years for the first two terms and annually renewable for up to three years
afterwards The appontment may be terminated by erther party on three months notice There are no provisions on payment for early termination in
letters of appointment

The letters of appointment of Non-executive Directors and service contracts of executives are avadable for inspection at the Company's registered office
during normal hours and will be avaifable at the Annual General Meeting
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Service contracts and exit payment policy
In accordance with general market practice, it 1s the Company's policy that Executive Oirectors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for
a maximum of one year s notice

Service contracts between the Company {or other companies in the Group) and iIndividuals who served as Executive Directors at any time during the year
are summarised below All are rolling contracts Executive Director service contracts are available to view at the Company's registered office

Director Date of service contract Notice period Termination payment
Alain Michaelis 14 May 2015 12 months Maximum of basic annual salary plus the far
James Hind 16 May 2003 value of benefits for the unexpired portion of the
A nctice peried, subject to mitigation
Wolfgang Sondermann' 12 February 1998 (maodified by memoranda
of employment dated 5 March 2004, See below for treatment of iIncentives on
20 December 2011 and 9 September 2015) termination In varying circumstances
Justin Atkinson? & March 2003

! Wolfgang Sondermannss service contract s with Keller Holding GmbH
2 Justin Atkinson retired from the Board on |4 May 2015 and his employment with the Company terminated on 31 December 2015

When considering exit payments, the Committee reviews all potential incentive cutcomes to ensure they are fair to both shareholders and participants
The table below summarises how the Awards under the annua! bonus and PSP arrangements are typically treated in specific ¢ircumstancas, with the final
treatment remaining subject to the Committee s discretion

Event Time of vesting Calcutation of vesting/payment

Annual bonus

Resignation Awards lapse Nat applicable

'Good leaver' Death, Ontermination A pro-rata bonus may become payable for the penod up to the termination date
Change of Control Performance targets will continue to apply

Performance Share Plan

Resignation Awards lapse Not applicable

Death As soon as practicable The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest based

on the extent 1o which parformance conditions have been achieved at the relevant date

'Good leaver! Normal vesting date The Committee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest based
on the extent to which performance condions have been achieved over the full
performance period and the proportion of the performance period worked

Change of control Within one month of The Commrttee determines whether and to what extent outstanding awards vest based
the relevant event on the extent to which performance conditions have been achieved at the relevant date,
and the proportion of the performance period worked

' Good leaver 15 defined as 2 parugipant ceasing to be emplayed by the Growp by reason of inury or disability il health redundancy retrement with the agreement of the employer or any
other reason that the Committee determines in its absolute discretion

If employment 15 terminated by the Company the departing Executive Director may have a legal entitlement {under statute or otherwise) to additional
amounts which would need to be met In addition the Committee retains discretion to settle any other amounts reasonably due to the Executive Director,
for example to meet the legal fees incurred by the Executive Director in connection with the termination of employment, where the Company wishes to
enter into a setilement agreement and the individual must seek independent legal advice

In certain crcumstances the Committee may approve new contractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors including {(but not mited o)
settlement, confidentiaiity, restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements These will be used sparingly and only entered into where the Committee
believes that 1t 15 in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders to do so
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Directors’ remuneration report contnued

Annual remuneration report

The following section provides details of how Kefler s remuneration policy was implemented during the financial year ended 31 December 2015

Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited information)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remunerauon receved by each Directar for the financal years ended 3| December 2014 and 2015

Alain Michaelis James Hind Waolfgang Sondermann® Justin Atkinson®

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

£ [4 £ £ £ £ [3 £

Salary 315 - 340 330 313 345 172 468
Taxable benefits' 10 - 13 13 5 13 6 6
Pension benefi? 57 - 6l 60 50 57 51 140
Single-year variable? 270 - 192 109 269 102 204 156
Multiple-year variable* - - 236 612 235 688 328 850
Total 652 - 942 1,124 872 1,205 761 1630

Taxable benefits consist primarily of a car and payment of its operating expenses or car allowance of £15 000 for Alain Michaels and €12 000 and £5 490 1ar James Hind and Wolfgang
Sondermann respectively) private health care Iife assurance and long term disability nsurance

See table below for a breakdown ot pension benefits

See Annual bonus in respect of 2015 performance on page 60 for further details

PSP Awards reflect those vesting based on performance to 3| December 2015 The market price on the date of vesting 1s currently unknown the value 1s estmated using the average market
value over the last quarter of 2015 of 888 69p See 2013 PSP vesting on page 6l for further detalls

Wolfgang Sondermanns salary 1s paid locally in euro The 2014 and 2015 totals are caloulated in GBP using the average currency conversion rate applicable to those years

Justn Atkinson retired as CEQ and from the Board on 14 May 2015 The table above sets out his salary taxable benefits and pension benefit to that date The single year vaniable {annual
bonus) was pro-rated to 30 June 2015

PO

&

Retirement of CEO

Jusun Atkinson retired as CEQ and from the Board on 14 May 2015 and his employment with the Company was terminated on 31 December 2015

Justin served 12 menths notice under his contract of employment from 31 December 2014 to 31 December 2015 and during his natice period continued to
receve his contractual salary, benefits in kind salary contributions in lieu of pension and car allowance Justins salary benefits in kind salary in lieu of pension
and car allowance for the period from 15 May 2015 1o 31 December 2015 totalled £407 000 He also received from the Company a contribution of £20 656
plus VAT towards professional adviser’'s costs and a contribution of £40 000 plus VAT in respect of outplacement service fees, to be used in bullding a
Non-executive Director portfolio Justin's payment under the 2015 annual bonus scheme has been pro-rated up to 30 June 2015, the date he went on
garden leave and no Performance Share Plan { PSP") Award was awarded tc him for 2015

Justin will be treated as a 'Good Leaver' under the PSP and his 2013 and 2014 Awards under the PSP will vest based on the extent to which performance
conditions have been achieved over the full performance period and the proportion of the performance period worked As disclosed in the 2013 Directors
remuneratian report £118 164 of |ustins 2013 bonus was deferred for three years commenang on 31 December 2013, and 1s to be satisfied in cash and
adjusted in Ine with share price movements This payment shall be calculated and paid in accordance with the apphcable annual bonus scheme rules in or
around March 2017 No further payments will be made to Justin in cannection with his loss of office

Recruitment of CEO

As announced on 23 March 2015, Alain Michaelis was appointed to the Board and as CEQ with effect from 14 May 2015 The Commitiee received
independent advice from rts remuneration consultants Kepler on benchmarking for the appointment of an external candidate and from rts corporate
lawyers, DLA Piper. on governance and best practice Afain's salary package meets the criteria set out in the Company's approved remuneration palicy
comprising base salary of £500,000, pension of 18% of salary, a car allowance of £15000, together with benefits including private health care, life assurance
and long-term disability insurance benefits Performance-related pay comprises an annual banus of up to 150% salary (max) and eligibility to participate in
the long-term incentive plan An exceptional award of 200% of safary under the long-term incentive plan was made on appointment Going forward, our
remuneration policy specifies normat awards of 100% of base salary per annurn No buy-out of existing incentive arrangements was required or made
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Total pension entitlements {(audited information)

The changes during the year in the accrued pension entitlements of Justin Atkinson under the Kelter Group Pension Scheme and of Wolfgang Sondermann
under the defined benefit (DB) pension arrangements operated by Keller Grundbau GmbH are shown in the table below The amount shown as accrued
pension at the end of the year 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year

Justin was a member of the Keller Group Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme’) unti 31 December 2015 The Scheme provides a pension based upon a
percentage of final salary and penstons far dependents on death in service or following retirement The table below shaws Justin's accrued Scheme benelits
The Scheme closed to future benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2006, since when he has recerved a szlary supplement in heu of a Company

contribution to an alternative pensicn arrangement equivalent to 30% of salary

The salary supplement 15 not taken Into account in determining bonuses or any other form of remuneration

Increase n

Accrued Accrued accrued benefit
pension pension {net of nflation Value of Pension Total pensicn
31 December 31 December and Drectors DB scheme allowance/DC included n single
2018 2014 contributions) benefits contribution figure table
Executive Director £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Alain Michaelis nfa - - - 57 57
Jarmes Hind nfa nfa - - 6l 6l
Wolfgang Sondermann' 5 5 - 12 50 50
justin Atkinson? 109 109 - - 143 4

' The nermal retirerment age for Waolfgang Sondermann s 65
? The normal retirernent age for Justin Atkinson s 60

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-executive Directors (audited information)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration receved by each Non-executive Director for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the

prior year
Total fees

2015 2114

13 £

Ruth Cairnie £3,200 52300
Roy Franklin 162,900 159700
Chris Girling 53,200 52,300
Nancy Tuer Mocre 53,200 26753
Paul Withers 53,200 52300
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Directors’ remuneration report cntnued

Annual remuneration report continued

Incentive outcomes for the year ended 3| December 2015

Annual bonus in respect of 2015 performance

Under the 2015 annual bonus plan, the Executive Directors delivered strongly on both financial targets and their own personal targets, of which
Alain Michaebs and Justin Atkinson had six and James Hind and Woligang Sondermann each had five

Notably, on the personal cbjectives, Alain and justin ensured a smoacth transition in the handover of the CEQ responsibilities and provided effective
leadership of the business throughout, Jlames led a successful drive for efficiencies and best practice in plant and equipment costs across the business,
overseeing the establishment of a Group Procurement function, and Wolfgang continued to lead improvements in the Groups bid appraisal process,
to reduce the risk from underperforming contracts

lLeading safety targets were met by each of the Executive Directors however the Committee exercised its discretion to reduce the pay-outs under that
target in recognition of two fatalities in the business in the year

The overall outcame I1s an annual bonus pay-out for Executive Directors of between 85% and 88% of salary for 2015 Without the reduction of pay-outs
made at the Committee s discretion on leading safety targets annual bonus pay-outs would have been in the range of 87% and 90%

The Committee did not exercise any discretion In relation to the financzl performance targets The financial targets, together with the actual performance
achieved against each target are set out in the table below

2015 performance targets and outcomes

Personal
Group Group Group strategic

EPS PBT average net debt objectives Total
Director Performance % salary  Performance % salary  Performance % salary % salary % salary
Alain Michaelis'
Threshold 75p 0% £80m 0% £190m 0% 0% 0%
Target 85p 20% £90m 20%
Stretch 95p 35% £100m 35%
Maximum 115p 50% £120m 50% £160m 20% 30% £50%
Actual 84 3p 19% £93m 25% £163Im 18% 24%*
Awarded (after time pro rata) 12% 16% 12% 15% 55%
James Hind
Threshold T5p 0% £80m 0% £190m 0% 0% 0%
Target 85p 20% £90m 20%
Stretch 95p 35% £100m 35%
Maxirmum 115p 50% £120m 50% £160m 20% 30% 150%
ActuaP 84 3p 19% £92m 25% £163m 18% 24%*
Awarded 19% 25% 18% 24% B6%
Wolfgang Sondermann
Threshold 75p 0% £BOm ‘0% £190m 0% 0% 0%
Target 85p 20% £90m 20%
Stretch 95p 35% £100m 35%
Maxamurn 15p 50% £120m 50% £160m 20% 30% 150%
Actual 84 3p 19% £93m 25% £163m 18% 24%*
Awarded 19% 25% 18% 24% 86%
Justin Actkinson?
Threshold 5p 0% £80m 0% £190m 0% 0% 0%
Target 85p 20% £90m 20%
Stretch 95p 35% £100m 35%
Maximum 115p 50% £120m 50% E160m 20% 30% 150%
Actual? 84 3p 19% £93m 25% £163m 18% 24%*
Awarded (after tirme pro rata) 9% 13% 9% 12% 43%

Pro-rated for the period 14 May 2015 to 31 December 2015
Pro-rated for the period | January 2015 te 30 june 2015
At 2015 budget exchange rates before exceptional temns

1
2
1
* Pay-outs under leading safety targets were reduced at the discretion of the Cormmittee by 2% Justin Atkinson elected to receve no pay out under this target.
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2013 PSP vesung

Q
Based on EPS and TSR performance over the three years ended 3| December 2015, the Perforrmance Share Plan Awards made in 2013 wall partially vest =
in June 2016 demonstrating good progress in the delivery of the Groups strategy Further details induding vesting schedules and performance against each 2
of the metrics are provided in the table below g
Measure Weighting Targets Qutcome Vest %
Earmings per share (EPS) 50% 0% vesting below RPI+4% p a RPI+26 5% pa 100%
30% vesting for RPI+4% pa
100% vesting for RPI+9% pa or more
Straight-line vesting between these points
TSR relatve to the constituents  50% 0% vesting below median 52nd centile 347%
of the FTSE All-Share Index 30% vesting for median
(50th centile) performance
100% vesting for upper quintile
(80th centile) performance,
Straight-line vestng between these ponts v
Total PSP vesting 673% :'_>°|
m
0
The value of these Awards to the indndual Executive Directors as shown in the single figure of total remuneration, 1s theretore as follows =
Interests Estimated Estimated
Executive Director Interests held Vesting % vesting Date vested market price' value (£000)
James Hind 39426 673% 26,534 June 2016 888 69p 236
Wolfgang Sondermann 39271 673% 26429 June 2016 888 69p 235
Justin Atkinson 54,801 6§73% 36 881 June 2016 888 &69p 328 ‘
! The market prce on the date of vesting 1s currently unknown the value s estimated using the average market value over the last quarter of 2015 of 888 69p ‘
Scheme interests awarded in 2015 (audited information)
Performance Share Plan {'PSP’} 1
The three-year performance period over which performance will be measured began on | January 2015 and will end on 31 December 2017 -
Awards will vest on 6 March 2018, subject to meeting performance conditions Alan Michaehs award will vest on 20 May 2018 subject to meeting $;
performance cendrtions Q
Shares over which Market price at Face value %
Executive Director Date of grant awards granted date of award (£000} %
James Hind 6 March 2015 65957 1032p 681 m
Alain Michaelis 20 May 2015 98,103 1019p 1,000
Vesting of the PSP Awards 1s dependent on the development of EPS and TSR relative ta the FTSE250 Index (excluding investment trusts) with equal
weighting aver a three-year performance pertod There 15 no retest provision Detalls of the vesting schedules are provided below
EPS vesting schedule {50% of award) Relative TSR vesting schedule (50% of award)
% award vesting % award vesting
100% 100% o
]
<
m
=
r4
P
F4
o
m
\
25% 25% ‘
%
»
z
0
0% 0% ) =
5% 15% 0% 10% o
Keller three-year EPS CAGR (pa) Keller three-year TSR % ocutperformance vs FTSE250 x IT (pa} §
b4
7

KELLER GROUP PLC 6 I
Annual Report & Accounts 2015




Directors’ remuneration report cntnued

Annual remuneration report continued

Payments to past Directors

No payments were made to past Directors during the year

Exit payments made in the year

The termination arrangemenis for Jusun Atkinson have been described on page 58 The Company paid no other exit payments to Directors during the year

Directors’ interests (audited information)

A table setting out the beneficial interests of the Directors and their familkes in the share capital of the Company as at 3|1 December 2015 s set cut below

None of the Directors has a beneficral Interest in the shares of any other Group company Since 31 December 2015 there have been no changes in the

Directors' interests in shares

Ordinary Ordirary

shares at shares at

3] December 3| Decemnber

Director 2015 2014
Adain Michaelis 10,008 -
James Hind 132,166 93258
Wolfgang Sondermann 180,000 130000
Ruth Cairnie 6,000 &000
Roy Franklin 6,000 6,000
Chris Girling 3,000 3.000
Paul Withers 20,000 20000
Nancy Tuor Moore - -
Justin Atkinson 142,657 238,586

! Justn reured as CEQ and from the Board on 14 May 2015 and his holding 1s as at that date

Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements (audited information)
The table below shows the shareholding of each Executive Director against their respective shareholding requirement as at 31 December 2015

Shares held Options held
Unvested and

Owned Vested but subject to Shareholding Current
outright or subject to performance Vested but not requirement % shareholding %' Requirement
vested holding period conditiens exercised salarylfee salaryffee met?
Alain Michaelis 10008 - 98103 - 100% 178% Yes
James Hind 132,166 - 133 615 - 100% 642% Yes
Wolfgang Sondermann 180,000 - 69,724 - |00% 655% Yes
Justin Atkinson? 142 657 - 94,778 - 100% 409% Yes

! Reflects closing price on 31 December 2015 of 822 03p

1 Justin retired as CEQ and from the Board on 14 May 2015 and his holding 1s at that date
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Directors’ interests in options under long-term incentives (audited information)
Details of Directors PSP Awards are set out in the table below

Awards Awards Awards Awards Awards
held at granted exercised lapsed held at Exercise Date from
| January dunng during durng 31 December price which
2018 the year the year the year 1015 (per exeraise) exerusable Expiry date
Alamn Michaels
20 May 2015 - 98103 — - 98,103 100 0p 20/05/18 19711118
James Hind
| March 2012 73,641 - 73641 - - 100 0p 01/03/15 31/08/15
20 lune 2013 39,426 - - - 39,426 100 0p 20/06/16 19112/16
7 March 2014 28,232 - - - 28,232 1000p 07103117 06/09/17
6 March 2015 - 65957 - - - 65,957 1000p 06/03/18 05/05/18
Wolfgang Sondermann
| March 2012 82,907 - 82507 - - 1000p 01703115 31108/15
20 June 2013 39,271 - - - 39,271 1C00p 20/06/16 19/12/16
7 March 20i4 30,453 - - - 30,453 130 0p 07/0317 06/09/17
Justin Atkinson
[ March 2012 102,340 - 102 340 - - 100 0p 01/03/15 31/08/15
20 June 2013 54,801 - - - 54,801' 100 0p 20/06/16 19/12/16
7 March 2014 39,977 - - - 39,977 1000p 07/03N17 Q6109717

! Justin reured as CEC and from the Board on 14 May 2015 and his holdings are as at that date

The performance condrtions for Awards made in 2012 2013 and 2014 are detaled on page 55 The performance conditions for the 2015 Award are
detailed on page 6!

Performance graph and table

The graph below shows the Company's performance measured by TSR compared with the performance of the FTSE250 Index {(excuding investment
trusts) and the FTSE All-Share Index These indices have been selected for consistency with the comparator groups used to measure TSR performance for
outstanding as well as 2016 PSP awards

The graph looks at the value by the end of 2015, of £100 invested in Keller on 31 December 2008 compared with the value of £100 invested in each index

The 1able below details the Chief Executive’s single figure’ remuneration over the same period

Historical TSR performance
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the seven years to 3| December 2015 (£)

400
350 /
300
250
200 P =
P
150 “—-_____—:—ﬁ-:"j‘-—
100
50
0
Dec 2008 Dec 2009 Dec 2010 Dec 2011 Dac 2012 Dec 2013 Dec 2014 Dec 2015
= Koller == FTSE250 (excluding investment trusts) == FTSE All-Share
2009 20100 2010 2012 2013 2014 2015°
Chief Executive single figure of remuneration (£000) 891 550 562 951 1,870 1630 1,420
Annual bonus as a % of maximum opportunrty 12% 0% 0% 57% 84% 23% 85%
PSP vesting as a % of maximum opportunity 3% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 67 3%

! The CEQ wawed any entitlement to a bonus in 2010 and 2011
? The CEC single figure of remuneration has been calculated using Justin Atkinson's emoluments for the period from | January 2015 to 14 May 2015 and Alain Michaels emoluments for the
period 14 May 2015 to 31 Decemnber 2015
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Directors’ remuneration report contnued

Annual remuneration report continued

Percentage change in Chief Executive remuneration

The table following shows the percentage change in Chief Executive remuneration from the prior year compared to ihe average percentage change in
remuneration for our UK senior management population who have been selected for this comparison due to the UK employment location and the
structure of total remuneration ~ most of our management team are able to earn an annual bonus as well as receving a base salary

The pay for all other employees is calculated using the increase in the earnings of full-tme employees The analysis excludes part-tme employees and I1s

based on a consistent set of employees 1e the same iIndvduals appear in the 2014 and 2015 populations

' All other

Chief Executive employees

% change' % change

2014 15 2014-15

Base salary 5% %
Taxable benefits 3% 16%
Annual bonus 204% 78%
Total 35% 27%

' Cakulated using Justin Atkinson s emoluments for the period from | January 2015 to 14 May 2015 and Alan Michaels ernoluments for the period 14 May 2015 to 31 December 2015

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows shareholder distributions (1e dividends) and total employee pay expenditure for the financial years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015, zlong with the percentage changes

2015 2014 %

£im £m change

Distribution to shareholders 191 180 61%
Employee remuneration 402 2 4045 Q5%

The Directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 of 18 3p per ordinary share

Implementation of the remuneration policy for 2016

Base salanes in 2016

In line with the remuneration policy the Committee reviewed pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group The salaries of Alain Michaels, James Hind and
Wolfgang Sondermann were increased by 3% commensurate with general pay increases of 3% across the Group

Salary Salary Increase
Exccutive Director for 2016 for 2015 from 2015
Alain Michaelhs £515,000 £500,000 3%
Jarmes Hind £350,500 £340,400 3%
Wolfgang Sondermann’ £324,214 £355402 3%

' Wolfgang Sondermanns salary 15 pad locally in eure The 2015 and 2016 totals are calculated in GBP using the average currency conversion rate apphcable to those years
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Pension
Wolfgang 1s a member of the DB pension arrangements established by Keller Grundbau GmbH His accrued benefits under these arrangements are
included in the table on page 59 Wolfgang Is also a member of 2 DC scheme and will continue ta receve contributions of 17% of salary

James and Alain will continue to receive a salary supplement each totalling 18% of salary in 2016

Annual bonus for 2016
The financial targets for the 2016 annual bonus are based on the same performance metrics as in 2015 The actual targets for 2016 are considered to b
commercially sensitive and accordingly they are not disclosed in this report, but will be disclosed retrospectively in the 2016 remunerauon report

2018 annual bonus weightings (% of salary)

4

Personal

Group average strategic
Group EPS Group PBT net debt objectives Total
Alain Michaels 50% 50% 20% 30% 150%
James Hind 50% 50% 20% 30% 150%
Wolfgang Sondermann 50% 50% 20% 30% 150%

For bonuses paid in respect of 2016, the Commuttee continues to have discretion to reduce bonuses in exceptional arcumstances {down to zero 1f
appropriate) to take into account factors adversely impacting the Compary’s reputation This discretion is in addition to the safety underpin whereby
bonuses may be reduced by up to 10% if pre-defined lead safety targets are not delivered

Performance Share Pian {PSP) for 2016
The performance conditions for PSP Awards made in 2016 will be unchanged compared to the 2015 Awards, the vesting schedules are as shown in the
charts on page 63

Chatrman and Non-executive Director fees
With effect from | January 2016 fees payable to the Chairman of the Board and the basic fee payable to each Non-executive Director were increased

by

3% The Chairmans fee 15 £167 800 per annum and the basic fee payable to each Non-executive Director 15 £47000 per annum An additional payment of
£7,500 1s made to those Non-executive Directors who additionally act as Chairman of a Committee and the Senior Independent Director The additional

fee remains unchanged from 2015

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration
The following Directors were members of the Remuneration Committee when matters relating 1o the Directors remuneration for the year were
being considered

— Ruth Cairnie
- Chris Girling
— Nancy Tuor Moore (apponited with effect from 24 September 2015)
— Paul Withers

During the year the Commitiee receved assistance from Jackie Holman (HR Director until 30 Novemnber 2015) Serge Zimmerhn (HR Director from
I December 2015) and Kerry Poreitt {Company Secretary) on salary increases and bornwus awards and policy and governance matters respectively In
deterrmning the Executive Directors' remuneration for 2015 and 2016, the Committee has consulted the Chairman and the Chief Executive about its
proposals, except {in the case of the CEO) in relation to his own remuneration No Director 1s involved in determining their own remuneration

Mo member of the Committee has any personal finanaial interest {other than as a shareholder), conflict of interest anising from cross-directorships ar
day-to-day involvement in running the business Given their diverse backgrounds, the Board believes that the members of the Committee are able to
offer an informed and balanced view on executive remuneration issues
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Directors’ remuneration report cntnued

Annual remuneration report continued

External advisers

During the year the Committee continued to recetve advice from Kepler Associates ( Kepler') an independent firm of remuneration consultants appointed
by the Committee after consultation with the Board In 2015 Kepler provided independent advice on remuneration policy and the external remuneration
environment, benchmarking data, and provided remuneration advice in the context of CEO succession planning

Kepler reports directly to the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and does not advise the Company on any other issues Kepler s total fees for the
provision of remuneration services in 2015 were £41 881 onthe basis of time spent Kepler 1s a founding member and signatory of the Code of Conduct for
Remuneration Consultants, details of which can be found at www remunerationconsultantsgroup com Kepler's parent company Mercer Ltd provides
unrelated advice to Keller management in the area of Leadership Assessment which 15 managed completely separately Kepler has confirmed that the
appropriate segregation of personne! and information 1s 1n place to safeguard the independence of Kepler

The Company s corporate lawyers DLA Piper LLP prowvided legal advice on CEQ succession matters Fees in 2015 relating to this matter amounted to £2,736
The Commuttee s satisfied that the adwice they have receved has been objective and independent

Statement of shareholder voting
The fallowing table sets out the results of the vote on the Remuneration report at the 2015 AGM and the Remuneration policy at the 2014 AGM

Yotes for Yotes against
Number % Number % Votes cast  Yotes withheld
Remuneration report 2015 40443 065 78 B4% 10855 825 21 16% 51,298,594 3746975
Remuneration policy 2014 47818 830 9787% 1,042 595 213% 48,861,425 575,571

Buring 2015, the Committee used its discretion to make an exceptional performance share award of 200% of salary to the Finance Director, James Hind
1o provide for Executive Director continurty during the leadership transiton The Committee considers that this award which 1s permitted under our
approved remuneration policy was in the interests of sharehclders

The annual remuneration repart received 79% suppart from shareholders reflecting the different view of a minority of shareholders and 15§ The Committee
takes seriously the views of ail shareholders and will consider very carefully any future exceptional award

Ruth Cairnie
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

29 February 2016
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report together with the audited consalidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

This report 1s required to be produced by law The Disclosure and Transparency
Rules and Listing Rules also require us to make certain disdosures

The Corporate governance statement including the Audit Committee report,
form part of this Directors report and 1 incorporated by reference Disclosures
elsewhere n the Annual Report and Accounts are cross-referenced where
appropriate Taken together, the Strategic report on pages 4 to 39 and this
Directors report {ulfil the requirement of Disclosure and Transparency Rule

4| 5R to provide a Management report.

Results and dividends

The results for the year, showing a profit before taxation” of £95 7m (2014
£85 Im), are set out on pages 72 to 105 The Directors recommend a final
dvidend of 18 3p per share to be paid on 10 June 2016, to members on the
register at the close of business on 20 May 2016 An interim dividend of 8 8p
per share was paid on 4 September 2015 The total dividend for the year of
27 1p (2014 25 2p) will amount 1o £19 Im (2014 £18 Om)

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate financial resources

to continue operating for a period of (2 months from the date of this report
and that it 1s therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements

The Directors have satisfied themselves that the Group 15 1n a sound
financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing faclities and
can reasonably expect sufficient facil:ties to be avallable to meet the Groups
foreseeable cash requirements Further information is provided in note 23
to the accounts and the Financial review

Viability statement

In accordance with prowision C 2 2 of the 2014 revision of the Code,
the Cirectors have assessed the prospects of the Group over a
three-year period

1} The Board selected the three-year period as
a the Group's business planning and budget processes are carried out
over a three-year period which provides the relevant estimates, and
b three years s a reasonable approximation of the maximum time taken
rom procuring a project to completion and therefore reflects our
current revenue earning cycle

) The review included cash flows and ather key financial ratios over the
three-year period These metrics were subject to downside sensriivity
analysis which invalved flexing a number of the main assumptions
underlying the forecast both individually and in uison This downside
sensrivity analysis was carried out to evaluate the potential impact on the
Group 1If both the effects of the globa! financial crisis were to be repeatad
and there was a substantial charge arising from a contract dispute The
review also made certain assumptions about the normal level of capital
recycling ikely to occur and considered whether additional financing
faciities would be required

The Directors' assessment has been made with reference to the Groups
current position and prospects, the Groupss strategy, the Board s risk
appetite and the Groups principal risks and how these are managed, as
detailed in the Strategic report

On the basis of the above and other matters considered and reviewed by
the Board during the year the Board has reasonable expectations that the
Group will be able to continue In operation and meet its habilities as they fall
due over the next three years In doing so it 1s recognised that such future
assessments are subject to a level of uncertainty that increases with time and,
therefore future outcomes cannot be guaranteed or predicted with certainty

Financial instruments

Full details can be found n note 23 to the financial statements and in the
Financial review

Post balance sheet events

There were no post balance sheet events in the period from | January 2016
to the date of signing the accounts

Before excaptional tems

Change of control

The Group's main banking facilities contan provisions that, upon 15 days
notice being given to the Group lenders may exercise ther discretion to
require immediate repayment of the loans on a change of control and
cancel all commtments under the agreement

Certain other commeraal agreements entered into in the normal course of
business indude change of control provisions There are no agreements prowding
for compensation for the Directors or employees on a change of control

Transactions with related parties

Apart from transactions between the Company Its subsidiaries and joint
operations, which are related parties there have been no related party
transactions during the year

Directors and their interests

The names of all persons who at any time during the year, were Directors
of the Company can be found on page 45 The interests of the Directors
helding office at the end of the year in the 1ssued Ordinary Share capital of
the Company and any interests in 1ts performance share plan are given in
the Directors remuneration report on pages 62 and 63

MNo Director had a material nterest in any significant contract other thana
service contract or a contract for services, with the Company or any of its
operating companies during the year

The Company's Articles of Association Indemnify the Directors out of the assets
of the Company In the event that they suffer any loss or hiability in the execution
of their duties as Directors subject to the prowvisions of the Comparues Act
2006 The Company maintains insurance for Directors and Officers in respect
of habilies which could arise on the discharge of their duties

Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company I1s managed by the Board who may exercse
all the powers of the Company subject to the provisions of the Company's
Articles of Association the Companies Act 2006 and any crdmary
resalution of the Company Speafic treatment of Directors powers
regarding allotment and repurchase of shares 1s provided under separate
headings below

Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Company s Articles of Asscaation may be made
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of
special resoluticn

Appomntment and replacement of Directors

Directors shall be no less than two and no more than 12 in number Subject
to applicable law a Director may be appointed by an ordinary resclution of
shareholders in general meeting following nomination by the Board or a
member (or members) entrtted to vote at such a meeting, or following
retirement by rotation if the Director chooses to seek re-election at a
general meeting In addition, the Directors may appoint a Director to fill a
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the indwidual retires at
the next AGM A Director may be removed by the Company as provided
for by applicable Jaw, in certain crcumstances set out in the Company s
Articles of Assocation (for example bankruptcy or resignation) or by a
special resolution of the Company All Directors stand for re-election on
an annual basis in ine with the recommendations of the Code

Employees
The Group employed approximately 10,000 people at the end of the year

Employment policy

The Group gives full and far consideration 1o applications for employment
made by disabled persons having regard for their respective aptitudes and
abilities The policy ncludes where practicable, the continued employment
of those who become disabled during their employment and the provision
of training and career development and promotion where appropriate
Infermation on the Group's approach to employee involvernent, equal
opportunities and health, safety and the environment can be found in the
Resources and relationships report on pages 30 and 31

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year Keller has an estabhshed
policy of not making donations 1o any political party representatve or
candidate in any part of the world
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Directors’ report cortnued

Greenhouse gas enmissions
Information relating to the greenhouse gas emissions of the Company 1s
set out on page 31 and 1s incorporated by reference into this report

Research and development

The Group continues to have in-house design, development and manufacturing
faclities, where staff work closely with site engineers to develop new and more
effective methods of sehving problems of ground conditions and behawour
Most of the specialised ground improvement equipment used in the business
15 designed and built in-house and, where applicable, the development costs
are included in the cost of the equipment Further information on our latest
activities can be found on page 7 of the Strategic report

Share capital

Detalls of the share capital, together with details of the movements in the
Company's Issued share capital during the year, are shown in note 24 Share
capital and reserves The Company has one class of Ordinary Shares which
i1s listed on the London Stock Exchange (‘Ordinary Shares’) Ordinary Shares
carry no right to a fixed income, and each Ordinary Share carries the right
to one vote at general meetings of the Company

There are no speafic restrictions on the size of 2 shareholding, nor on the
transfer of shares, which are both governed by the Articles of Assocation
and the prevailing law The Directors are not aware of any agreements
between shareholders that may result In restrictions on voting rights and
the transfer of securities No person has any special rights of control over
the Company s share capital and all issued shares are fully pad

Details of employee share schemes are set oul in note 28 Share-based
payments Shares held by the Keiler Group plc Employee Benefit Trust are
not voted

Repurchase of shares

The Company obtained shareholder authority at the last AGM (14 May 2015)
to buy back up to 7309974 Ordinary Shares The authority remains outstanding
until the conclusion of the 2016 AGM but could be varied or withdrawn by
agreement of shareholders at an intervening General Meeting The mimimum
price which must be paid fer each Ordinary Share 15 its nominal value and the
maximum price Is the higher of an amount equal to not more than 5% above
the average of the middle market quotations for an Ordinary Share as derived
from the London Stock Exchange Dally Officaal Ust for the five business days
immediately before the purchase i1s made and an amount equal to the higher
of the price of the last Independent trade of an Ordinary Share and the highest
current independent bid for an Ordinary Share on the trading venue where
the purchase 15 carned out

The Directors have not used and have no current plans to use, this autherity

Allotment of shares and pre-emption disapphcation

Shareholder authority was also given at the last AGM for the Directors to allot
new shares up to a nominal amount of £2 375 660 equivalent to approximately
one-third of the Company s 1ssued share caprtal (excluding treasury shares) as
at 2 March 2015 and to disapply pre-emption rights up 10 an aggregate nommnal
amount of £356 349 representing approximately 5% of the Company's 1ssued
share caprtal as at 2 March 2015

The Directors have not used and have no current plans to use, these authories

Substantial shareholdings

AL 29 February 2016, the Company had been notfied in accordance with
chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Finanaal Conduct
Authority of the following voting rights of shareholders in the Company

Percentage

Number of of the

Company's voting

Ordinary Shares total nghts
Standard Life Investments {Holdings) Limited 6,261,390 878%
Old Mutual Plc 4946 626 697%
Schroders plc 3632097 507%
Frankin Templeton Insttutional LLC 3557757 496%
Norges Bank 2973272 417%
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Auditors

The Board has decided that KPMG LLP will be proposed as the Group's
auditors for the year ending 3| December 2016 and a resolution to appoint
KPMG LLP will be put to shareholders at the 2016 AGM

Annual General Meeting

The 2016 AGM of the Company will take place at the offices of Investec,
2 Gresham Street, Londen EC2V 7QP at [ 00 am on Tuesday 24 May
2018 The full wording of the resolutions to be tabled at the meeting 1s set
out in the Notice of AGM

Disclaimer
The purpose of this Annual Report and Accounts 1s to provide information
to the members of the Company as a body, and no other persons

The Company. its Directors and employees agents or advisers do not
accept or assume responsibility to any other person to whom this document
15 shown or into whose hands it may come and any such responsibility or
liability 1s expressly disclaimed

The Annual Report and Accounts contain certain forward-looking statements
with respect to the operations, performance and financial condition of the
Group By therr nature, these statements involve uncertainty since future
events and circumstances can cause results and developments to differ
materially from those anticpated The forward-looking statements reflect
knowledge and nformation avallable at the date of preparation of this Annual
Report and Accounts and the Company undertakes no obligation to update
these forward-looking statements Nothing in this Annual Report and
Accounts should be construed as a profit forecast

Information included in the Directors' report

Certain information that fulfils the requirements of the Corporate
governance statement can be found in the Directors' report in the sections
headed ‘Substantial shareholdings ‘Repurchase of shares' ‘Amendment of
the Company s Articles of Assocation, ‘Appointment and replacement of
Directors’ and Powers of the Directors’ and 15 incorporated into this
Corporate governance seclion by reference

Other information

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors'
report confirm that, in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006 so far as they are each aware, there I1s no relevant
audrt information of which the Company's Auditors are unaware, and each
Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a
Director to make hm or herselfl aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company s Audrtors are aware of that information

Beliry -

Kerry Porntt
Company Secretary

29 February 20l6
Registered Office
Sth floor, | Sheldon Square
Lendon W2 6TT

Registered in England No 2442580




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report ang the
Group and Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company
financial statements for each financial year Under that law they are required
10 prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
{EU) and applicable law and they have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financal
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the
state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or lass for that
periad In preparing each of the Group and Company financial statements
the Directors are required to

~ select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

— make judgmenits and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

— for the Group financial staternents, state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

— for the Company financial statements, state whether the applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materia departures
disclosed and explained in the Company financial statements, and

— prepare the financal statements on the gaing concern basis unless 1t 15
inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company will continue in
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that
are sufficient to show and explain the Cormpany's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Company
and enable them to ensure that 1ts financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for 1aking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and 1o
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic report, Directors report Directors’ remuneration
report and Corporate governance statement that complies with that law
and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial infermation included on the Company's website
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial staterments may differ irom legistation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

— the financal statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards give a true and fair view of the assets habilities
financial pasiuion and profit or lass of the Company and the undertakings
ncluded in the consolidation as a whole and

- the Directors report induding content contained by reference includesa
fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position and performance of the Company and the undertakings ncluded
1n the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
prinapal risks and uncertainties that they face

The Board confirms that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
15 fair balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the performance strategy and business model of
the Company

Sigrned on behalf of the Board

A

Alain Michaelis
Chief Executive Officer

D

James Hind
Finance Director

29 February 2016
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the members of Keller Group plc only

Opimons and conclusions aristng from our audit

| Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Keller Group plc for the year
ended 3| December 2015 set out on pages 72 to 05 In our cpinion

~ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Groups
and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the
Group's profit for the year then ended,

~ the Group financal statements have been properly preparad in accordance
with International Financal Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union

— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards including FRS 101 Reduced
Disdosure Framework and

~ the finanoal statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group
financial staternents, Artecle 4 of the IAS Regulation

2 Our assessment of risks of material misstacement
In arrnang at our audit opimion above on the financial statements, the risks of
matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit were as follows

Accounting for construction contracts
Refer to page 50 (Audit Committee report), page 79 (accounting policy) and
pages 83 and 89 (financal statements disclosures)

— The nsk Contract accounting 1s considered to be an ongong significant
audit risk as 1t requires a high degree of estmation and judgement of
matters such as the percentage of work completed at the balance sheet
date on longer term contracts, the costs of the work required to complete
the contract and the outcome of claims and variations rased aganst
customers and claims raised against the Group by customers or third
parties Including the provision for the final outcome of a significant historic
dam which was recognised as an exceptional tem in 2014 Error in any
of these judgerments could result in a material variance in the amount of
profit or loss recognised to date and therefore also in the current periad

— Our response Qur audit procedures included testing controls over
contract-related expenditure and assessing the accounting judgments
appled to a selection of contracts with the greatest impact on the Group's
financial results, including those considered to be tugh risk due to such
factors as known issues on the contract or the nature of work being
undertaken For a selection of those contracts in progress at the balance
sheet date we challenged the Groups assumptions on costs to complete
the contract through agreeing cost estimates 1o internal forecasts and to
sub-contracts and assessing the reliability of the Group s forecast costs ta
complete by considering historical accuracy on completed contracts For
contracts completed by the year end, we assessed subsequent settlement
of revenue recogrused In respect of claims and variations raised against
customers, we checked that these were recognised only once agreed
with the customer In respect of these ¢lams raised against the Group by
customers or third parues, on a selection of contracts we challenged the
progress on the daims and corroborated explanations provded considered
prior experience on settlement of claims and nspected correspondence
with the counterparty and with the Group's legal adwisers or insurers
We considered the adequacy of contract-related disclosure In relation
to the provision held for the signuficant historic claim we have held
discussions with the Groups Directors and challenged their judgements
on the estimated future costs to Incur, Including assessment of third-party
documentation We considered the adequacy of disclosures of the matter
and of the related uncertainties
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Carrying value of goodwill
Refer to page 50 {Audit Committee report) page 79 {accounting policy) and
pages 86 and 87 (financial statements disclosures)

- The nsk There s a risk of mpairment of the Group s significant goodwall
balances due to prolonged downturn or structural change in the refevant
construction market In particular there 15 increased rnisk on the balance
at £57 3m related to Keller Canada where the ail sands business 1s
currently experiencing a downturn i investment A partal imparment
on this goodwill balance has been recogrised during the year The Group
estimates recoverable amount based on value-in-use which includes
significant estmation and judgernent in the selection of key inputs for the
future cash flows specifically forecast revenue and operating margin
along wath discount rates

— Our response Our audit procedures included assessing the reasonableness
of the Group's assumptions by reference to past performance externally
derwved data forecasts for economic faciors, and current order book
Our valuation speciahists assisted in evaluating the assumptiens and
methodologies underlying the discount rates adopted by the Group
We considered the sensitvity of the level of headroom avallable in the
calculations to reasonably possible changes in assumptions to identify areas
to focus our testing on We assessed whether the Group's disclosures about
the sensitivity of the outcome of the iImpairment assessment te changes In
key assumpticns reflected the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill

3 Qur application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at
£45m (2014 £3 9m) determined with reference to a benchmark of Group
profit before taxation, normahised to exclude this year's exceptional items as
disclosed on the face of the income statement, of £95 7m (2014 £85 Im) of
which it represents 4 7% (2014 4 6%)

We report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identfied
misstatements exceeding £0 2m (2014 £0 2m) in addition to other
identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitatwe grounds

Audits for Group reporting purposes were perfarmed by component
audrtors at the key reporting components including North America, EMEA,
Asia and Australia

The compenents wrthin the scope of our work accounted for the following
percentages of the Group's results

— Group revenue — 88%

— Group profit and loss before tax ~ 95%

— Group profit and loss before exceptional items and taxation — 94%
— Group total assets — 80%

The rermaining 12% of total Group revenue, 5% o1 Group profit and loss
berore tax and 20% of total Group assets is represented by reporting
components none of which indvidually represented more than 5% of any
of total Group revenue, Group profit before tax or total Group assets
For these remaining components, we performed analysis at an aggregated
Group level to re-examine our assessment that there were ne significant
risks of material misstatement within these

The Group audit team instructed component auditors as to the significant
areas 1o be covered including the relevant risks detalled above and the
infarmation to be reported back The Group audit team approved the
dmisional component materiahties, which ranged from £04mto £3 25m
having regard to the mix of size and risk prefile of the Group across the
components Aside from the audit of the parent company that was
performed by the Group audrt team the wark on all of the companents
was performed by the component auditors




The Group audit team visited the two largest divisional component locations
in North America and EMEA Telephone conference meetings were also
held writh these component audrtors and with the component auditors in
Asia and Australia At these wisits and meetngs the findings reported to

the Group audit team were discussed in more detall, and any further

work required by the Group audit team was then performed by the
component auditor

4 Qur opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
15 unmodified
In our opinion

— the part of the Directors remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and

- the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the finanoal statements

5 We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing
material to add or draw attention to in relation to

- the Drectors’ statement of viabilty on page 67, concerning the principal
risks, their management and, based on that, the Cirectors' assessment and
expectations of the Groups continuing in operation over the three years to
3| December 2018 or

— the disclosures in note | of the financial statements concerning the use of
the geing concern basis of accounting

6 ¥Ve have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are
required to report by exception

Under 1SAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you If, based

on the knawledge we acquired during our audit we have identified other
information in the Annual Repart that contains a matenal nconsistency with
either that knowledge or the financial statements, a material misstatement
of fact orthat s otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to report to you if

— we have identified materizl Inconsistencies between the knowledge we
acqured during our audit and the Directers statemnent that they consider
that the Annwal Report and financial statements taken as a whole is far
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
sharehclders to assess the Group’s position and performance, business
madel and strategy, or

-~ the Corporate governance report does not appropriately addrass matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in
our opInIon

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parert company,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visted by us or

— the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audrted are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns or

— certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speafied by law are not
made or

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required tc review

— the Directors staternents, set out on page 67 1n relation to going concern
and longer-term viability, and

— the part of the Corporate governance statement on page 43 refating to the
Company's compliance with the eleven provisions of the 2014 LK
Carporate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing to report In respect of the above responsibilities

Scope and responsibilittes

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set
out on page 69, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the finanaal staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and
far view A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s
provided on the Finanaal Reporting Council's website at www frc org uk/
auditscopeukprivate This report is made solely to the Company's
members as a body and 1s subject to iImportant explanations and
disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at
www kpmg comfuk/auditscopeukeo?2014a which are incorporated

Into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide an
understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have
undertaken and the basis of our opinions

Willlam Meredith (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London El4 5GL

29 February 2016
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2015 2014 2014
Before Exceptronal Before Exceptional
exceptional tems exceptional items
items {note 7) 20015 tems {nota 7} 2014
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 1,562 4 - 1,562 4 1,5997 - 15997
Operating ¢costs 5 (1,459 0) (387 (1,497T7) (1 5077) (567) (I 5644)
Operating profit 3 103 4 (38.7) 647 920 (567) 353
Finance income 8 08 - 08 15 - 15
Finance costs 9 {8.5) o7 %2 84 ()] (86)
Profit before taxation 957 (394) 56.3 851 (569 282
Taxation 10 (33 0) 30 {30 0) (297) 03 (294)
Prafiti{loss) for the period 62.7 (36 4) 263 554 (56 6) ()]
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 619 (36 4) 255 536 {56 6) (30)
Non-controlling interests 08 - 08 18 - |8
627 (36.4) 263 554 {56 6) (12
Earmings/(loss) per share
Basic 12 86 4p 35 Sp 753p “2)p
Diluted 12 85 4p 351p 74 2p “2p
- - .
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2015
2015 2014
Note £im £m
Profiti{loss) for the period 263 [
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 229 (38)
Net investment hedge gains 23 1.7 20
Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity 23 42 (CH
Cash flow hedge transfers 1o income statement 23 41 51
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes 29 03 “4n
Tax on remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes 10 03) 02
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (21 3) (57
Total comprehensive mcome for the period 50 6N
Attributable to
Equrty holders of the parent 43 86
Non-controling interests 07 17
50 69
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangble assets 13 160 1 1835
Property, plant and equipment 14 331.8 256
Deferred tax assets 10 134 100
Other assets 15 229 199
528 2 5090
Current assets
Inventories 16 473 486
Trade and other recervabtles 17 4232 4087
Current tax assets 126 40
Cash and cash equivalents 19 631 8556
546 2 5469
Total assets 3 1,074 4 10559
Liabilities
Current habilities
Leans and borrowings 23 (35) 27
Current tax habilities (X)) (139
Trade and other payables 20 (373 4) (353 2)
Prowsions 2t (347 (500)
4183 “198)
Non-current habilhittes
Loans and borrowings 23 (242 6) (185 1)
Retirement benefit habilities 29 (23.1) (254)
Deferred tax habiities 10 (26 7) (197)
Provisions 21 an (33
Other liabilities 22 (22 6) (36 3)
(322 1) (2898)
Total habilities 3 (740 4) (709 6}
Net assets 3 3340 3463
Equity
Share caprtal 24 73 73
Share premium account 381 381
Caprtal redemption reserve 24 76 76
Translation reserve (12 8) 83
Other reserve 24 569 569
Hedging reserve 01) -
Retained garnings 2335 2245
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 3305 3427
Non-controlling interesis 5 36
Total equity 3340 3463

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 29 February 2016

They were signed on 1ts behalf by

A

Alain Michaelis
Chief Executive Officer

D

James Hind
Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable

Share Capital to equsty MNon-
Share  premwm redemption Translauon Cther Hedging  Retaned halders of controlling Total
capital account reserye reserve reserve resarve 2arnings the parent nterests equity
fm £m £m m £m £m £m £m £m

At l January 2014 73 381 76 100 569 - 2479 3167.8 48 3726
{Loss)/profit for the period - = — - - - (30 (30) '8 (12
Other comprehensive iIncome
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - 37 - - - a3n ©on (38)
Net investrment hedge gains - - - 20 - - - 20 - 2.0
Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity - - - - - &0 - o - %.n
Cash flow hedge transfers to
income statement - - - - - 6l - 61 - 6.1
Rerneasurements of defined benefit
pension schemes - - - - - - @n @l -~ .0
Tax an remeasurements of defined
benefit pension schemes - - - - - - 02 0.2 - 02
Other comprehensive iIncome
for the period, net of tax - - - {7 - - 39 (5 6) on 57)
Total comprehensive income
for the period - - - (17 - - (CE)] (86) §7 69
Dmdends - - - - - - (174) (17 4) (0e) (180)
Share-based payments - - - - - - 19 19 - 1.9
Acquistion of non-controlling interest ~ - — - - - (10 (10} (23) (3 3)
At 3l December 2014 and | January 2015 73 381 76 83 569 - 2245 3427 36 3463
Profit for the period - - - - - - 255 255 08 26.3
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - (22 8) - - - (22.8) on (229
Net investment hedge gains - - - 17 - - - |7 - 1.7
Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity - - - - - [GI¥A] - 412) - (4.2)
Cash flow hedge transfers to
Income staterment - - - - - 41 - 41 - 41
Remeasurements of defined benefit
pension schermes - - - - - - 03 03 - 0.3
TFax on remeasuremenits of defined
benefit pension schemes - - - - - - ©3 (0 3) - 03
Other comprehensive income
for the period, net of tax - - - 210 - n - (21 2) ©nh (213
Total comprehensive iIncome
for the period - - - n - @n 255 43 07 50
Dwvidends - - - - ~ - (83 (18 3) {©8) (e
Share-based payments - - - - - — i8 18 - 1.8
At 3| December 2015 73 381 76 (128) 569 01y 2335 3305 35 3340
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2018 2014

Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit before exceptional items 103 4 920
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 509 480
Armortisation of intangible assets 1.2 i9
Profit on szle of property plant and equipment (0 3) 03)
Other non-cash movements &4 89
Foreign exchange losses 01 ol
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 168 7 1506
Decrease in inventories 05 139
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables (n 12
Decrease in trade and other payables (4 on
Change in provisions, retirernenit benefit and other non-current llabilivies 4 (102
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 142 3 1654
Cash flows from exceptional items (275 -
Cash generated from operations i4.8 1654
interest paid {6.6) (1on
Income tax paid (44 3) (2849
Net cash inflow from operating activities 63.9 1269
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved 05 05
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 51 35
Acquistion of subsidiaries net of cash acquired (52 5) (50)
Acquistiion of property, plant and equipment (74 2) {63 6)
Acquisttion of intangible assets (0 8) 09N
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1219 (65 5)
Cash flows from financing activities
New borrowings 712 953
Repayment of borrowings 923) (103 6)
Payment of finance lease habiliies (1 4) (12
Dradends paid (191 (180)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 41 4 (275)

¢

Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (16.6) 339
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 856 507
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations [CH))] |10
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periad 19 629 856
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I General information

Keller Group ple ('the parent’ or 'the Company ) 1s a company incorporated
in the United Kingdom The consolidated financial statements are presented
1n peunds sterling (rounded to the nearest hundred thousand), the
functional currency of the parent Foreign operations are induded in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2

2 Principal accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consohdated financial statements have been prepared and approved by
the Directers in accerdance with Internatienal Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), as adopted by the EU

The Company prepares its parent company financal statements in
accordance wrth FRSIG| these are presented on pages 98 to 105

Basis of preparation

The financial staterments are prepared on the historical cost basis except
that derivative financal instruments are stated at their fair value The carrying
value of hedged items are where relevant re-measured to fair value in
respect of the hedged risk Except as noted below these accounting policies
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consclidated
financial statements and have been applied consistently by subsidiaries

The consoldated financral staternents are prepared on a going concern
basis as set out in the Directors report on page 67

Changes in accaunting policies and disclosures

There s no significant financal impact on the Group financial statements
of the following new standards amendments and interpretations that are
i issue for the financial year ending 3|1 December 2015

- Amendments 1o 1AS |5, Defined benefit plans Employee contributions
— Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

- Annual improvements to IFRSs 20112013 cydle

— IFRIC interpretation 2| Levies

There are ne standards amendments or interpretations adopted by the EU
that are in1ssue but not yet effective that are expected to have a significant
impact on the Group finanaal statements The Group Is considering the
impact an the Group finanaal statements of adopting standards
amendments or interpretations not yet adopted by the EU induding IFRS 9
Finanoal instruments’ IFRS |5 Revenue from contracts with customers'
and IFRS 16 Leases'

Basis of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements conschdate the accounts of the
parent and rts subsidiary undertakings (collectively ‘the Group ) made up to
31 December each year Subsidaries are entrues controlled by the Company
Control exists when the Company has power over an entity, expaosure to
variable returns from its involvement with an entity and the ability to use its
power over the entity to affect its returns Where subsidiary undertakings
were acquired or sold during the year, the accounts include the results for
the part of the year for which they were subsidtary undertzkings using the
acquisition method of accounting Intra-Group balances, and any unrealised
income and expenses arising from intra-Group transactions are eliminated
in preparing the conselidated financial statements

Joint operations

From time to time the Group undertakes contracts jontly with other
parties These fall under the category of jont operations as defined by
IFRS 1T Im accordance with IFRS |1, the Group accounts for its own share
of assets liabilities, revenues and expenses measured according to the
terms of the agreements covering the joint operations

KELLER GROUP PLC
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Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of work done on construction contracts
performed during the year on behalf of customers or the value of goods
or services delivered to customers In accordance with IAS |1, contract
revenue and expenses are recognised in propertion to the stage of
completion of the contract as soon as the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated relhably

The far value of work done 15 calculated using the expected final
contract value, based on contracted values adjusted for the impact of any
known variations and the stage of completion calculated as costs to date
as a proportion of total expected contract costs Bid costs zre expensed
as incurred

In the nature of the Group s business the results for the year include
adjustmenits to the outcome of construction contracts induding joint
operations, completed in prior years arising from claims from customers
or third parttes and claims on customers or third parties for variations to
the original contract

Provision aganst claims from customers or third parties ts made in the
year in which the Group becomes aware that a clarm may arise

Income from variaticns and claims on customers or third parties s enly
recognised once agreed

Where 1t 1s probable that a loss will arise on a contract full provision for
this foss 1s made when the Group becomes aware that a loss may arise

Revenue In respect of goods and services 1s recognised as the goods and
services are delivered

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other ieases are classified as operating leases

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are capitalised
in the balance sheet at the lower of fair value or present value of minimum
lease payments and depreciated m accordance with the Group's accounting
pohcy The capital element of the leasing commitment is included as
abligations under finance leases The rentals payable are apportioned
between interest, which s charged to the income statement and caprtal,
which reduces the outstanding obhgation

Amounts payable under operating leases are charged to contract werk in
progress or operating costs on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Foreign currencies

Balance sheet items in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date Income statements and
cash flows of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated into sterling at
average rates of exchange for the year

Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of opening net assets and
Income statements at clesing and average rates of exchange respectively are
dealt with in other comprehensive Income along with changes in far values
of associated net investment hedges All other exchange differences are
charged to the iIncome statement .




2 Prinaipal accounting policies continued
The exchange rates used n respect of principal currencies are

2015 2014
US dollar average for pered 153 165
US dollar period end 1 48 155
Canadian dellar average for period 195 182
Canadian deofiar period end 2.05 (1
Euro average for pericd 138 124
Euro period end 136 128
Singapere dollar average for period 2.10 209
Singapore dollar period end 2.09 205
Awustralian dollar average for penod 2,03 183
Australhan dollar period end 203 150

Interest income and expense
Allinterest Income and expense 1s recognised in the income statement
in the period in which 1t 1s incurred using the effective interest method

Employee benefit costs
The Group cperates a number of defined benefit pension arrangements
and also makes payments into defined contnbution schemes for employees

The labiity in respect of defined benefit schemes s the present value of
the defined benefit obligations at the balance sheet date, calculated using
the projected unit credit method less the fair value of the schemes' assets
As allowed by |AS 19 the Group recognises the current service cost and
interest on scheme net habilities in the ncome statement and
remeasurements of defined benefit plans in other comprehensive

income in full in the period in which they occur

Payments to defined contribution schemes are accounted for on an
accruals basis

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and the
deferred tax charge

Provision 1s made for current tax on taxable profits for the year Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in the income
staternent because 1t excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and 1t further excludes items that are rever
taxable or deductible The Groups lability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax is recagnised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and habilibes in the financizl statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method

Full provision 1s made for deferred tax on temporary differences in hne
with IAS 12 'Income Taxes' Deferred tax assets are recogruised when it 1s
considered likely that they will be utilised against future taxable profits

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In
the period when the hability 15 settled or the asset 1s realised Deferrea tax
15 charged or credrted to the Income staternent, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity or to other comprehensive
income in which case the related deferred tax is also dealt with in equrty
or in other comprehensive Income

Property, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
deprecration and impairment

Depreciation
Depreciation i1s not provided on freeheld land

Depreciation I1s provided to write off the cost less the estmated residual
value of property pfant and equiprment by reference to their estimated
useful ives using the straight-ine method

The rates of depreciation used are

Buildings 2%
Long-Ife plant and equipment B%
Short-lfe pfant and equipment 12%
Motor vehicles 25%
Computers 33%

The cost of leased properties 1s depreciated by equal instalments over the
period of the lease or 50 years whichever 1s the shorter

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations in accordance with

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2008)' using the acquisition method as
at the acquisition date which 15 the date on which control is transferred
to the Group

For acquisiions on or after | January 2010, costs related to the acquisition
are expensed as incurred Any contingent consideration payable 1s recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date with subsequent changes to the fair value
being recognised in profit or loss, unless the change was as a result of new
information about facts or arcumstances existing at the acquisition date
being obtained during the measurement period in which case the change 15
recognised in the balance sheet as an adjustrment to goodwil! For acquisitions
before | January 2010, transaction costs were capitalised as part of the cost
of the acquisition Any contingent consideration payable was recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date with subsequent changes to the fair value
being recognised in the balance sheet as an adjustment to goodwill
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Principal accounting policies continued

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation, representing the difference between the
far value of the purchase consideration and the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary undertaking at the date of acquisition 1s
capitalised as an intangible asset

The fair value of identifiable net assets in excess of the far value of purchase
consideration Is credited to the income statement in the year of acquisition

Subsequent to initial recognition goodwill 1s measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment
annually and whenever there 1s an (indication that the goodwill may be
impaired in accordance with |AS 36 with any impairment losses being
recognised immediately n the ncome statement Goodwill arising prior
to | January 1998 was taken directly to equity in the year in which 1t
arose Such goodwill has not been renstated on the balance sheet

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill include purchased licences,
software patents customer contracts non-compete undertakings,
customer relationships, trademarks and trade names Intangble assets
are capitalised at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over their
useful economic lives from the date that they are available for use and
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisaticn and impairment losses
Useful eccnomic lives do not exceed seven years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are accounted for
inrbially at fair value

Impairment of assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there 15 any indication that those assets have
suffered an imparment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amounit of the asset 15 estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss f any

Capital work in progress

Capttal work in progress represents expenditure on property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction Transfers are made to other
property plant and equipment categaries when the assets are avallable
for use

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and estmated net realisable
value with due allowance being made for obsolete or slow-moving iterns

Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable direct labour costs
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
therr present location and condition

Finaneial instruments

Finanoial assets and financizl habilities are recognised on the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument
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Dervative financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 39 and recogrised inttially at fair value

The Group uses currency and interest rate swaps to manage financal nsk
Interest charges and financial habilities are stated after talkang account of
these swaps

The Group uses these swaps and other hedges to mrtigate exposures to
both foreign currency and interest rates

Hedges are accounted for as follows

Cash flow hedges The effecuve part of any gain or less on the hedging
Instrument 1s recogrised directly in the hedging reserve Any ineffective
portion of the hedge Is recognised immediately in the income statement
The associated cumulative gam or loss is removed from equrty and
recognised in the income statement in the same period or periods
during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss

Fair value hedges Changes in the fair value of the dervative are recogrised
immediately in the income statement The carrying value of the hedged item
1s adjusted by the change in fair value that 15 attrbutable to the risk being
hedged and any gains or losses on remeasurement are recognised
immediately in the income statement

Net investment hedges The effective portion of the change in far value
of the hedging instrument 1s recognised directly in the translation reserve
Any ineffectiveness is recognised mmedately in the income statement

Trade recelvables

Trade recervables do not carry any interest, are inrtially recognised at
fair value and are carried at amortised cost as reduced by approprate
aflowances for estimated rrecoverable amounts

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing are initially recognised at far value
and are carried at amortised cost

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at far value less attributable issue costs
Subject to inial recognition, berrowings are stated at amortsed cost

Provisions

A provision Is recognised In the balance sheet when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and where it 1s
probable that an outflow will be required to settle the obligation

Financial guarantees

Where Group companies enter into financial guarantee contracts to
guarantee the indebtedness or obligations of other campanies within the
Group these are considered to be insurance arrangements, and accounted
for as such Inthis respect the guarantee contract is treated as a contingent
liability until such time as it becomes probable that the guarantor will be
required to make a payment under the guarantee




2 Principal accounting policies continued

Share-based payment

Charges for employee services received in exchange for share-based
payment have heen made n accordance with IFRS 2

Options granted under the Group's employee share schemes are equity
settled The far value of such opticns has been calcutated using a stochastic
madel based upon publicly available market data, and 1s charged to the
Income statement over the performance period with a corresponding
Increase In equity

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of options that are expected 1o vest based on the service and
non-market vesting condrtions It recognises the impact of the rewision to
original estimates 1f any 1n the Income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equrty

Segmental reporting

IFRS B requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about compenents of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
Chief Operating Decision Maker to allocate resources 10 the segments and
to assess their performance The Group determines the Chief Operating
Decision Maker to be the Board of Directors

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business
actvities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transacuons with any of the Group's
other components Segmental results are presented as operating profit
before exceptional items Sagment assets are defined as property, plant and
eguipment intangible assets, inventories and trade and other receivables
Segment liabilities are defined as trade and other payables, retirement
benefit labilities, provisions and other liabilities The accounting policies of
the operating segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies

Dividends

Interim dividends are recorded in the Group's consolidated financial
staternents when paid Final dividends are recorded in the Greoup's
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they receive
shareholder approval

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are disclosed separately in the financal statements where
it 15 necessary 1o do so to provide further understanding of the financial
perfermance of the Group They are rtemns which are exceptional by their
size or are nen-trading in nature including those relating to acquisitions

Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements in confarmity with
IFRS requires management to make judgments estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reperted amounts of assets and
labilities income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the crcumstances the resutts of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results
may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis
Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that and prior periods or in the
peried of the revision and tuture periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods

The key estimates and judgments in drawing up the Group's consolidated
financial statements are in connaction with accounting 1or construction
contracts and the carrying value of goodwill

Constructon contraces The Group's approach to key estmates and
Judgments relating to construction contracts 1s set out in the revenue
recognition policy above The man factors considered when making those
estimates and judgments include the percentage of work completed at the
balance sheet date on longer-term contracts the costs of the work required
1o complete the contract and the outcome of claims raised against the
Group by customers or third parties With regards to the provision
recognised in 2014 for the contract dispute outlined in note 7, the Group
has estimated the expected cost of the remaining remedial actions to be
undertaken as part of the settlement agreement and the value of the
property following these remedial actions The value of the property has
been determined using an external professional valuation with the future
rental yields being the sigrificant assumption underlying the valuztion

Carrying value of goodwill The Group tests annually whether goodwill

has suffered any mpairment in accordance with the accounting policy set out
above The Group estimates the recoverable amount based on value-in-use
calculations These calculations require the use of assumptions, the most
important being the forecast revenues operating margins and the discount
rates applied

The Group also uses estimates in assessing the amount of any contingent
consigeration payable The significant assumptions used in these calculations
are forecast revenue growth and forecast margins
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

3 Segmental analysis
The Group 15 managed as four geographical divisions and has only one major product or service specialist ground engineering services This is reflected in
the Group s management structure and in the segment information reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker

2015 014

2015 Operating 2014 Operating

Revenue profit Revenue profit

im £m £ra

MNorth America 851 2 76 4 7756 556
EMEA) 441 5 213 4515 129
Asia 108 2 45 i3 83
Australa 161 5 72 2613 157
1,562 4 109 4 15997 968
Cernitral items and eliminations - (6 0) - (48)
Before exceptional tems 1,562.4 103 4 1,.5997 920
Exceptional items (note 7) - (387) - (67
1,562 4 647 1,5997 353

2015 2015

2015 2015 2015 2015 Depreciation Tangible and

Segment Segment Caprtal Capital and mtangible

assets habilities employed additions amortisation assets

. im £m £m £m £m £rm

North America 5087 (165 5) 343 2 305 19.8 245 6
EMEA! 2699 (182 2) 86.7 31 4 174 1309
Asia 974 (32 3) 651 6.8 65 452
Australa 101.9 (38.8) 631 57 8.3 696
971.9 (419.8) 5581 74 4 520 4913

Central tems and eliminations? 96 5 (320 6) (224 1) 06 01 06
1,074 4 (740 4) 3340 750 521 491 9

2014 2014

2014 2014 2014 2014 Depreciation Tangible and

Segment Segment Capttal Capital and intangible

assets habilities employed additons amortisation assets

m £m £m £m m £m

North America 4994 {1599 3395 233 172 2516
EMEA! 2833 (2152) 68 | 231 189 1274
Asia 847 2949 553 108 55 474
Australa 851 {142} 409 73 82 526
952 5 (448 7) 5038 645 498 4790

Central tems and eliminations? 1034 (2609) (1575) - 0l 0l
10559 (7096) 3463 645 499 4791

! Europe Middle East and Africa
t Central tems include net debt and tax balances

Revenue and non-current non-financial assets are analysed by country below

Non-current

Revenue non-financial assets?
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m fm Em £m
United States 773 4 6665 1967 1559
Australia 1615 2613 696 526
Canada 777 1082 649 1222
United Kingdom (country of domicile) 61.8 675 19.2 192
Other 488 0 4962 1575 1450
1,562 4 1,5997 5079 4949

> Mon-current non-financal assets comprise intangible assets property plant and equipment and other non-current non-financial assets

s
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4 Acquisitions
2015 acquisitions

Bencor Austral Ellington Cross Total
Far Far Far Fair
Carmyng value Far  Carmyng value Far  Carryng vahue Fair Carrying value Faiwr
amount  adjstrment value amount  adjustrnent value amount  adjustment vakse amount adjustment value
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m fm
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets - 38 38 - 87 a7 - 04 04 - 129 129
Property plant and
equipment 167 - 167 96 15 11 06 - 06 26.9 15 28 4
Cash and cash equivalents - - - I - Il - - - 1.1 - 11
Recevables 100 - 100 39 - 39 12 - 12 151 - 151
Other assets 0l - 0l 16 - 16 - - - 17 - 17
Loans and borrowings - - - (o - ({IY)] - - - (10) - (10)
Deferred tax - - - 03 - 03 - - - 03 - 03
Other labilities 48 - (48) {59) — (59) {05) - 0% (11.2) - (1.2)
220 38 258 96 102 198 13 04 17 329 14 4 47.3
Goodwill 32 67 02 10 1
Total consideration 290 265 19 574
Satisfied by
Instial cash consideration 290 199 19 508
Contingent consideration - 66 - 66
290 265 19 574

On 17 August 2015 the Group acquired the trade and selected assets of the GeoConstruction group {'Bencor ) of Layne Christensen Company, a business
based in Dallas, USA The fair value of the intangible assets acquired represents the far value of customer contracts at the date of acquisttion and the trade
name Goodwill arising on acquisrtion 1s attributable to the knowledge and expertise of the assembled workforce, the expectation of future contracts and
customer relationships and the opportunity to expand Bencor's diaphragm wall technology around the Group

On 2 July 2015 the Group acquired [00% of the share capnal of Austral Construction Pty Limrted (Austral ) a business based in Melbourne Australiz
The far value of the intangible assets acquired represents the far value of customer refationships and customer contracts at the date of acquisition
Goodwill arising on acquisition 1s attributable to the knowledge and expertise of the assembled workforce, the expectation of future contracts and
customer relationships and the operating synergies that arise from the Groups strengthened market position Contingent consideration of up 1o £99m
(A%$20 0m) 1s payable based on total earnings before interest tax deprecaticn and amortisation in the three-year period following acquisition The full
amount of contingent consideration is currently provided for

On 17 August 2015 the Group acquired the trade and selected assets of Ellington Cross LLC (‘Ellington Cross'), a business based in Charleston USA

The fair value of the total recevables in all acquisitions 1s not materially different from the gross contractual amounts receivable and 15 expected to be
recovered in full (nthe pericd to 31 December 2015 Austral Bencor and Ellington Cross contributed £35 Im to turnover and £0 5m to the net profit
before exceptional items of the Group Had the acquisitions all taken place on | fanuary 2015, total Group revenue would have been £1 606 4m and total
net profit before exceptionzl items would have been £65 Om

The adjustments made in respect of acquisitions in the year to 31 December 2015 are provisional and will be finalised within 12 months of the
acquisition date

2014 acquisitions

On 14 August 2014 the Group acquired the trade and selected assets of Ansah Sdn Bhd, a business based in Kuantan, Malaysia for an imitial cash
consideration of £3 5m (RMI90m) £1 4m (RM7 ém) of the purchase price relates to property plant and equipment with the remaining purchase price
allocated to goodwill Contingent constderation of up to £1 5m (RM8 Om) 15 payable based on total earnings before interest and tax in the three-year
period following acquisiion The full amount of contingent consideration i1s currently provided for

On 15 May 2014, the Group acquired the remaining 45% minority shareholding of Keller Engenharia Geotecnica Ltda in Brazil for a cash consideration
of £2 8m {(R$I0 7m) at a premum of £1 Om (R$4 1Im) to net book value which has been taken directly to reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements wontinued

5 Operating costs

2015 2004
Note £m £m
Raw materials and consumables 4503 4815
Staff costs 6 402.2 4045
Orther operating charges 493 4 Sl4
Amortisation of intangibles 12 19
Operating lease and short-term rental expense
Land and buildings 96 95
Plant, machinery and vehicles 514 509
Depreciation
Owned property, plant and equipment 505 476
Property plant and equipment held under finance leases 04 04
Operating costs before exceptional items 1,459 0 | 5077
Exceptional tems {note 7) 387 567
1,4977 | 5644
Other operating charges siclude
Redundancy and other reorganisation costs 44 44
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audn of the Company's Annual Accounts 0l (o]
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for other services
The audrt of the Company s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 10 10
Tax compliance services 02 02
Tax advisory services 0.1 02
Other assurance services 01 0l
6 Employees
The aggregate staff costs of the Group were
1015 2014
im im
Wages and salaries 3500 3504
Socral security costs 40 4 419
Cther pension costs 100 103
Share-based payments 18 P9
402 2 4045
These costs include Directors' remuneration Directors' remuneration comprised 2015 0
im ﬂl':\
Short-term employee benefits 27 290
Past-employment benefits 0l 0l
Share-based payments o9 03
37 30
The average number of persons Including Directors employed by the Group during the year was 2015 014
Number Number
North America 3,841 3316
EMEA, 3,917 3900
Asia 1,345 1,233
Australia 678 674
9,781 %123
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7 Exceptional items
Exceptional tems are items which are exceptional by therr size or are non-trading In nature including those relating to acquisitions Exceptional items
comprise the following

2015 2014

im im

Goodwill mpairment 312 —
Contract dispute - 540
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 73 66
Acquisttion costs 0.2 05
Contingent consideration and payments - 47)
Crther - 03
Excepticnal tems in operating costs 38.7 567
Exceptional finance costs 07 02
394 569

The geodwill mpairment relates to Keller Canada The results for Keller Canada have been below those expected at the time of the acquisition, primarily
due to a severe slowdown in investment in the Canadian oil sands fallowing the very significant reduction in the oll price since the tme of acquisition
Further details are set out in note 13

The prior year charge for a contract dispute relates to a project that the Group's UK subsidiary Keller Limied completed in 2008 The dispute was subject
to Itigation proceadings involving a number of parties but thase were settled in February 2015 The final cost to Keller 1s subject to a number of remedial
and other actions to be undertaken as part of the settlement agreement and the value of the property following these remedial actions The exceptional
charge represents management’s best esumate of the net cost to Keller before taking account of future recoveries under applicable insurances as these
cannot be recognised under IFRS until they are virtually certan’ Given the uncertainty assocated with any future Insurance recoveries It s not currently
practicable to estimate the value of these recoveries During 2015 the Group paid net £27 5m refating to this contract dispute The remainder of these
costs are largely expected to be incurred within the next year

Amortsation of acquired intangible assets primarily relate to Keller Canada Franki Africa and the acquisttions set out In note 4

The prior year credit for contingent consideration and payments mamnly relates to the release of previously provided contingent consideration for the
acquisition of Keller Canada which the Group ne longer expects to pay

Exceptional finance casts relate to the unwind of discounted contingent consideration to present value

8 Finance income

2015 2014
£m £m
Bank and other interest recevable 06 06
Other finance income 02 0%
08 I'5

9 Finance costs
2015 2014
£m m
Interest payable on bank loans and averdrafts 30 37
Interest payable on other loans 29 19
Interest payable on finance leases 01 04
Net pension Interest cost [ X ] 07
Other finance costs 1.9 17
Finanice costs before exceptional items 85 84
Exceptional finance costs (note 73 07 02
92 86
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

10 Taxation

2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 272 351
Prior years 0.2 08
Total current tax 274 343
Deferred tax expense
Current year 45 63)
Prior years (9 I 6
Total deferred tax 26 “9
300 294

UK corporation tax s calculated at 20 25% (2014 2| 5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other jurisdictions 1s calculated at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions

The effective tax rate can be reconciled to the UK corporation tax rate of 20 25% (2014 21 5%) as follows

2015 2014

Before Exceptional Before Exceptional

exceptional items exceptional items

Items (note 7) ftems (hete 7)
m £m £m £m m £m
Profit before tax 957 (39 4) 563 851 (569 282
UK corporation tax at 20 25% (2014 21 5%) 19 4 {8 0) N4 183 {122) 61
Tax charged at rates other than 20 25% (2014 2] 5%) 5.0 (1 8) 132 G4 {on 923

Tax losses and other deductible temporary differences

not recognised 0s 456 51 09 & 125
Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 02 22 20 03 04" 07
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods {17 - ("N 08 - 08
Tax chargef{(credit) 330 (30) 30.0 97 {03) 254
Effective tax rate 34 5% 76% 53 3% 349% 07% 104 3%

The additional tax charged at other rates of tax relates primarily 10 1ax arising on profits from operations in North America where rates are significantly higher

than in the UK

The following are the major deferred tax labilities and assets recognised by the Group and mavements thereen during the current and prior reperting periods

Other
Unused Accelerated Retirernent employee Cther
tax capital benefit related Bad temporary
losses allowances ablgations liabilities debts differences Total
m m £m £m £m im
At | January 2014 4n 317 (26) (103) 46) 39 14 0
(Credit)/charge to the Incorne statement 32 I 4 06 2n 09 “9)
Credtt to other comprehensive income - - {02 - - - 032)
Exchange differences 0l 09 Ol (05) 02 04 08
At 3| Decernber 2014 and | January 2015 ()] 337 3n {102) (GR)] 34 97
(Credit)/charge to the income statement 69 40 02 0l 21 31 26
Charge to other comprehensive ncome - - 03 - - - 03
Acquired with subsidiary - - - - - ©3 (03)
Exchange differences 07 02 0l 03 ©on c4 1.0
At 31 December 2015 (134) 379 (25} (104 “9 66 33
Deferred tax assets include amounts of £92m (2014 £4 Im) where recovery s based on forecasts of future taxable profits that are expected to be
avallable to offset the reversal of the associated temporary differences
The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances
2015 2014
£m £m
Deferred tax liabilities 267 197
Deferred tax assets (3 4) Y
133 97

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of £719m (2014 £25 2m), mainly ansing in the UK and Canada, available for offset against future
profits, on which no deferred tax asset has been recognised Of these losses, £46 6m (2014 £194m) may be carred forward indefinitely
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10 Taxation continued

At the balance sheet date the aggregate of other deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised was

£677m {2014 £953m)

At the balance sheet date the aggregate of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries branches and joint ventures for which no
deferred tax hability has been recognised 1s £93 7m (2014 £71 6m) The unprovided deferred tax hability in respect of these timing differences is £4 2m

(2014 £3 2m)

11 Dividends payable to equity holders of the parent
Ordinary dividends on equity shares

2015 2014
£m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the peried
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 16 8p (2013 16 Op) per share 120 114
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of 8 8p (2014 84p) per share 63 60
18 3 174

The Board has recommended z final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 of £13 Im, representing 18 3p (2014 16 8p) per share The proposed
dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 24 May 2016 and has not been included as a hability in these financial statements

12 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share are calculated as follows

2015 2015 2014 0t4
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
before before before before
exceptional exceptional 1015 2015 exceptional exceptional 2014 2014
items items Basic Diluted tems tems Basic Diluted
£m £m £m £m £m £ £m £m
Earnings/{loss) {after tax and non-controlling
interests), being net profits/{iosses) attributable
to equrty holders of the parent 619 619 255 255 536 536 30 (30)
Number Number Number Number Number Number Number Number
of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of shares
Milhon Mithon Milhion Million Millon Milion Mithonr Milhon
Weghted average of ordinary shares in i1ssue
during the year 717 717 7.7 717 712 712 712 712
Add weighted average of shares under option
during the year - 08 - 08 - 10 - 10
Adjusted weighted average of ordinary shares
In 1ssue 71.7 725 71.7 725 712 722 712 722
2015 2015 2015 2015 214 2014 2014 014
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
Earnings/(loss) per share 86,4 854 355 351 753 742 42 42
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contrued

13 Intangible assets
Other intangble assets

Arising on
Goodwill acquisition Cther Tatal
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At | January 2014 1803 337 166 2306
Addrtions 32 - (03] 41
Exchange differences 09 {10 02 0l
At 31 December 2014 and | January 2015 1844 327 177 2348
Addrtions 101 129 08 23 8
Exchange differences (67} 42 Ol (10 8)
At 31 December 2015 1878 414 186 2478
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At | January 2014 238 62 127 427
Amaortisation charge for the year - 66 19 85
Exchange differences Gl 02 02 0l
At 3] December 2014 and | January 2015 139 126 148 51.3
Impairment charge for the year 312 - - 312
Amortisation charge for the year - 73 12 8.5
Exchange differences (13) {21) 0l (3.3)
At 3l December 2015 538 178 161 B77
Carrying amount
At 3l December 2015 1340 236 25 160 1
At 3l Decernber 2014 and | January 2015 1605 201 29 183 5
At | January 2014 156 5 275 39 187.9

The goodwill mparrment relates to Keller Canada
Other intangible assets arising on acquisition represent custermer relationships customer contracts at the date of acquisition patents and trade names

In 2015 for impairment testing purposes goodwill has been allocated to |8 separate cash-generating units (CGUs) Of these, the carrying amount of
gocdwill allocated to four indmdual CGUs {Suncoast, Keller Canada, HJ Foundations and Keller Limited) 1s significant in comparisan to the total carrying
amount of goodwill and comprises 65% of the total The carrying amounts allocated to four further CGUs taken together comprise a further 23% of
the total The relevant CGUs and the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to each are as set out below together with the pre-tax discount rate
and medium-term growth rate used in their value-in-use calculations

+

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

Carrymg Pre-tax Forecast Carrying Pre tax Forecast

value discount rate growth rate value discount rate growth rate

Cash-generating unit Geographical segment £m % % £m % %

Suncoast North America 291 127 2.0 277 134 30

Keller Canada North America 276 ne 20 649 I3 20

H] Foundations North America 187 149 20 179 160 30

Keller Limited EMEA 12.1 e 20 121 124 20

Hayward Baker North America 97 13 4 20 90 167 30

Resource Piling Asia 77 122 20 79 19 20

Waterway Austraha 6.9 146 10 74 157 10

Austral Australia 6.7 146 290 n/a nfa nfa
Other Various 15.5 136
134 Q 160 5

The recoverable amount of the goodwili allocated to each CGLU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation The calculations all use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by management covering a three-year period

The Groups businesses operate In cyclical markets some of which are expected to continue to face uncertain condrtions over the next couple of years
The most important factors in the value-in-use calculations however, are the forecast revenues and operating margins during the forecast period and
the discount rates apphed to future cash flows The key assumptions underlying the cash flow forecasts are therefore the revenue and operating margins
assumed throughout the forecast period The discount rates used in the value-in-use calculations are based on the weighted average cost of capital of
companies comparable 1o the relevant CGUs, adjusted as necessary to reflect the risk associated with the asset being tested

Management considers all the forecast revenues margins and profits to be reasonably achievable given recent performance and the historic trading results
of the relevant CGUs Cash flows beyond 2018 have been extrapolated using a steady growth rate of between 1% and 29 (shown in the table above),
which does not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the markets in which the relevant CGUs operate
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13 Intangible assets continued
Management believes that with the exception of Keller Canada any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs identified above are based would not cause any of their carrying amounts to exceed therr recoverable amounts

The results for Keller Canada have been below those expected at the time of the acquistion primarily due to a severe slowdown in investrent in the
Canadian ol sands following the very significant reduction in the oil price since the time of acquisition Based on the value-in-use calculation in 2015, the
recoverable amount 1s C$165 Im (£80 Sm) and therefore the Keller Canada goodwill has been impaired by C$60 9m {£3| 2my}, with C$56 6m (£27 6m) of
goodwill remairing on the balance sheet at 3|1 December 2015 Therefore in the event that the assumptiens in the value-in-use calculation were to prove t©
be over optimistic this would lead to a further impairment of goodwill The assumptions underlying the forecasts used in the value-in-use calculation are for
a gradual recovery in the Canadian market in the medium term albert to a level lower than that expected at the time of acquisttion such that the compound
annuzl revenue growth rate 1s 4% over the period under review and operating margins gradually recover to B 5%

A 1% reduction in assumed operating margins (n each year would result in a further impairment of C$20 5m (£100m) Alternatively a 195 increase in the
discount rate would lead to a further impairment of C§15 5m (£7 6m) or a 5% reduction in forecast revenue 1n each year at the assumed operating margins
would result in a further impairment of C$6 2m (£3 0m)

14 Property, plant and equipment

Landand  Plant machinery Caprial work
buildings and vehicles N progress Total
£m im im £m

Cost
At | January 2014 424 5486 03 5913
Addrtions 29 592 15 63.6
Disposals - (118) - (11 8)
Acquired with subsidiaries - | 4 - 14
Reclassification 20 20 - -
Exchange differences 7 05 — (02)
At 31 Decernber 2014 and | January 2015 46 6 5959 18 644 3
Addrions 14 649 79 742
Disposals 04 {183) - (187)
Acgquired with subsidiaries 21 263 - 28 4
Reclassification 02 03 (05) -
Exchange differences {13) (142 (3) (16 8)
At 3l December 2015 486 6549 75 7114
Accumulated depreciation
At | January 2014 95 2999 - 309.4
Charge for the year 17 463 - 48 0
Disposals - 86 - (8 6)
Exchange differences oh - - on
AL 31 December 2014 and | January 2015 (1N 337¢ - 3487
Charge for the year 12 497 - 509
Disposals Qn (138 - (139)
Exchange differences L2 {59 - 6
At 3} December 2015 120 3676 - 379 6
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 366 2873 79 3318
At 31 Decermber 2014 and | January 2015 355 2583 18 295 &
At | January 2014 329 2487 03 2819

The net book value of plant, machinery and vehucdles includes £4 Orm (2014 £39m) in respect of assets held under finance leases

The Group had contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment of £} 9m (2014 £09m) at the balance sheet date
These amounts were not iIncluded in the balance sheet at the year end
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

I5 Other non-current assets

2015 2014
£m fm
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 65 35
Other assets 16 4 164
22.9 199
16 Inventories
2015 2014
im £m
Raw rmaterials and consumables 327 338
Work in progress 10 05
Finished goods 13.6 143
473 436
17 Trade and other receivables .
2015 2004
£rm m
Trade receivables 341 6 3198
Construction work in progress 603 596
Other recevables 12 4 193
Prepayments 89 100
4232 4087
Trade recevables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful debts
The movement In the provision for bad and doubtful debt is as follows 2015 2014
£m im
At | January 365 290
Used during the period (109) {210
Addrtional provisions 126 123
Unused amounts reversed (9.5) @
Exchange differences {0 2) 04
At 3] December 285 365
The ageing of trade recevables that were past due but not impaired was as follows 2015 2014
£m £m
Overdue by less than 30 days 627 6i5
Cverdue by between 31 and 90 days 313 344
Cverdue by more than 20 days 337 243
1277 1202
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18 Construction contracts

Q
Censtruction contracts in progress at balance sheet date =
2015 2014 B
£m £m g
Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits (less recogrised losses) to date 883.5 8875
Retentions withheld by customers 293 280
Advances receved 25 49
Construction contract revenue recogrised in the year in accordance with IAS |( totalled £1 3974m (2014 £1,433 2m)
19 Cash and cash equivalents
2015 014
£m £m
Bank balances 563 797
Short-term depesits 68 59 N
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 631 856 9
Bank overdrafts (02 - g
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 629 856 5
20 Trade and other payables
2015 2014
£m fm
Trade payables 174 6 1714
Other taxes and social security payable 88 88
Other payables 128 3 1420
Accruals 371 308
Fair value of derwvative financial instrurments 24 6 02
373 4 3532
M
Other payables include contract accruals advance billings and contingent consideration of £0 5m (2014 rul) g
b
21 Provisions £
Employee Restructuring Other Z
provisions provisions provisions Total &}
£m £m £m £m
At | January 2015 ié I8 599 733
Charge for the year 45 16 0l 62
Acquired with subsidiaries 08 - - 08
Used during the period 50 ©on (327) (378)
Unused amounts reversed (10) 02 - (12
Exchange differences 03 - 02 05
At 3] Decemnber 2015 Iz 31 275 41.8
8
To be settled within one year 42 31 74 347 P
To be settled after one year 70 - 01 7.1 =z
At 31 December 2015 112 3 275 48 2
Employee provisions comprise obligations to employees other than retirement benefit obligations Qther provisions are in respect of legal and other
disputes tn vartous Group companies induding the provision for the contract dispute outlined In note 7 The prowvision for this contract dispute has been
estimated based on the expected cost of the remaining remedial actions to be undertaken as part of the settlement agreement and the value of the
property following these remedial actions The provision does not take into account any future Insurance recoveries as 1t 1s not currently practicable to
estimate the value of these recoveries The majerity of provisions are expected to be utilised within cne year
22 Other non-current hiabilities
20i% 2014
fm £m
Fair value of derwative finanoal instruments - 194 m—
Other liabiliues 226 169 %
226 363 >
£
o
Other labilities include contingent consideration of £9 Im (2014 £2 8m) E
»
—
%
m
X
m
Zz
-
n
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

13 Financial instruments

Exposure to credit interest rate and currency risks arise in the normal
course of the Group's business Dervative financial instrurnents are used
10 hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest rates

The Group does not trade in finanaal instruments nor does 1t engage
In speculative derwative transactions

Currency risk

The Group faces currency risk principally on its net assets most of which
are in currencies other than stering The Group aims 1o reduce the impact
that retranslation of these net assets might have on the consolidated balance
sheet, by matching the currency of ns borrowings, where possible with the
currency of s assets The majority of the Group s borrowings are held in
US doliars, Canadian dollars Euros, Australian dollars, Singapore dollars

and South African rand n order to provide a hedge against these currency
net assets

The Group manages its currency flows to minimise currency transaction
exchange sk Forward contracts and other derivative finanaal instruments
are used to hedge significant Indmidual transactions The majority of such
currency flows within the Group relate to repatriation of profits, mtra-
Group loan repayments and any foreign currency cash flows assocrated
with acquisitions The Group's foreign exchange cover s executed
primarily in the UK

At 31 December 2015, the far value of foreign exchange forward contracts
outstanding was £04m (2014 £02m), included in current lizbilities

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 1s managed by mixing fixed and floating rate borrowings
depending upon the purpose and term of the financing

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other recervables bank
and cash balances and a imrted number of investments and dervatives held
1o hedge certain of the Group's labilities These represent the Groups
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to finanoal assets

The Group has stringent procedures to manage counterparty risk and the
assessment of customer credrt risk 1s embedded n the contract tendering
processes Customer credit risk s mitigated by the Group's relatively small
average contract size, its diversity, both geographically and in terms of end
markets, and by taking ourt aredrt insurance in many of the countries in which
the Group operates No individual custormer represented more than 5%

of revenue In 2015 The counterparty risk on bank and cash balances is managed
by lmrting the aggregate amount of exposure to any one nstitution by reference
to therr credit rating and by regular review of these ratings The ageing of trade
recervables that were past due but not impaired is shown in note |7

Liquidity nsk and capital management

The Groups capital structure is kept under constant review taking account

of the need for, avalability and cost of various sources of finance The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, as shown on page 91, and equrty
attributable to equrty holders of the parent as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet The Group mantans a balance between certainty of funding and a
flexible, cost-effective financing structure with all main borrowings being from
committed faciliies The Group's policy continues 1o be to ensure that its capital
structure 1s appropriate to support this balance and the Groups operations

{n order to mamntain or adjust the caprtal structure the Group may adjust the
amount of dvidends paid to shareholders return capital to shareholders issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt The Group's debt and committed
faciities mainly comprise a LUS$40m private placement repayable in 2018, a
US$50m private placement repayable in 2021, a US$75m private placement
repayable iIn 2024 and a £250m syndicated revolving credit facility expiring in
2019 These faciities are subject 1o certan covenants linked to the Group's
finanaing structure, specifically regarding the raucs of debt and interest 1o
profit The Group has complied with these covenants thraughout the period

At the year end the Group also had other committed and uncommitted
borrowing facities totalling £51 4m (2014 £407m) to support local requirements
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Private placements

In August 2012 US$40m was raised through a private placement with US
nstitutions The proceeds of the issue of US$40m 5 0% notes due 2018 were
used to repay existing debt In October and December 2014 a further US$50m
and USE75m respectively were raised through & private placerment with US
institutions The proceeds of the issue of US$50m 3 81% Series A notes due 2021
and US$75m 4 17% Seres B notes due 2024 were used to refinance the 2004
USSA0m 548% private placement notes which matured in October 2014 and
other existing debt

The US private placement loans are accounted for on an amortised cost basis
adjusted for the impact of hedge accounting (as described below), and retranslated
at the spot exchange rate at each penod end The carrying value of the private
olacement llabilties at 31 Decernber 2015 was £114 7m (2014 £108 8m)

Hedging

In June 2006, US$185m of floating rate intra-Group debt was swapped

into sterling floating rates by means of dollar sterling cross-currency interest
rate swaps (‘the 2006 swaps) The 2006 swaps have the same maturity as
the intra-Group debt and have been designated as cash flow hedges of the
Company's exposure to the vaniability of cash flows on the intra-Group
debt resutting from changes in foreign exchange rates

The fair value of the 2006 swaps at 3| December 2015 represented
aliabiity of £24 2m (2014 £18 5m) included in current habilities

(2014 non-current liabilties) The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the 2006 swaps, a loss of £56m (2014 £772m) has been taken
to the hedging reserve and fully recycled through the income statement
during the year

The 2012 US$40m fixed rate private placement liabilities were swapped
into sterling by means of dollar sterting cross-currency fixed interest rate
swaps Also onthe same date £25 5m of sterling was swapped into euros
by means of sterling euro cross-currency fixed interest rate swaps These
interest rate swaps (‘the 2012 swaps ) have the same maturity as the private
placement hability The dollar sterling swaps have been designated as cash
flow hedges of the Company s expasure to the variability of cash flows on
the private placement resufting from changes in foreign exchange rates and
the sterling euro swaps have been designated as net investment hedges of
the Group's euro-denominated net assets

The fair value of the 2012 swaps at 3| December 2015 represented an
asset of £28m (2014 £0 5m) included in other non-current assets and a
lability of £ril (2014 £09m) included in other non-current habilities The
effectve portion of the changes in the fair value of the dollar sterling swaps,
agan of £1 5m (2014 £I Im) has been taken to the hedging reserve and
fully recycled through the income statement during the year The efiective
pertion of the changes n the fair value of the sterling euro swaps, a gain of
£17m (2014 £20m) has been taken to the translation reserve through
other comprehensive income along with the foreign exchange gains and
losses arising en retranslation of the-euro-denominated assets they hedge

The 2014 US$50m and US$75m fixed rate private placement liabilities
were swapped into floating rate by means of US dollar interest rate swaps
(the 2014 swaps) The 204 swaps have the same maturity as the private
placement liabiliies and have been designated as fair value hedges of the
Group's exposure to changes in the fair value of the US private placement
loans and related interest cash flows due to changes in US doltar

interest rates

The far value of the 2014 swaps at 31 December 2015 represented an
asset of £37m (2014 £3 Om) which is induded in other non-current assets
The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of the 2014 swaps, a
gain of £0 8m (2014 £3 Om), has been taken to the ncorne statement atong
with equal and opposite movement In fair value of the corresponding
hedged rtems

All hedges are tested for effectiveness every six months using the cumulative
dollar offset method All hedging relationships remained effective during the
year The ineffective pertion of the movement in the fair value of the
hedging instruments was £02m (2014 £nil)




23 Financial instruments continued

Effective interest rates and maturity analysis
In respect of interest-earning financral assets and interest-bearing financial habilities, the following table indicates ther effective interest rates at the balance
sheet date and the periods in which they mature

2015 2015 2018 Due :f‘:tlai 2015 2015
Effective Due within Due within mere than Tatal Due withtn 2015
interest rate 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years non-current 1 year Total
% £m £m £m £m £m Em
Bank overdrafts 50 - - - - 03 02)
Bank lcans® 24 - (123 &) (2.9} (k26 5) (12 (1271 7)
Other loans 2.2 - (270) 877 (114 7) 0.3) (115 0)
Obligations under finance leases’ 88 {0 8) {0 8) - (1.4) {8 (32)
Total loans and borrowings (0 8) (151 2) (90 &) (242 8) 35 (246 1)
Bank balances’ 10 - - - - 56.3 563
Short-term deposits’ 30 - - = - 68 68
Net debt {0 8) (1512 (90 6) (242 6) 596 (182 0)
Derwative financial instruments - 28 37 65 (24 6) (18 1)
014
2014 2014 2014 Due after 2014 2014
Effective Due within Bue within more than Total Due within 2014
Interest rate |-2years 2-5 years 5 years nen current | year Total
% m m £m £m £m
Bank loans” 18 (05) (722) (H0) {7373 (12 (749
Cther loans® 16 - (258) 830 (108 8} - (108 8)
Obligations under finance leases’ 73 {19 (O] — (26) (15 “h
Total loans and borrowings 24 987) (840) (1851) 27 {187 8)
Bank balances’ |6 - - - - 797 757
Short-term deposits” 28 - - - - 59 59
Net debt 24 987) (840) (185 1) 829 (1022)
Dervative financial nstruments {18 6) Q41 31 {59 02 {16 1)
These include assets/liabilities bearing interest at a fixed rate
Loans and borrowings consist of the following
2015 2014
£m £m
US$75m private placerent (due December 2024) 53.1 503
LJS$50m private placement (due October 2021) 3446 327
£250m syndicated revolving credit faality (expiring September 2019) 123.1 719
US$40m private placement (due August 2018) 270 258
Bank overdrafts 02 —
Obligations under finance leases 312 41
Other loans and borrowings 4.9 30
Total loans and borrowings 246 1 1878

In addition there were non-interest-bearing financal labiliies comprising trade and other payables of £311 7m (2014 £322 2m) which were payable within one
year £05m (2014 nil) of contingent consideration in respect of acquistions taking place on or after | January 20101 payable within one year £1 Om (2014 nil) 1s payzble
between one and two years and £8 Im (2014 £2 8m) 15 payable between two and five years

The Group had unutiised committed banking facilities of £127 6m at 31 December 2015 (2014 £173 Im) This manly comprised the unutilised portion
of the Group s £250m facility which expires on 4 September 2019 In addition the Group had unutilised uncommitted borrowing facilities totalling £259m
at 3| December 2015 (2014 £24 3m) All of these borrowing facilities are unsecured Future obligations under finance leases totalted £3 5m (2014 £4 6m),

including interest of £03m (2014 £0 5my)

Fair values

The fair values of the Group s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values The following summarises the major
methods and assumptions used In estimating the fair values of financial nstruments

Derivatives

The far value of interest rate and cross-currency swaps is calculated based on expected future principal and interest cash flows discounted using market
rates prevalling at the balance sheet date In 2015 and in 2014 the valuation methods or all of the Group's dervative financial instruments carried at far value
are categorised as Level 2 Level 2 1s defined as inputs, other than quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities, that are
observable for the asset or lability either directly (1e as prices) or indirectly {ie derved from prices)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

13 Financial instruments continued
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Fair value 1s calculated based on expected future principal and interest cash flows discounted using market rates prevaling at the balance sheet date

Conuingent consideration .
Fair value 15 calculated based on the amounts expected to be paid determined by reference to forecasts of future performance of the acquired businesses
discounted using market rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and the probability of contingent events and targets being achieved

in 2015 and in 2014 the valuation methods of all of the Group's contingent consideration carried at fair value are categorised as Level 3 Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or hability

The significant uncbservable inputs used In the far value measurement of the Group s cantingent censideration are forecast revenue growth rates
(2015 -10%—14%) forecast EBITDA margins (2015 9%—23%) and pre-tax discount rates {2015 15%-22%}

The following table shows a reconaliation from the opening to closing balances for Level 3 fair values

Contingent
consideration

£m
At | January 2015 5.5
Provision released {note 7) ©9
Addrtional amounts provided (note 7) 09
Paid during the year (2 6)
Assumed within business combinations (note 4) 6.6
Unwind of discounted contingent consideration {note 7) 07
Exchange differences? (0 6)
At 31 December 2015 26
' Restated from 3| Decemnber 2014
? Included in other comprehensive ncome
The far value measurement of the contingent consideration could be affected If the forecast revenue growth rates or forecast EBITDA margins
are different to those stated above A higher forecast revenue growth rate or higher EBITDA margin may increase the value of the contingent
consideration payable
Trade and other payables and receivables and construction work in progress
For payables and receivables with a remaining life of one year or less the carrying amount 1s deemed to reflect the fair value All other payables and
recewvables are discounted using market rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
Interest rate and currency profile
The profile of the Groupss financal assets and financial habilties after taking account of swaps was as follows
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Sterling usp Euro CAD Other' Total
Weighted average fixed debt interest rate - - 39% 12.6% - nfa
Weighted average fixed debt period (years) - - 33 11 - nia
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Fixed rate financial liabilities - - (29 8) an - (30 9)
Floating rate financial habilities - (87.7) 237 (67.7) (36 1) (215 2)
Financial assets 2.8 114 10.4 2.2 36.3 63 1
Net debt 28 (76.3) (13 1) (66 6) 02 (183 0)
1014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
Sterhrg ush Euro CAD Other Total
Weighted average fixed debt interest rate - - 44% - 84% n/a
Weighted average fixed debt period (years) - - 38 - K] nfa
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed rate financial hiabilties - = (276) - 03 (en
Floating rate financial Labilities - @30 (193 (409) (16 5) (1597)
Financial assets 14 153 172 25 492 856
Net debt 14 (677) (2%7) (384 322 (1022)

' Included within other floating rate financial labiliies are AUD revolver loans of £19 5m (2014 £nil) ZAR revolver loans of £34m (2014 £13 3m) and SGD revolver loans of £99m
(2014 £2 0m) Included within other financial assets are AUD cash balances of £53m (2014 £120m) ZAR cash balances of £34m {2014 £2 8m) and SGD cash balances of £2 3m
(2014 £2 8m)

92 KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015




23 Finanaial instruments continued

Sensiuvity anatysis

At 3| December 2015, 1t 1s estimated that a general increase of one parcentage point In interest rates would decrease the Group's profit before taxation
by approximately £1 6m (2014 £08m) The impact of interest rate swaps has been ncluded in this calculation

It 1s estmated that a general increase of 10 percentage pomnts in the value of sterling aganst other prinapal foreign currencies would have decreased the
Group's profit before taxation and exceptional items by approximately £8 Zm for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 £8 2m) This sensitvity relates
to the impact of retranslation of foreign earnings anly The impact on the Group's earnmgs of currency transaction exchange risk 1s not significant

24 Share capital and reserves

2015 2014
£m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Equrty share capital
73099735 ordinary shares of 10p each (2014 73 09%735) 73 73

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no rights to fixed mcome There are no restrictions on the transfer of these shares

The caprtal redemption reserve is a non-distributable reserve created when the Company s shares were redeemed or purchased other than from the
praceeds of a fresh 1ssue of shares

The other reserve 1s a non-distributable reserve created when merger relief was appled to an 1ssue of shares under section 612 of the Companies Act
2006 to part fund the acquisition of Keller Canada The reserve becomes distributable should Keller Canada bhe disposed of

The tota! number of shares held in Treasury was | 3m (2014 | 8m)

25 Related party transactions
Transactions between the parent, its subsidiaries and joint operations, which are related parties have been eliminated on consolidation

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel and related parties of the Group s set out In note &

26 Commitments

{a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting peried but not yet incurred was £1 9m (2014 £09m) and relates to property, plant and
equipment purchases

(b) Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group's total commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows

2015 2014

2015 Plant, 2014 Plant
Land and machinery 2015 Land and machinery 2014
buildings and vehicles Total buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m fm m £m £m
Payable within one year 22 43 i35 130 63 163
Payable between one and five years inclusive 20.6 4.8 25.4 184 51 235
Payable in over five years 97 ol 98 106 - 106
395 9.2 487 390 14 504

27 Contingent habihities

Claims against the Group arise in the normal course of trading Some of these cdlams involve or may involve litigation and 10 a few instances, the total
amounts claimed against the Group may be significant in relation to the size of the related contract However, the amounts agreed, If any, are generally
less than the total amount clamed in many cases significantly so, and are normally covered by the Group's insurance arrangements The Directors best
estimate based on their knowledge as at the date of these accounts of the likely amounts payable by the Group on account of such claims has been
accrued in these accounts

The Group has entered into bonds in the normal course of business relating te contract tenders, advance payments contract performance the release
of retenticns and the Group's insurance arrangements The estimated financial effect of these bonds apart from the fees paid, 1s £nil (2014 £nil)

The Company and certain of ris subsidiary undertakings have entered into a number of guarantaes in the ordinary course of business, the effects of which
are to guarantee or cross-guarantee certan bank borrowings and other habilities of other Group companies

At 31 December 2015 the Group had standby letters of credit outstanding totalling £15 2m (2014 £13 Om)
As set out In note 10 of the Company financial statements the Company has provided a guarantee of certain subsidiaries’ hiabilities to take the exemption

from having to prepare indvidual accounts under section 394A and section 394C of the Companies Act 2006 and exemption from having their financial
statements audited under sections 479A to 479C of the Companies Act 2006
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements woninued

28 Share-based payments
The Group has a share eption plan the Performance Share Plan

Detalls of the terms and conditions of the Performance Share Plan are set out in the Directors remuneration report on pages 55 and 61

Under the Performance Share Plan all awards have an exercise price of £1 per exercise Options outstanding are as follows

Performance
Share Plan
options
OQutstanding at | January 2014 1185084
Granted during 2014 206069
Lapsed during 2014 (54307
Exercised during 2014 (340 105)
Outstanding at 3t Decermber 2014 and | [anuary 2015 996,741
Granted during 2015 295283
Lapsed during 2015 (6289)
Exercised during 2015 (512 475)
Qutstanding at 31 December 2015 773,260
Exercisable at | January 2014 3750

Exercisable at 31 December 2014 and | January 2015

Exercisable at 31 December 2015

Exerases occurred throughout the year The average share price during the year was 957 2p

Under [FRS 2 the far value of serwices received in return for share opticns granted 1s measured by reference to the fair value of share opticns granted
The estimate of the far value of share options granted is measured based on a stochastic model The contractual Iife of the option 1s used as an nput iInto

this model with expectations of early exercise being incorporated into the model

The inputs into the stochastic model are as follows

2015 2014
Weighted average share price 1,028p LI7lp
Weighted average exercise price 0.0p C0p
Expected volatility 31 0% 370%
Expected Iife 3 years 3 years
Risk free rate 0.87% 095%
Expected dividend yield 2 40% 220%

Expected volatilty was determined by caleulating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years adjusted for any expected

changes to future volatility due to publicly avallable infermation

The Group recognised total expenses (included In operating costs) of £1 8m (2014 £1 9m) related 10 equity-settled, share-based payment transactions

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was 748 Ip (2014 734 3p)
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29 Retirement benefit habilities
The Group operates pension schernes in the UK and overseas

in the UK the Group operates the Keller Group Pension Scheme (the Scherne’), a defined benefit scheme, which has been closed to new members

since 1999 and was closed to all future benefit accrual with effect from 31 March 2006 Under the Scheme empleyees are normally entitled to retirement
benefits on attanment of a retirement age of 65 The Scheme is subject to UK pensians legislation which, inter alia, provides for the regulation of work-based
pension schemes by the Pensions Regulator The Trustees are aware of and adhere to the Codes of Practice issued by the Pensions Regulator The Scheme
Trustees currently comprise cne member-nominated Trustee and one employer-nominated Trustee The employer-nominated Trustee is also the Chair of the
Trustees The Scheme exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity risk interest rate risk and market (investment) risk which are managed through
the investment strategy tc acceptable levels The Scheme can invest in a wide range of asset classes including equriies bonds cash, property, alternatives
{including private equity, commodities hedge funds infrastructure currency high yield debt and dervatives) and annuity policies Any investment in
dervative instruments s only made to contribute to a reduction in the overall level of risk in the portfalio or for the purposes of efficent portfolio
management With effect from the most recent actuarial valuation date (5 April 2014), the Group has agreed to pay annual contributions of £1 6m untit

the next actuaral review in 2017

The Group has two UK defined contribution retirement benefit schemes There were no contributions autstanding in respect of these schemes at
31 December 2015 (2014 £nil) The total UK defined contribution pension charge for the year was £1 3m (2014 £] 2m)

The Group also has defined benefit retirement obligations in Germany and Austria Under these schemes, employees are entitled to retirement benefits
on attanment of a retirement age of 65, provided they have 15 years of employment wrth the Group The amount of benefit payable depends on the
grade of employee and the number of years of service, up to a maximum of 40 years Benefits under these schernes only apply to employees who joined
the Group pricr to 1991 These defined benefit retirement obligations are funded on the Groups balance sheet and obligattons are met as and when
required by the Group

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for employees in North America, where the Group Is required to match employee contributions up
1o a certain level in accordance with the scheme rules The total North America pension charge for the year was £3 6m {2014 £3 Om)

In Australia, there is a defined contribution scheme where the Group 1s required to ensure that 2 prescribed level of superannuation support of an
employee s notional base earnings 1s made This prescribed level of support is currently 9 5% {2014 $ 5%} The total Australan pension charge for the
year was £3 0m (2014 £39m)

Detalls of the Group's defined benefit schemes are as follows

The Keller The Keller German and German and

Group Pension Group Pension Austrian Austrian

Scheme (UK) Scheme (UK) Schemes Schemes

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 3| December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 014

£m £m £m £m
Present value of the scheme liabilities (48 5) (49 8) (12 8) (i38)
Present value of assets 382 382 - -
Deflait in the scheme (10 3) (&) (12.8) (138)

The value of the scheme habilities has been determined by the actuary using the following assumptions

3| December 31 December 31 December 3| December

015 2014 2015 2014

% % % %

Discount rate 39 EX:) 19 19
Interest on assets 39 36 nfa nfa
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 34 33 20 20
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment 22 21 20 10
Rate of inflation 3.2 31 20 20

The mortality rate assumptions are based on published statistics The average remaning life expectancy, in years of a pensioner retiring at the age of 65 at
the balance sheet date I1s

The Keller The Keller German and German and

Group Pension Group Pension Austrian Austran

Scheme (UK) Scheme (UK) Schemes Schemes

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

3| December 31 December 31 December 31 December

015 2014 2015 2014

Male currently aged 65 217 216 190 189
Female currently aged 65 23 6 235 231 229
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

29 Retirement benefit babihties continued
The assets of the schemes were as follows

The Keller The Keller German and German and
Group Pension Group Pension Austrian Austrian
Scheme (UK) Scheme (UK) Schemes Schemes
Value as at Value as at Value as at Value ag at
31 December 31 December 3 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m im £m
Equrties 23 | 230 nfa nfa
Gilts 76 76 nfa nfa
Bonds 75 76 nfa nfa
382 382 nla nfa
The Keller The Kelier German and Garman and
Group Pension Group Pension Austrian Awustnan
Scheme (UK) Scheme (UK) Schemes Schemes
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 3| December 31 December 31 December
. 015 2014 015 014
im £m Em £m
Changes in scheme hiabilities
Opening balance (49.8) 447) {13 8) (134)
Current service cost 02) (02) ()] {©3)
Interest cost (1.8) 20) ©.2) 3
Benefits pa:d 17 15 06 07
Exchange differences - - o8 08
Experience (loss)/gain on defined benefit obligation - Q5) 0l on
Changes to demographic assumptions - [(02))] - -
Changes to financial assumptions 1é& 38 on (1)
Closing balance {48 5) (498) (12 8) {38
Changes in scheme assets
Opening balance 38.2 350 - -
Interest on assets 14 |6 - -
Employer contributions 16 15 - -
Benefits pad an (5 - ~
Return on plan assets fess interest (1.3) 16 - —
Closing balance 382 382 - —
Actual return on scheme assets ol 32 = -
Statement of comprehensive income (SCCI)
Return on plan assets less interest 3 té - -
Experience (loss)/gan on defined benefit obligation - {05) 0l {on
Changes to demographic assumptions - ©on - -
Changes to finanaal assumptions 16 (38) ()] (2
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 03 (28) - (13)
Cumulative remeasurements of defined benefit plans (199 {202) (55) 55
Expense recognised in the income statement
Current service cost 02 02 02 03
Operating costs 02 02 02 03
Net pension interest cost 04 04 02 03
Expense recognised in the income statement 06 06 0.4 06
Movements in the balance sheet habihity
Net liability at start of year 1é 97 138 134
Expense recognised in the incorne statement 0é a6 04 06
Employer contributions (1 6) (3 - -
Benefits paid - - (06) 07
Exchange differences - - 08) 08
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans {0 3) 28 — 13
Net liability at end of year 103 16 12 8 138

96 KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015




29 Retirement benefit habilities continued

Q

A reducuon in the discount rate of 0 1% would increase the defiat in the schemes by £1 Om whilst a reduction in the inflaticn assumption of 0 1%, including &

1ts Impact on the revaluation in deferment and pension increases In payment, would decrease the defict by £0 6m An increase in the mortality rate by one Z

year would increase the defiat n the schemes by £24m g

The weighted average durauon of the defined benefit obligation 1s approximately 17 years for the UK scheme and 12 years for the German and

Austrian schemes

The history of experience adjustments on scheme assets and habilities tor all the Greup s defined benefit pensian schemes are as follows

2015 2014 2013 2012 201
£m £m fm £m £m

Present value of defined benefit cbligations (61 3) (63 6) (581 (526) (499

Farr value of scheme assets 382 382 350 344 322

Deficrt in the schemes (23 1) (254 {23 1) {I82) (77
9

Experience adjustments on scheme llabilities 16 57 5N 35 10 £
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
MNote £m £m

Assets
Tangble fixed assets 06 Ol
Investments 2 991 94 |
Other assets ) 3 6.5 35
Fixed assets 106 2 977
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
- Amounits falling due within one year 126 3 I
— Amounits falling due after one year 297.0 4475
Trade and cther debtors 4 0.4 05
Cash and bank balances 21 22
Current assets 425 8 4513
Trade and other creditors 5 (¢ H)] (46)
Amournits owed to subsidiary undertakings 03) 02
Provisions 6 - (200
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year (29 4) (24 8)
Net current assets 396 4 4265
Total assets less current habilities 502 & 5242
Bank and other loans (i36 7 (1389}
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings (29 5) (254)
Other creditors 7 25) (219)
Pension liabilities 9 (16) {18
Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year (170.3) (188 0)
Net assets 3323 3362
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 73 73
Share premium account 381 381
Caprtal redemption reserve 7.6 76
Other reserves 569 569
Profit and loss account 222 4 2263
Shareholders’ funds 3323 3362

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised tor 1ssue an 29 February 2016

They were signed eon its behalf by

A

Alain Michaelis
Chief Executive Officer

G- D

James Hind
Finance Director

9 8 KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015




Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 3| December 2015

Share Capital

premium  redemption Cther Hedging Reta ned Total

Share capital account resarve reserve reserve earnings equity

£m £m £m £m im £m £m

At | January 2014 73 381 76 568 - 2254 3353

Profit for the period - - - - - 166 16 6

Other comprehensive iIncome - - - - - 02 02
Cash flow hedge losses taken to equrty - - - - ©h - [CH)]

Cash flow hedge transfers to income statement - - - - 6l - 61
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes — — - - - 04 (04)

Total comprehensive Income - - - - - 16 4 16 4
Dividends - - - - - (174 (17.4)

Share-based payments - — - - - 19 19

At | January 2015 73 381 76 569 - 226 3 3362

Profit for the period - - - - - 121 121

Other comprehensive income - - - - - 05 05
Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity - - - - 42 - {4.2)

Cash flow hedge transfers to ncome statement - - - - 42 - 42

Total comprehensive ncome - - - - - 12 6 12.6
Dwidends - - - - - (183) (18 3)

Share-based payments - - - — — | 8 1.8

At 3] December 2015 73 381 76 569 - 222 4 3323

Detalls of the capital redempucn reserve and the ather reserve are included in note 24 of the consolidated financial statements

Of the retained earnings, an amount of £100 8m attributable to profits arsing on an intra-Group reorganisation s not distributable
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 ( the Act) The Company meets the definition of
a qualifying entity under FRS 10G (Financial Reporting Standard 100} 1ssued by the Financial Reparting Counal Accordingly, In the year ended 31 December
2015 the Company has undergone transition from reporting under UK GAAP 10 FRS 101 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council

On adopuen of FRS 101, no significant impacts from any changes in accounting policies have been noted, and no transition adjustments were required on
the prior year financial statements Therefore the opening balance sheet on transition has not been presented The balance sheet has been presented in
accerdance with the Act and the new FRS 101 format

Except as noted below, the Company’s accounting policies are consistent wath those described in the consolidated financial statements of Keller Group plc
As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under that standard in relation to share-based payments,
fimancial nstruments, capital management, presentation of a cash flow statement, related party transactions and comparative infermation Where required,
equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financral statements [n addition, disclosures in relation to share capital (hote 24) and dividends {note 11)
have not been repeated here as there are no differences to those provided in the consolidated financial staterments

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and under the historical cost convention The financial statements are presented
in pounds sterling, which 1s the Company s functional currency and unless otherwise stated have been rounded to the nearest £0 im

Profit of the parent company

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Act and cansequently the staterment of comprehensive income {including the profit and loss
account) of the parent company is not presented as part of these accounts The profit of the parent company for the financal year amounted to £12 Im
(2014 £i66m) ,

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

The Company holds inter-company loans with subsidiary undertakings with repayment dates being a mixture of repayable on demand or repayable on a
fixed contractual date These inter-company loans are disclosed on the face of the balance sheet None are past due nor impaired The carrying value of
these loans approximates their fair value

Investments
Investments in subsiciaries are stated at cost less where appropriate, provisiens for impairment

Audit fees
The Company has taken the exemption granted under S 2008/489 nct to disclose non-audit fees paid to s audrtors

Employees
The Company has no employees other than the Directors Directors’ remuneration and details of their share-based payments are disclosed in note 6 to the
consaoldated financial statermnents

2 Investments

2015 2014
£m £m
Shares at cost
At | January 941 1278
Addrticns 5.0 -
Disposals - 02
Amounts provided during the year - (335)
At 3| December 9291 94 |

The amounts provided during 2014 largely relate to the Group's UK subsidiary, Keller Limited following the contract dispute on a project completed in 2008
Further details are set out In note 7 to the consolidated financial statements
The Company's investments are included in the disclosures in note 10

3 Other assets

2015 20t4
£m £m
Fair value of derwative financal instruments 65 35
6.5 35

4 Trade and other debtors
2015 2014
im £m
Other recevables 03 03
Prepayments 0.1 02
0.4 05
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5 Trade and other creditors

2015 2014
im £m
Other ¢reditors 41 35
Accruals 08 09
Fair value of dervative financial instruments 2412 02
291 46
6 Provisions

Other
Provisions Total
£m £m
At | January 2015 200 200
Uilised (200} (20 0)

At 31 December 2015 -

Cther provisions relate to the Company s commitments under the settlement of & contract dispute on a project completed in 2008 Further detalls are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements

T Other creditors

2018 2014

£m fm

Crther creditors 2.5 25
Farr value of derwative financial instruments - 194
25 219

8 Contingent habilities

The Company and certain of 1ts substdiary undertakings have entered into a number of guarantees in the ordinary course of business, the effects of which
are to guarantee or cross-guarantee certan bank borrowings and other liabilities of other Group companies At 31 December 2015 the Company s habilrty

in respect of the guarantees against bank borrowings ameunted to £1072m (2014 £50 5m) In addition standby letters of credrt outstanding totalled

£152m (2014 £13 0m} No amounts were paid or habiliies incurred relating to these guarantees during 2015 (2014 £nl)

In addition as set out n note [0 the Company has provided a guarantee of certain subsidiartes' hiabilities to take the exemption from having to prepare
individual accounts under Section 394A and Section 394C of the Companies Act 2006 and exemption from having their financial statements audited under

Sections 479A to 479C of the Compantes Act 2006

9 Pension habihities

In the UK, the Company participates in the Keller Group Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme, details of which are given in note 2% to the consolidated

financal statements The Company s share of the present value of the assets of the scheme at the date of the last actuarial valuation on 5 April 2014 was

£5 6m and the actuarial valugtion showed a funding level of 77%

Details of the actuarial methods and assumptions, as well as steps taken to address the deficit In the scheme, are given in note 29 to the ¢onsoldated

financral statements The policy for determining the allocation of each participating company's pension hability 1s based on where each scheme member

was employed
There were no contributions outstanding 10 respect of the defined contribution schemes at 31 December 2015 (2014 £ril}

Detalls of the Company's share of the Keller Group defined benefit scheme are as follows

2018 2014

£m £m

Present value of the scheme lizbilties (7 6) (78)
Present value of assets 60 60
Deficit in the scheme (1.6) (18

KELLER GROUP PLC
Annual Report & Accounts 2015
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Notes to the Company financial statements contnued

9 Pension habihities continued
The assets of the scheme were as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Equities 36 36
Gils 12 12
Bonds 12 12
60 60
2015 2014
£m £m
Changes in scheme habilities
Opening balance (78) 73
Interest cost (0 3) 03
Benefits paid 03 02
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation - ©on
Changes to financial assumptions 02 03
Closing balance (7.6) (78)
Changes in scheme assets
Opening balance 60 57
Interest on assets 0.2 03
Employer contributions 03 02
Benefits pad (03) 02
Return on plan assets less interest (01) -
Closing balance 6.0 60
Actual return on scheme assets - 03
Statement of comprehensive income (SOCI)
Return on plan assets less interest ©2) -
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation - on
Changes 1o financial assumpuons 02 ©3
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans = ©49)
Cumulative remeasuremenis of defined benefit plans (2 6) (26)
Expense recognised in the income statement
Operating costs - -
Net pension interest costs 0l -
Expense recognised In the iIncome staternent ol -
Movements 1n the balance sheet habibty
Net fiability at start of year 18 I 6
Expense recogrised in the income statement ol -
Employer contributions (03) 02
Benefits pad - -
Rermneasurements of defined benefit plans - 04
Net lability at end of year 16 18
The contributions expected 1o be paid during 2016 are £03m
The fustory of experience adjustiments on scheme assets and habilihes 1s as follows
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
£m £ £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligations (76) (78) (73} 7n (66)
Fair value of scheme assets 60 60 57 59 56
Deficit in the scheme (1 6) {18 (16 {12) (10)
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilties 02 04 ©2 (05) ©4
Experence adjustments on scheme assets {0 2) — (04} 0l 04
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10 Group companies

In accordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full kst of subsidianes and joint ventures as at 31 December 2015 is disclosed below %
Unless otherwise stated, each of the subsidiary undertakings 15 wholly owned through ordinary shares by intermediate subsidiary undertakings 2
m
All of the subsidiary undertakings are included within the consolidated financial staternents =
All trading companies are engaged In the principal activities of the Group, as defined in the Director's report
Subsidary Country of Subsidiary Country of
undertaking INcorporation undertaking Incorporation
Keller Fondations Speciales Spa' Algeria Esorfranki DRCSPR L* Cemocratic
Republic
Awstral Construction Pty Limited Austraha of Congo
Austral Group Holdings Pty Limited Australia Keller Funderingsteknik Danmark ApS Denmark
Austral Investors Pty Limited Australia Geotechnical Engineering Contractors Ltd 3 Egypt “
Austral Plant Services Pty Limrted Australia Construction Requirement Company Limited Egypt g
5]
Franki Pacific Holdings Pty Limited Austraha Keller Egypt LLC Egypt =
Frankipile Australia Pty Limited Australia KFS Finland Oy* Finland
Keller National Plant Pty Limrited Australia Keller Fondations Speciales SAS France
Keller Foundations Pty Limited Australa GeTec Ingenieurgesellschaft fur Informations- und Germany
Planungstechnologie mbH
Keller Australia Pty Limited? Australa
Keller Grundbau GmbH Germany
Keller Ground Engineering Pty Lirnited Australia
Keller Holding GmbH Germany _—
Pile Test International Pty Limrted Australa s
KGS Keller Gerate & Service GmbH Germany 2
Piling Contractors Pty Limited Australa g
Wannenwetsch GmbH Hochdruckwassertechnik Germany §
Vibro-Pile (Aust) Pty Limited Austraha &
Frankipile Ghana Limrted Ghana m
Waterway Constructions (Vic) Pty Limited Australia
Keller Hellas S A Greece
Waterway Constructions Group Pty Limited Australia
Hayward Baker Cimentaciones Sociedad Anonima Guatermala
Waterway Constructions Pty Limited Australia
Keller Grundbau Melyeprio Kft Hungary
Keller Grundbau Ges mbH Austria
Keller Ground Engineering India Private Limited India
Frankiptle Botswana (Pty) Ltd Botswana
PT Frankipile Indonesia’ Indonesia —
Keller Engenharia Geotécnia Ltda Brazl 8
Caprtal Insurance Limited® Isle of Man 5
Cyntech Construction Ltd Canada Z
Keller Fondazioni S rl italy >
Geo-Foundations Contractors Inc? Canada o
Keller West Afnica SA Ivory Coast
Hayward Baker Canada Ltd Canada
Keller Central Asia Too Kazakhstan
Keller Canada Holdings Ltd Canada
Vremya LLP Kazakhstan
Keller Canada Serwvices Ltd Canada
Frankipile Lesotho (Pty) Ltd Lesothe
Keller Foundaticns Ltd Canada
Keller {M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia
MNeorth American Foundation Engineering Inc Canada
Ansah Asia 5dn Bhd Malaysia —
Keler Cimentaciones Chile SpA Chife %
Resource Piling (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia >
Keller Speaialne zakladam spol sro Czech Rep %
Frankipile (Maurrtius) International Limited Mauritius >
4
3
X
m
z
a
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Notes to the Company financial statements coninued

10 Group compames continued

Subsidiary Country of Subsdary Country of
undertaking incorporation undertaking INCOrparation
Frankipile International Projects Ltd Maurrtius Accrete Limited UK
Keller Cimentaciones de Latinoamerica SA de CV Mexico Mexico Boban Limred® UK
Terratest-Keller |V SAPI de CVv® Mexico Fondedile Foundations (UK) Limited UK
Keller Fondations Speciales SAS Succursale Maroc Morocco Intermesh Limited UK
Frankipile Mogambigue Limrtada Mozambique Keller Angola LUimrted UK
Frankipile Namibia (Pty)} Ltd Namibia Keller Angola Properties Limrited UK
Keller Funderningstechrieken BY Nethertands Keller EMEA Limited UK
Keller New Zealand Limited New Zealand Keller Finance Australia Limrted UK
Piing Contractors New Zealand Limirted New Zealand Keller Finance Limited UK
Keller Ground Engineening LLC? Crman Keller Colcrete Limited UK
Keller Cmentaciones, S A Panama Keller Financing UK
Keller Cimentaccnes, SAC Peru Keller Holdings Limited® UK
Keller Polska Sp z00 Poland Keller Limited® UK
Keller Terra Portugal Sociedade Unipessoal, Ldz Portugal Keller Resources Limrted UK
Keller Qatar L LC* Qatar Makers Holdings Limrted’ UK
Keller Geotehnica Srl Romania Makers Management Services Limned® UK
Keller Russia LLC Russia Makers Services Limited UK
Keller Turki Company Ltd" Saudi Arabia Makers UK Limited LUK -
Frankiple Maurus International (Seychelles) Limited Seychelles Phi Group Limted® UK
Keller Asia Holdings Limited Singapare Systems Geotechrique Lirnited UK
Keller Foundations {SE Asi@) Pte Limited Singapore Keller Ukrane LLC Ukraine
Resource Piling PTE Lumited Singapore Anderson Driling Inc us
Keller Specdlne zakladanie spol sro Slovakia Anderson Manufacturing Inc us
Franki Geotechrical (Pty) Ltd? South Africa Bencor Global Inc us
Keller Cimentaciones SLU Spain Case Atlantic Company us
Nesur Tecnologica Servicios S A Span Case Foundation Company us
Frankipile Swaziland (Pty) Ltd Swaziland Cyntech US Inc us
Keller Grundlaggning AB Sweden EB Construction Company us
Keller-MTS AG Switzerland EB Keller Holding Company us
Keller Zermin Muhendishigi Ltd St Turkey Geochernical Corporation us
Accrete Industrial Flooring Limrted UK Hayward Baker Inc us

I 04 KELLER GROUP PLC
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10 Group compamies continued

Subsidizry Country of Keller Group plc has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries in
undertaking incorporation order that they qualify for the exemption from having to prepare indvidual
HB Puerto Rico, L. P us accounts under Section 394A and Section 394C of the Compantes Act 2006
in respect of the year ended 3| December 2015
HJ Foundation Company us
Company Regstered number
Hj Keller Holding Company us Keller Financing 04592533
Keller Envircnmental Inc us Keller EMEA Lid 02427060
Keller Foundations, LLC us Keller Angola Limited 09267542
Keller Holdings Inc us Keler Angola Properties Limited 09267936
McKinney Drilling Company LLC us
Keller Group ple has guaranteed the hiabilities of the following subsidiaries
MckKinney Woodstock Inc us in order that they qualify for the exemption from audit under Sections
479A to 479C of the Companies Act 2006 1n respect of the year ended
Seaboard Foundations Inc us 31 December 2015
Suncoast Post-Tensien, Lid us Company Registered number
Keler Holdings Limited 02499601
The Concrete Doctor Inc us
Keller Resources Limited 04592974
Keller Foundations Vietnam Company Limited Vietnam
Keiler Finance Australia Limited 06768174
! 51% owned by Keller Fondations Speciales SAS and other Keller companies
1 Ownership consists of 15% Ordinary A shares, (0% Ordinary B shares and Keller Finance Limrted 02922459

75% Ordinary C shares

1 Orwnership consists of 52% Ordinary A shares 38% Ordinary B shares and
10% Ordinary C shares

* 99% owned by Frankipile International Projects Limited

= Crwned directly by the Company

® Jont venture 50% owned by Keller Grundlaggning AB based in Tuusula Finland
The company (s managed jointly by an equal number of directors from each of
the two shareholder companies

7 67% owned by Keller Foundations SE Asia Pie Limited

% Joint venture 50% owned by Keller Cmentaciones de Latinoamerica 5S4 de CV Mexco
based n Mexico DF Mo longer trading and due to be dxsobved in 2016

# 70% owned by Keller Holdings Limited

% 49% owned by Keller Holdings Limited

' 85% owned by Keller Grundbau GmbH

1175 1% owned by Keller Holdings Limized
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Financial record

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 012 013 014 2015
£m £m £m m £m £m fm fm m £m

Consohdated income statement
Continuing operations
Revenue 8577 9551 11966 10379 10689 11543 13175 14382 15597 1,562 4
EBITDA! 1049 1258 1443 1132 850 714 9 1242 1419 1555
Operating profit! 893 1074 1194 773 433 289 483 778 920 103 4
Net finance costs' (56 42 62 (26) 37N )] 48 37 6 .7
Profit before taxation' 837 1032 132 747 394 219 435 741 851 957
Taxation' (307)  (359) (359 (226) (1190 (55 (135 (238 (97) (330)
Profit for the period before exceptional items 530 673 773 521 286 164 360 503 554 627
Exceptional tems? 38 - - - {70 - - 02y  (566) (36 4)
Profit/(loss) for the period 568 673 773 521 15 164 ico 301 (1) 263
Consohdated balance sheet
Working caprtal 548 557 922 850 1067 1n9s 976 1241 1041 97.1
Property plant and equipment 146 1558 2547 2644 2750 2661 2485 2819 2956 3318
Intangible and other non-current assets 663 945 1243 1318 1229 164 H21 2028 2034 1830
Net debt (386) (545) (84¢) (788) (940) (1025 (512) (437) (1022) (183 0)
Other net assets/labilties (380) (400) (B40) (7913  (79B)  (730) {713 (925 (1546) (949
Net assets 1591 2105 3026 3233 3308 3268 3357 3726 3463 3340
Key performance indicators
Basic earnings per share from continuing .
operations {pence)' 790 976 Il 788 440 248 459 730 753 8& 4
Dradend per share (pence) 156 180 207 218 228 228 228 240 252 271
Operating margin' 104% 112% 100% 74% 41% 25% 37% 54% 58%  66%
Return on caprtal employed'? 46 6%  446%  362% 193%  102% 6 6% 1e% 167%  183% 205%
Net debt EBITDA! 04x 04x 06x 07x LS | 4x Céx | 2% 07x 1.2x

! Before exceptional tems

? Excepuonal items consist of a contract dispute provision non-recurring tax credits goodwill impairment charges and other non-trading tems relatng to acquisitions which are required to be

expensed under IFRS

? Calcutated as operating profit expressed as a percentage of average capital employed Capital employed s net assets before non-controlling interests plus net debt and net defined benefit

pension liabiities
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Principal offices

North America

Bencor Global, Inc

6811 Ash Street

Frisco

Texas 75034

Telephone +1 972 247 6767
www bencorinc com

Case Foundation Company
1325 West Lake Street

Roselle

ihinens 60172

Telephone +1 630 529 2911

www casefoundation com

Geo-Foundations Contractaors inc
302 Mamn Street MNarth

Acton

Ontario

Canada

L7) W9

Telephone +| B88 846 7858

www geo-foundatons com

Hayward Baker Inc
7550 Teague Road

Suite 300

Hanover

Maryland 21076

Telephone +1 410 551 8200
www haywardbaker com

H] Foundation Company
8275 NW 80th Street

Miarmi

Florida 33166

Telephone +1 305 592 881
www hjfoundation com

Keller Canada

Zone 3 Acheson Industrial Area
2-53016 - HWY 80

Acheson

Alberta

T7X 5487

Telephone +1 780 960 6700
www kellercanada com

McKinney Drilling Company
7550 Teague Road

Suite 300

Hanover

Maryland 21076

Telephone +1 410 874 1235
www mckinneydnlling com

Suncoast Post-Tension, Ltd
509 N Sam Houston Parkway East
Suite 400

Houston

Texas 77060

Telephone +1 281 668 1840

WWW SUNCOAST-pt com

South America

Keller Engenharia Geotécnica Ltda
Av Embaixador Abelardo Buena n° 01
Barra da Tyuca Rio de Janeirc - R
CEP22775-040

Condorminio Dimension Office Park

Bloco | - Ala F — Boulevard — 5ala 702 a 708
Cep.22775-044 Rio de Janeiro — R} - Brasil

Telephone +55 21 3590 7601
www kellerbrasil com br

Europe

Keller Cimentaciones S L U
o Argentina 15

28806 Alcald de Henares {(Madrid)
Spain

Telephone +34 91 423 7561

www keller-comentaciones com

Keller Fondations Spéciales
2 rue Denis Papin

C5 65224 Duttlenheim

67129 Molsheim Cedex

France

Telephone +33 3 83599200
www keller-france com

Keller Grundbau GmbH
Kaiserlesstrasse 8

63087 Offenbach

Germany

Telephone +43 62 80510
www kellergrundbau de

Keller Grundbau Ges mbH
Marnahilfer Strasse 1272

1150 Wien

Austria

Telephone +43 | 8923526
www kellergrundbau at

Keller Limited

Oxford Road
Rytoen-on-Dunsmore
Coventry CVE 3EG

United Kingdom

Telephone +44 2 476 511 266

www keller-uk com

Keller Polska Sp zo o

ul Pozndnska 172

05-850

Ozardw Mazowieck
Warsaw

Polend

Telephone +48 22 733 8270
www kellercom pl

Middle East

Keller Grundbau GmbH
UAE Region

Office Mo 408

Al Mansour Bulding
Damascus Street Al Qusais
Dubal

UAE

Telephone +371 4 2575 188
www kellerme com

Africa

Franki Geotechnical (Pty) Led
674 Pretona Man Road

Wynberg

3090 Sandton

South Africa

Telephone +27 11 531 2700

www franki co za

Asia

Keller Foundations (SE Asia) Pte Ltd
18 Boon Lay Way

#04-104 Tradehub 2|

Singapore 609966

Telephone +65 6316 8500

www kellerasia com

Keller Ground Engineering India Pvt Ltd
7th Floor, Eastern Wing

Centennial Square 6A

Dr Ambedkar Road

Kodambakkam

Chennai-600024

India

Telephone +91 44 2480 7500

www kellerindra com

Keller {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
B5-10 Block B, Plaza Dwitasik
Bandar Sr Permaisurt

56000 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

Telephone +603 9173 3198
www kellerasia com

Resaurce Piling Pte Ltd

| Upper Aljunied Link
#07-06 Block A

Joo Seng Warehaouse
Singapore 367901

Telephone +65 6382 3400
www resource-piling com sg

Australa

Austral Construction Pty Ltd
126 Hallam Valley Road
Dandenong

Victora 3175

Telephone +6t 3 9797 2700
www australconstruction com au

Frankipile Austraha Pty Ltd
Level |

4 Burbank Place

Baulkham Hills

New South Wales 2153
Telephone +61 2 8866 1100
www franki com au

Keller Ground Engineering Pty Ltd
Levet |

4 Burbank Place

Baulkham Hills

New South Wales 2153

Telephone +61 2 8866 1155

www kellerge com au

Piling Contractors Pty Ltd
5 Jacque Court

Lawnton

Queensland 4501

Telephone +61 7 3285 5800

WWW plllngcontrac:ors com au

VYibro-Pile (Aust ) Pty Led
Building 4 Level 2

540 Springvale Road

Glen Waverley

Victoria 3150

Tetephone +61 2 9590 2600
www vibropile com au

Waterway Constructions Pty Ltd
Level 1 104 Victora Road

Rozelle

New South Wales 2039

Telephone +61 2 9555 2211

WWW waterway com au
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Secretary and advisers

Company secretary
K A A Porritt FCIS

Registered office
5th flocr

| Sheldon Square
London W2 6TT

Registered number
2442580

Jont brokers

Jefferies Hoare Govett
Vintners Place

68 Upper Thames Street
London EC4V 3B)

Investec Investment Banking
2 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QP

Auditors

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London EI4 5GL

Principal bankers
Lioyds Bank plc
15 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7HN
‘
Legal advisers
DLA Piper UK LLP
3 Noble Street
Lendon EC2V 7EE

Financial public relations advisers
Finsbury

Tenter House

45 Maorfields

London ECZ 9AE

Registrars

Equinity Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lanang

West Sussex BN99 6DA
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